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ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

| am pleased to present the annual report of Tysan Holdings limited (the
"Company”) together with ifs subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2015. For the year under review, the Group achieved a profit
attributable fo equity holders of the Company of HK$399 million, equivalent
to HK$0.46/share, representing 48% increase over the same period last year
(2013/14: HK$270 million, equivalent to HK$0.31/share] while turnover
increased by 38% to HK$4,836 million (2013/14: HK$3,504 million).

DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Company (the "Board") has resolved to
recommend a final dividend payment of HK$0.15 (year ended 31 March
2014: HK$0.10) per share to shareholders whose names appear on the
Company's register of members on 17 August 2015. An interim dividend of
HK$0.05 per share was declared for the six months ended 30 September
2014 (period ended 30 September 2013: Nil]. Subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the proposed final
dividend will be paid on or before 7 September 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong Market
Foundation Piling

Turnover of the Group's foundation division increased by 52% fo HK$3,752
million for the year under review. lts net contribution increased by 1.7 times
to HK$321 million as compared to HK$189 million last year, driven by
increased consfruction activities and public spending on infrastructure. The
Group's major confracts on hand include, inter alia, the Passenger Clearance
Building for the HK-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge, public housing developments in
Tung Chung Area 39, Pak Tin Estates, Kai Tak and the former Wholesale
Food Market at

Tak, Tseung Kwan O, and Kwun Tong and commercial development in

Cheung Sha Wan, private residential developments in Kai

Wong Chuk Hang and Quarry Bay. EBITDA for the foundation piling segment
increased by 56%, from HK$245 million to HK$381 million for the year
under review. The overall EBITDA margin for the segment remained af 10% as
per last year.
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PRC Market
Property Development

The Waterfront

During the year under review, the Group's residential project in Shanghai,
The Waterfront, recognized a revenue of HK$569 million as compared to

HK$449 million in the same period last year and contribution to profit of
HK$414 million (2014: HK$258 million).

The unsold area of The Waterfront as at 31 March 2015 is outlined below:

*  Residential: about 6,100 sqm;

e Car Park: about 73 car park unis;

*  NonResidential: about 4,800 sqm, representing primarily street front
refail shops and a historic building.

The residential market sentiment has improved affer the Chinese government
relaxed the fightening policies in early 2015. The Waterfront is a unique
development and the remaining inventory is relatively small. We expect the
price of the remaining units fo escalate due to limited supply.

ZRREE The Waterfront

4% 201472015
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TS E The Riverside

AEBEREZETEBERNUSERIEME  The Group's residential project in Tianjin, The Riverside, comprises 6 towers
EHELE75000F KA ERE - with a total gross floor area ["GFA") of about 75,000 sgm.

PEBFEE @ BEAUE 418,000,000 - For the year under review, a revenue of HK$418 million was recognized as
FFERBAERER%S515000,000%7T © compared to HK$515 million in the same period last year and contribution
s M B BB EFER 199,000,000 7THE  to profit decreased from HK$ 199 million of last year to HK$ 166 million. The
£ 166,000,000 - ZBAEEEERE  Croup is confident that The Riverside can maintain the sales velocity and price
—E 7R MAEBBELOEEIRY  of the remaining units which are of high quality and unique design.
SEHERE R ERER 2 B1E o

RZZE—RE=ZRA=+—H FWZEZAR The unsold area of The Riverside as at 31 March 2015 is outlined below:

EEEHIIMT :

o [FE:425500FHK *  Residential: about 25,500 sqm:;

o CREL: 165 A *  Car Park: about 165 car park units;

o JEEE:H3IQ00FHK TEHEEE ¢ NonResidential: about 3,900 sqm, representing primarily street front
TEEREANRNRESM - refail shops and The Riverside's clubhouse.
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The Pinnacle

The site in Shenyang is located at Huanggu District with a site area of about
41,209 sqm and a GFA of about 165,000 sqm. The Pinnacle comprises
of both residential and commercial development. Consfruction works are in
progress and will be completed in mid-2016 as scheduled. With the opening
of the Sales Office on 1 May 2015, the Group expecis to commence pre-
sales in the financial year of 2015 - 2016, subject to market condifions.

EBITDA for the property development segment increased by 34%, from
HK$449 million to HK$603 million for the year under review. The overall
EBITDA margin increased by 15% from 46% to 61% for the year ended 31
March 2015.

#% 2014/2015 © §
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Property Investment and Management

Since the completion of the renovation works in mid-2014, the Group's
investment properies in Shanghai have continued fo provide steady recurring
income. During the period under review, turnover of the property invesiment
division maintained at HK$ 13 million.

PROSPECTS

The Group expects Hong Kong's foundation piling industry to stay healthy
in the next few years. This is driven by sfrong construction activities in both
public and private sectors. For the fiscal year 2015-16, the government's
capital spending on infrastructure is estimated fo reach about HK$76 billion;
this represents about 13% above the 5-year average. The government has
carried out land use reviews confinuously on sites available for residential use
and increased the land supply fo cope with the overwhelming housing needs,
resulting in a marked increase in both public and private housing development
activities. Maijor infrastructure projects and land development projects being
undertaken or planned include the revitalization of Kowloon East, development
of Tung Chung New Town Extension, East Lantau Metropolis, Kai Tak Fanfasy
project and implementing new railway projects. The Group is well-positioned
fo benefit from the high level of construction activities while maintaining its
leading market position in Hong Kong.

While the Group's foundation business has performed very well in the
past financial year, challenges remain with continuing cost inflation and
increasingly competitive markef landscape. However, with the current works in
the pipeline, and barring any unforeseen circumstances, it is expected that the
division will continue o yield profits in the current financial year.

In China, the overall property market sentiment has improved significantly
subsequent to the PRC government's announcement fo support the property
market in early March 2015. The new policies on mortgages and the housing
provident fund for first and second home buyers, the lowering of interest rates
and bank’s reserve requirement ratio, and the lifting of business tax on the
sale of units purchased for more than two years, have stimulated demand
in the market. In addition, our product offers a unique value proposition
fo our potential customers, which will be beneficial fo our residential sales
campaigns.

The Group will maintain a prudent investment and financing strategy and
continue to strengthen its efficiency and seek opportunities to maximize the
interests of its shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group continues fo adopt a prudent financing policy and sustain a sound
capital structure with healthy cashflow. As at 31 March 2015, the Group's
cash on hand was approximately HK$1,311 million (31 March 2014:
HK$1,551 million) while total assets and net assets (after deducting non-
controlling interests) were approximately HK$5,568 million (31 March 2014:
HK$5,277 million) and HK$2,742 million (31 March 2014; HK$2,482
million), respectively. As at 31 March 2015, the Group's working capital
amounted to HK$ 1,100 million. As at 31 March 2015, the Group did not
have any net debt and recorded a net cash balance of HK$944 million,
while the Group recorded a nef cash balance HK$965 million as af 31
March 2014. Contingent liabilities in relation to guarantees of performance
bonds decreased from HK$533 million as at 31 March 2014 to HK$417
million as at 31 March 2015. Certain of the Group's assets with a book
value of approximately HK$183 million have been pledged to secure
certain banking facilities of the Group. The Group's bank borrowings were
primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars, with a few loan facilities in
Euro. Currency exposure has been monitored and forward contracts will be
considered as required.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group, including its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC,
employed approximately 1,518 employees as at 31 March 2015. The
Group's remuneration policies are primarily based on prevailing market salary
levels and the performance of the respective companies and individuals
concerned. Fringe benéfits include provident fund, medical insurance and
fraining. In addition, share opfions may also be granted in accordance to the
terms of the Group's approved share option scheme.

4% 201472015
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like o express my sincere gratitude to all our
staff for their dedication, hard work and contribution during the year and fo
thank all our shareholders for their support to the Group. Furthermore, | would
like to express my sincere gratitude to our former Executive Director, Miss
Jennifer Kwok, whose resignation became effective on 1 July 2014, for her
invaluable contribution to the Group during the tenure of her office.

On behalf of the Board

WANG TIANBING
Chairman

Hong Kong

17 June 2015
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FUNG Chiu Chak Victor, aged 60, joined the Group in May 1994.
Mr. Fung is the Vice Chairman & Managing Director of the Board of the
Company, a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company
and also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily
responsible for business development, strategic planning as well as general
and project management of the Group. Mr. Fung has over 36 years'
experience in the field of consulting engineering, construction management
and property development.

Mr. CHIU Chin Hung, aged 62, joined the Group in July 1994. Mr. Chiu
is an Executive Director of the Board of the Company and also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily responsible for the
business development and management of the Group's Foundation Division.
Mr. Chiu graduated from The University of Aberdeen, Scofland and has
over 37 years experience in foundation design and construction works and
is a Fellow Member of The Insfitute of Civil Engineers and The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers as well as a Chartered Engineer. Mr. Chiu has been
a Council Member of The Hong Kong Construction Association representing
Tysan Foundation Limited since 2001.

Mr. LAU Kin Fai, aged 54, joined the Group in July 2008. Mr. lau is an
Executive Director of the Board of the Company and also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He is the General Manager of the China
Division in charge of the Group's Property Development Division in the PRC.
Mr. Lau is primarily responsible for business development and management
of the Group's property development business. Prior to joining the Group, he
has over 24 years experience in the field of quantity surveying and housing
development with the latter 14 years working in the Hong Kong Housing
Society. Mr. lau is a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Insfitute of Surveyors
and the Royal Insfitution of Chartered Surveyors.

4% 201472015
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WANG Tianbing, aged 47, was appointed as Chairman of the
Company, a Non-executive Director and as Chairman of the Nomination
Committee in April 2014 and a member of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 1 July 2014. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. He is a Managing Director in the Real Esftate group of The
Blackstone Group L.P. [“Blackstone”]. Since joining Blackstone in 2010,
Mr. Wang has involved in evaluating real estate invesiments in China and
managing the Greater China portfolio. Mr. Wang led the initiation, sale and
restructuring of some of the key investments in China. Mr. Wang holds a
Master Degree in International Business from Curtin University of Technology,
Australia. He also has a Bachelor Degree in Economics from Zhejiang
University, China. Mr. Wang serves as a Deputy Chairman of SCPG Group.
Mr. Wang is also a member of the ICSC China leadership board.

Mr. Stuart Morrison GRANT, aged 47, was appointed as o Non-execufive
Director in April 2014. He is a Senior Managing Director and Head of Real
Estate Asset Management for Asia of Blackstone. Mr. Grant has day-o-day
asset management responsibility for Blackstone's Asia assets as well as the
MB Asia Real Estate Fund. Mr. Grant holds a Bachelor of Science (Honours)
degree from the University of St. Andrews and o Master of Science degree
from New York University, USA.

Mr. YANG Han Hsiang, aged 36, was appointed as a Non-execufive
Director in April 2014. He is a Managing Director in the Real Esfate group
of Blackstone. Since joining Blackstone in 2007, Mr. Yang has involved in
evaluating real estate investment opportunities in Greater China. Mr. Yang
holds a Master Degree in Business Adminisiration from INSEAD in France, and

a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration from University of Michigan, Ann

Arbor, USA.

Mr. Justin WAI, aged 31, was appointed as a Non-executive Director in
April 2014. He is also a director of Tysan Foundation {Hong Kong) Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company. He is a Principal in the Real Estate group of
Blackstone. Since joining Blackstone in 2007, Mr. Wai has primarily involved
in real estate investments in Greater China. Prior fo joining Blackstone, Mr.
Wai worked at Macquarie Bank in Hong Kong. Mr. Wai holds a Bachelor
of Science Degree from the School of Hotel Administration, Cornell University,
New York, USA.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Mr. LAW Yiu Fat Richard, aged 34, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director in April 2014. He is also a director of Tysan Foundation (Hong
Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. He is a Principal in the Real
Estate group of Blackstone. Since joining Blackstone in 2008, Mr. law has
worked in Blacksfone's Hong Kong and New York offices and was involved
in evaluating invesiment opportunities in Greater China and the US. Before
joining Blackstone, Mr. Law worked at the Bank of America Merrill Lynch
in Hong Kong. Mr. Llaw holds a Master Degree at Stanford University and
a Bachelor Degree (graduated magna cum laude) from the University of

Michigan, Ann Arbor, USA.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FAN Chor Ho, SBS, BBS, JP, aged 73, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in August 1993. Mr. Fan
currently also acts as the Chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. He
was a Non-executive Director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
from 3 April 2000 to 15 April 2003. He was a member of the Advisory
Committee fo the Securities and Futures Commission from 1993 to 1997 and
again serving in the same capacity since 2001 until 2007. He was holding
appointments on Government boards and committees, including Chairman of
the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong from 13 September 2005 to 12
September 2011. He was awarded the Badge of Honour in 1991 and was
made a Justice of the Peace in 1993, and was awarded Bronze Bauhinia

Star in July 2005 and the Silver Bauhinia Star in July 2011,

Mr. TSE Man Bun, aged 72, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2004. Mr. Tse currently also
acts as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Commitiee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. He is presently
an Independent Non-executive Director of HSBC Insurance (Asia) Limited,
HSBC Life (International] Limited, Crystal International Limited, and China
Fishery Group Limited (listed on the Singapore Exchange limited). Mr. Tse has
over 40 years” working experience in the banking indusiry. He joined The
Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited in 1968 and retired from
the bank in December 2002. During his service with HSBC, he was assigned
many key positions, including Senior Credit Manager; Managing Director,
Wayfoong Finance limited and Wayfoong Credit Limited; and Senior
Executive, Commercial Banking. Apart from the banking field, Mr. Tse is well
versed in the reviewing and analysis of corporate financial statements and has
an indepth understanding of the commerce and manufacturing industries.

4% 201472015

11



12

TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

YK EE M A A il /Y DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

BETHEL 585 M2007F8 ARKEME
ARRABUIFNTES  BEMRELSR
AR REENREARBEKE - ELAR
REMASRR(BR)ERARSHREA
B SR -XBB80ERE, MBERZ
R BEER o A 1990 F AR A — BB
RIQSFRABTBETARLTF2— AN
200322004 FEREFTFHEER - 1
2001 R 2014 F - BELBBERHITH
BRRARTREDHERARAES - pih -
EEERBEBHLCABZRE  BERATE
B/ ERGEURREFNAETEER
B ERAEFRNREMGEETIRERAR
BATREHE R HNEE IBRAEEY
FNREERTIRE - RAELBARFEAR
BeamHeRcREZ8 @2 B RABRRIT
BEAFEL EARTEREESEAR
DEMBUFFMTES  ZRANELAHA
RGMBR AR ER LT

FH2KE 0% N2013FIARRME
RARBZBUIFNTESE - FTAER AN
NEEGZES REZESRFHZES
RE - BRERERBHENERLTEN -
BRE SR NWERBEZEEBI2F
B RATESHMAERERRFAR
QIMAGEREE - KRTHZABER
MTERARESALE  TREXLER
BERRAEFARKE ZARALTENED
ERGHBER - BT RAREMARIME
RAREREHARENEBZRARAF
FEIFR EMARBEBRE(CERERRD
Al B FFMITEE °

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

Mr. LUNG Chee Ming George, aged 58, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2007. Mr. lung currently
also acts as a member of the Audit Commitiee and the Nomination Commitiee
of the Company. He is a Senior Regional Director of Manulife (International)
limited leading a team of over 800 insurance/financial advisers. He first
joined Manulife in 1990 and has since achieved outstanding results. Actively
involved in community services, Mr. lung was amongst one of the Ten
Qutstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1995 and was the chairman of
The Outstanding Young Persons Association in 2003 to 2004. Mr. lung was
awarded the Medal of Honour and Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2001 and 2014. Furthermore,
Mr. Lung is @ Commitiee Member of the Board of Governors of Hong Kong
Shue Yan University, a Member of the Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear
Power Station/lingao Nuclear Power Station, Nuclear Safety Consultative
Commitiee, the Founding Chairman of Hong Kong Youth Exchange Promotion
United Association and a Chairperson of “Passing on the Torch” National
Education Activity Series of Education Bureau. Mr. Lung is currently a member
of the National Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative
Conference and Justice of the Peace of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. He is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Sky Forever
Supply Chain Management Group Limited, which is listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited.

Mr. Li Kit Chee, aged 60, was appoinfed as an Independent Non-execufive
Director of the Company in March 2013. Mr. Li currently acts as a member
of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He holds a Bachelor Degree of Social Sciences
from the University of Hong Kong. He has over 32 years of experience in
audifing, accounting and secretarial services and is a fellow member of both
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He is a managing director of Arthur Li, Yau
& lee C.P.A. limited, and also a managing director of Cheong Yip Corporate
Services limited which is principally engaged in corporate service related
business. He is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Henry Group
Holdings Limited and National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited,
which are companies listed on the Main Board and the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited respectively.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Miss MO Wai Ling, aged 51, joined the Group in February 2008. As the
Financial Controller of the Group, Miss Mo is primarily responsible for finance
and accounting matters. She has over 28 years” experience in the finance and
accounting field. Miss Mo is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. WONG Kay, aged 52, re-joined the Group in January 2014. Mr.
Wong is the General Manager in charge of the Group's Shenyang Property
Development Division in the PRC. He is primarily responsible for organizing
and managing the operations of the Group's Shenyang property development
business in the PRC. Mr. Wong has over 29 years' experience in the
construction industry with more than 21 vyears in property development and
project management in the PRC.

Mr. LAl Kok Wai, aged 57, joined the Group in July 1994. As a Director
of Tysan Foundation Limited, Tysan Foundation Geotechnical Limited, Tysan
Confractors (Hong Kong) Limited and Tysan Construction (Macau) Limited.
Mr. Lai is responsible for the planning, coordinating and controlling of the
fechnical operations and administration of the Foundation Division. He has
over 34 years' experience in civil engineering, building and foundation design
and construction works and is a member of both The Hong Kong Insfitution
of Engineers [MHKIE) and The Institution of Civil Engineers United Kingdom
[MICE). Mr. Lai also represents Tysan Foundation Limited to sit in various
Government's panels and committees. Mr. Lai is also a Director of Proficiency
Engineering Limited and Proficiency Equipment Limited. He is also responsible
for the business development and management of machinery leasing and
frading.

Miss WONG Suk Han Kitty, aged 51, joined the Group in June 2007. As
the Company Secrefary of the Group and Director of Corporate Affairs, Miss
Wong is primarily responsible for company secrefarial matters, legal, human
resources and adminisfration, and invesfor relations matters. She has over 18
years of experience in the corporate finance and legal fields. Miss Wong is a
Solicitor qualified in Hong Kong and has been admitted as a Solicitor of the
Supreme Court in England and Wales.
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The Company is commitied to maintaining good corporate governance and

has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Goveming the Lisfing
of Securities (the “listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). For the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the
Company has fully complied with the CG Code save as disclosed in sections

[B) and (F) below.

(A)

(B)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the “Board”) oversees the management,
business, sfrategic directions and financial performance of the Company
and ifs subsidiaries (the “Group”). It has delegated the day-to-day
responsibility to the executive directors of the Company (*Directors’)
and senior management of the Company {“Senior Management’] who
perform their duties under the leadership of the managing director of the
Company ["Managing Direcfor”]. At the time of delegation, the Board
gives clear directions to Executive Directors as to the matters that must
be approved by the Board before decisions can be made on behalf
of the Group. The functions reserved to the Board and delegated fo
the Executive Direcfors and Senior Management are reviewed by the
Board fo ensure that such delegation remains appropriate to the needs
of the Group. The management has ensured sufficient explanation
and information were provided fo the Board fo enable it to make an
informed assessment of financial and other information put before it for
approval. The Board members have access fo appropriate business
documents and information about the Group on a timely basis.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises a fotal of 12 Directors, with three Executive
Directors, being Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor, Mr. Chiu Chin Hung
and Mr. Lau Kin Fai; five Non-executive Directors, being Mr. Wang
Tianbing, Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant, Mr. Yang Han Hsiang, Mr. Justin
Wai and Mr. Law Yiu Fat Richard; and four Independent Non-executive
Directors, being Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Mr. Tse Man Bun, Mr. lung Chee
Ming, George and Mr. li Kit Chee. The Board comprises Direcfors
with diverse backgrounds and/or extensive expertise in the Group's
business. The Non-execufive Directors and Independent Non-execufive
Directors have a wide range of business and financial experience. The
Independent Non-executive Directors represent one-hird of the Board
who consistently exercise independent judgment. With a balanced
composifion of Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors|, there is a sfrong independent
element on the Board. The balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives of the Board contribute fo the effective direction of the
Company.
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Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company is required to
appoint independent non-executive direcfors representing af least one-
third of the Board. With effect from 1 April 2014, five Non-executive
Directors were appointed. Together with four Executive Directors and
four Independent Non-executive Directors, there were a tfotal of 13
Directors. Hence, since 1 April 2014, the Company did not meet the
requirements under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, where the Company
is required fo appoint independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-hird of the Board. Under Rule 3.11 of the Listing Rules,
the Company should appoint an additional independent non-executive
director fo meet such requirement under Rule 3.10A within three months
after failing to meet such requirements. However, as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 21 March 2014, the Company
would be in compliant with the onethird requirement as Miss Jennifer
Kwok had tendered her resignation as an Executive Director with effect
from 1 July 2014. The Company had been in compliant with Rule 3.11
of the Listing Rules since 1 July 2014.

The Company has received annual written confirmations of
independence from all the Independent Non-executive Directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the
view that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent
in character and judgement and that they all meet the specific
independence criteria as required by the Listing Rules.

An updated list of Directors identifying their roles and functions and
whether they are Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors or
Independent Non-executive Directors has been maintained on www.
tysan.com (the “Company's website”) and www.hkexnews.hk (the
"Stock Exchange's website”).

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

There is a clear division on the roles of chairman of the Board [the
"Chairman”) and Managing Director which are performed by different
individuals. This ensures a balanced distribution of power and authority.

Mr. Wang Tianbing, the Chairman, provides leadership to the
Board and is responsible for the formation of the Group's strategies,
overall policy making, and direction of its business development. He
is responsible for leadership and effective running of the Board and
ensuring that all significant and key issues are discussed and where
required, resolved by the Board in a timely manner.

4% 201472015
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The Chairman takes primary responsibility for the following matters:-

(1)

(2)

(3

(4)

(5

fo ensure good corporate governance pracfices and procedures
are established;

fo ensure that appropriate steps are taken fo provide
effective communication with shareholder(s| of the Company

|“Shareholderls)");

fo encourage all Direcfors fo make a full and active contribution
o the Board's affairs and take the lead fo ensure that it acts in the
best inferests of the Company, encourage Directors with different
views to voice their concerns, allow sufficient time for discussion
of issues and ensure that Board decisions fairly reflect Board

consensus,;

fo promote a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the
effective contribution of Non-executive Directors in particular
and ensuring constructive relations between Executive and Non-
executive Directors; and

to hold meetings at least annually with the Non-executive
Directors (including independent Non-executive Directors| without
the Executive Directors present.

Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor, the Vice Chairman and Managing
Director, is responsible for business development, strategic planning

as well as general and project management of the Group. He is

responsible for implementing the Group's strategy to achieve business

objectives with the assistance of other Executive Directors and Senior

Management.
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Changes in information of members of the Board and Board Commitiees
during the year ended 31 March 2015 and up fo the date of this
Annual Report as follows:-

(1) Mr. Wang Tianbing was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 July 2014.

(2)  Miss Jennifer Kwok resigned as an Executive Director with effect
from 1 July 2014.

(3]  Mr. Wang Tianbing was appointed as a member of the ICSC
Chinese leadership Board and as a deputy chairman of SCPG
Group with effect from 10 July 2014 and 27 March 2015

respectively.

(4] Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of Sky Forever Supply Chain Management
Gruop Limited with effect from 17 June 2015 and ceased to
be an Independent Non-executive Director of MEGA MEDICAL
TECHNOLOGY LMITED with effect from 26 June 2015.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

The Board meets af least four times a year af approximately quarterly
intervals and additional meetings will be held as and when required.
During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Board held
b meetings [save for the executive Board meetings held between
the Executive Directors during the normal course of business of the
Company). Attendance by a Director at a meefing by means of a
conference telephone or other communications equipment is allowed
under the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws").

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secrefary”)
assists the Chairman in establishing the meeting agenda and each
Director may request inclusion of items in the agenda. A notice of
at least 14 days is given to all Directors for regular Board meetings.
Relevant information is circulated to all Directors normally three days in
advance of the regular Board meetfings to enable the Board fo make
informed decisions and perform their duties and responsibilities.

4% 201472015

17



[ )
:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

18

ERARMENGET  TRBRESR
SR LEREFOFEANTEANER
I R W ERIZED W ER - MARERT
REREBM KT 5 - BB R EE
HABRENETERESNRE - &
ERNEFAELVEREBRBYEER
BEEAR -HEERRT EFHE
EZE G ERNAEERRETE
VEXEER  MAXBARBAE - K
ARIEREERKERSEERAER
HEENRRRE - RARBEFRE
BERHZRRORESELETES

EXRLEFR BRI IE
EFE MERCEZCENNESR
FEEZESEMAMHEMEIKEERN
WHBEEERER - B S@CEED
ANELEFREENE(RBERME)
R YRFAREZER -

REERMRA N ETRR - EEFRE
ERRIEENZHFRZEAR S KA
EZRREAARCEZREZE LTS
KB - MR EFENEZRRNK
HEMBMEAREEAER IR HZE
# L MEREANGHAGE LT
Ao

ARRIBARNEERKERHTEER
& EPHALKEXBKHALER
BREERABERANBERELETE
ERESRKENBFEAT -

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

£ EEF B MY CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

With the assistance of the Company Secrefary, the Chairman
ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising af
Board meetings, and that they receive in a timely manner, adequate
information which are accurate, clear, complefe and reliable fo assist
them to make informed decisions and discharge their duties as Directors.
The Board members have separate and independent access to the
Senior Management whenever necessary. Upon reasonable request, the
Directors and Board committees will also have access to independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company's
expense. The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for
Board members and Senior Management, and the Company reviews
the coverage on an annual basis or as appropriate.

Meeting minutes of the Board and Board committees are recorded
in appropriate details and draft minutes are circulated to respective
members for comments before being approved by the Board and Board
committees. All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary, or the
secretary of the Board committees, as the case may be, and are open
for inspection by the Directors.

According fo the Bye-laws and the listing Rules, any material transaction
that involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder(s| or @
Director(s) will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meefing. The interested Director(s) shall abstain from
voting and shall not be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
fransactions in which such Director(s) or any of his/their associates has/
have a material inferest.

The Company provides Board members with monthly management
reports which confain changes and developments of the Group's
business and help Board members make informed decisions and
discharge their duties and responsibilities as Board members.
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The aftendance of each Board member for the board meefings and the

general meetings held during the year under review is as follows:-

52/
S
Board Meeting
Attendance
HiTEE Executive Directors
hidi) ke Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor
(BIEEREFBIEE) (Vice Chairman & Managing Director) 6/6
HEBEE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung 6/6
BlfEpEes Mr. Lau Kin Fai 6/6
HHTEE Non-executive Directors
TRESAE Mr. Wang Tianbing 6/6
Stuart Morrison Grantt 4 Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant 4/6
BEALE Mr. Yang Han Hsiang 4/6
BIgHES A Mr. Justin Wai 6/6
BIBE S Mr. Low Yiu Fo Richard 6/6
BUHNTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
SBIERE M:r. Fan Chor Ho 6/6
EIRE it Mr. Tse Man Bun 6/6
ETHLE Mr. lung Chee Ming, George 5/6
P2 KE Mr. Li Kit Chee 6/6

ES

BEXE

Annual

General Meeting
Attendance
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(E) DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL

DEVELOPMENT

the Company's expenses.

records of their fraining is as follows:-

Name of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor

(Vice Chairman & Managing Director)

Mr. Chiu Chin Hung

M. Lau Kin Fai

Nonexecutive Directors

Mr. Wang Tianbing

Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant

Mr. Yang Han Hsiang

Mr. Justin Wai

Mr. Llaw Yiu Fat Richard
Independent Non-executive Direciors
Mr. Fan Chor Ho

Mr. Tse Man Bun

Mr. lung Chee Ming, George

Mr. Li Kit Chee

FERERE
RGBT
Reading
Regulatory
Updates

<N

All Board members are encouraged fo attend training courses relevant
on changes and developments to the Group's business and to the
legislative and regulatory environments in which the Group operates at

During the year under review, Board members have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills as listed company directors, and provided
the Company with their records of the fraining received for the year
which comprised attending seminars and talks, and reading legal and
regulatory updates and other reference materials. A summary of the

HEEEE RS
BEAMEI,
EHNE
=t
Attending frainings/
briefings/seminars/
conference relevant
to Directors” duties
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The Company has a formal, considered and transparent procedure
for the appointment and removal of Directors. The Nomination
Committee led by a Nonexecutive Director and comprising a majority
of Independent Non-executive Directors, plays an important role to
identify and nominate suitable candidates for the Board's consideration
as additional Directors or to fill in casual vacancies on the Board and
making recommendations fo the shareholders for nomination of Directors
for re-election at general meetings. According fo the Byeaws, all
Directors newly appointed fo fill a casual vacancy are subject to election
at the next following general meeting following their appointment.
During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Company has
complied with the CG Code save for the following deviations.

According fo the Byelaws, one-hird of the Directors shall refire from
office by rofation at each annual general meetfing, provided that
notwithstanding anything therein, the Chairman or the Managing
Director shall not be subject to retirement by rofation or be taken into
account in defermining the number of Directors to retire. As continuity is
a key factor fo the successful longferm implementation of business plans,
the Board believes that the roles of the Chairman and the Managing
Director provide the Group with sfrong and consistent leadership and
allow effective planning and execution of longterm business strategies.
As such, the Board is of the view that the Chairman and the Managing
Director should not be subject fo refirement by rofation.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-execufive Directors are
not appointed for a specific term but are subject fo refirement by rofation
and re-election at the annual general meefing in accordance with the
Byedaws. As such, the Board is of the view that Non-executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors do not have to be appointed
for a specific term.
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(G)

Mr. Fan Chor Ho has served as an Independent Non-executive
Director for more than nine years. In addition to his confirmation of
independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, Mr.
Fan has confirmed to the Board that in determining his independence,
he has considered his scope of work in the past years, which is
independent of that of the Company, and that his independence has
not been adversely affected by the fact that he has served the Company
for more than nine years as an Independent Non-executive Director. The
Board agrees that Mr. Fan has been demonstrating the aftributes of an
Independent Non-executive Director by providing independent views
and advice and that there is no evidence that his tenure has had any
impact of his independence. The Board is of the opinion that Mr. Fan
remains independent notwithstanding the length of his service and that
his valuable knowledge and experience in the Group's business and his
external experience will continue to generate significant contribution fo
the Company and its Shareholders as a whole. Further, under the listing
Rules, if an Independent Non-executive Director serves more than nine
years, his further appointment should be subject fo a separate resolution
fo be approved by the Shareholders.

The names and biographical details of the Directors, Mr. Chiu Chin
Hung, Mr. Fan Chor Ho and Mr. lung Chee Ming, George who will
offer themselves for election or re-election at the next annual general
meefing are included in the circular to Shareholders contfaining the
notice of the forthcoming annual general meefing.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

The Board members acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

Every Director is required fo know his responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Group,
and should act in good faith, exercise due diligence and act in the
best interests of the Group and its shareholders. On appointment, new
Directors will receive a comprehensive, formal induction on the Group's
business and his responsibilities as a Director.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
("Model Code”) as the code of conduct regarding directors” securifies
fransactions. Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors have
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions for the year under review.

The Board would review regularly the contribution required from a
Director to perform his responsibilities fo the Company, and whether he
is spending sufficient time performing them.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established its Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was first established in 1999. lts terms of reference
the CG Code effective on 11 June 2015
and they have been posted on the Company's website and the Stock

were revised with reference to

Exchange's website.

The Audit Commitiee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process, risk management and infernal control system
of the Group, reviewing the Group's financial information, compliance
and providing advice and comments fo the Board.

The Audit Committee led by its Chairman, Mr. Fan Chor Ho who is an
Independent Non-executive Director, comprises three other members,
namely Mr. Tse Man Bun, Mr. lung Chee Ming, George and Mr. i
Kit Chee, who are Independent Non-executive Directors. Each member
of the Audit Committee possesses in-depth experience in his own
profession. Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Mr. Tse Man Bun and Mr. Li Kit Chee
possess appropriate accounting or relevant financial management
experfise and meet the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
The Company Secrefary is the secrefary of the Audit Commitiee.
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During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Audit Committee
held two meetings. The atfendance of each commitiee member is as

follows:-
Independent Non-executive Direciors Attendance
Mr. Fan Chor Ho

(Chairman of the Audlit Committee) 2/2
Mr. Tse Man Bun 2/2
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George 1/2
M. Li Kit Chee 2/2

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's interim
results for the six months ended 30 September 2014, final results for the
financial year ended 31 March 2015, and reviewed and discussed
with the external auditors over the financial reporting of the Group.
The Audit Committee reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed with
the management in relation fo auditing, system of internal control, and
financial reporting matters. The Audit Commitiee has also reviewed the
connected transaction|s]/internal auditrelated party transaction(s), if any,
entered info by the Group during the year, made recommendation fo the
Board on the re-appoiniment of the external auditors and reviewed and
approved the remuneration of the external auditors. During the year, the
whistleblowing policy and anti-bribery and anfi-corruption compliance
policy were established and they became effective on 30 June 2014.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005. Iis terms of
reference were revised with reference to the CG Code effective on 1
April 2012 and they have been posted on the Company's website and
the Stock Exchange's website.

The Remuneration Commitiee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Company's remuneration policy and structure for
all Directors and members of the Senior Management. It is the Group's
policy fo provide remuneration packages at fair market value in order
fo affract and refain high-quality staff. No Direcfors or any of his close
associate is involved in defermining his own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee led by its Chairman, Mr. Tse Man Bun
who is an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises four other
members, namely, Mr. Wang Tianbing who is a Non-executive
Direcfor and also the Chairman, Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor who is
an Executive Director and also Vice Chairman and Managing Director,
and Mr. Fan Chor Ho and Mr. Li Kit Chee who are Independent Non-
executive Directors. The composition of the Remuneration Commitiee
complies with the requirements of chairmanship and independence of
the Listing Rules.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Remuneration
Commitiee held three meetings and the attendance of each committee

member is as follows:-

Attendance
Executive Director
M. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor 3/3
Non-executive Director
Mr. Wang Tianbing !l 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tse Man Bun 3/3
M:r. Fan Chor Ho 3/3
Mr. Li Kit Chee 3/3
Note: (1] Appointment effective on 1 July 2014

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has made
recommendations fo the Board on the remuneration packages and
discrefionary bonuses of the Executive Directors, Senior Management
and the Non-executive Directors for the Board's consideration. Such
packages include an incentive scheme calculated by reference to
dividends declared by the Company, benefits in kind, pension rights
[or ifs equivalent, where appropriate] and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their

office or appointment, as the case may be.
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Pursuant fo code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the annual
remuneration of the members of the Senior Management by band for
the year ended 31 March 2015 is as follows:-

BEAE

Number of

employees

HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$ 3,000,000 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 |
HK$4,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 ]
4

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
March 2015 are set out in note 8 to the financial statements of the
Company.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 28 March 2012.
lts terms of reference were adopted with reference to the CG Code
effective on 1 April 2012 and they have been posted on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website. During the
year and up fo the date of this Annual Report, the appointment was as
follows:-

- Mr. Wang Tianbing, Chairman of the Company, and Chairman
of the Nomination Committee, was appointed as a member of
the Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 July 2014.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, among other things,
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes fo the
Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board,
assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
re-appointment of Board members as well as succession planning for
Directors to the Board.
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The Nomination Commitiee led by its Chairman, Mr. Wang Tianbing
who is a Nonexecutive Director and also the Chairman, comprises four
other members, namely, Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Mr. Tse Man Bun, Mr. lung
Chee Ming, George, and Mr. li Kit Chee who are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Nomination
Committee held one meetfing. The attendance of each committee
member is as follows:

Attendance

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wang Tianbing

(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fan Chor Ho 1/1
M:r. Tse Man Bun 1/1
Mr. lung Chee Ming 1/1
Mr. Li Kit Chee 1/1

During the year, the Nomination Committee has conducted an annual
review of the independence of all Independent Non-executive Directors
and confirmed that all the Independent Non-executive Directors safisfied
the independence criteria as set out in the Listing Rules, reviewed
the proposed re-appointment of Directors and an Independent Non-
executive Director, and the appointment of Non-executive Directors, and
the Board diversity policy.

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives among Board members,
it is the policy of the Company to consider a number of facfors when
deciding on appointments to the Board and the continuation of
those appointments. Such factors include gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, and length of service, in addition to factors based on the
Group's business models and specific needs from time to time.
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()  SPESEXEED (I)  EXTERNAL AUDITORS
INERZBENE A R R HRARZ R The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to the financial
EERESI3E S4B 2B L2 BED ] statements of the Company are set out in the “Independent Auditors’
FIA - Report” on pages 53 and 54.
BE_Z-RF=A=T—HILFER Defails of the fees paid/payable to the Company's auditors, Ernst &
NV AR YNCIEE Gl oe Sl Young, during the year ended 31 March 2015 are as follows:-
FreBRIT
TIET
HK$000
RER Auditing services 2,563
SRS Non-auditing services
AR Taxation services 118
it Others 262
2,943
) AEWE () COMPANY SECRETARY
NAMEXRESR BREFRKE The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good
ZEAREMEARR UREEBEK information flow within the Board and the Board policy and procedures
REEFENEBE - ARNETEEE are followed. The Company Secretary is primarily responsible for
BBTENZEERRUEERETELE advising the Board through the Chairman on govemance matters and
R ZHESZ ABRIEEE - A7) facilitating induction and professional development of Directors. The
REMERERXESHRE - MARW Board will approve the selection and appoiniment and dismissal of the
EVREE ZOEKEEHEERIE - Company Secretary who reports to the Chairman and/or the Directors.
FREEHNESATNECER IR All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
% DERETEZRIEFIMAEEA Secrefary to ensure that the Board procedures, and all applicable
R RARER - BE_T-HF= law, rules and regulations are followed. The Company Secretary,
A=T—BUEFRFE  RANEER Miss Wong Suk Han Kitty who is an employee of the Group, has duly
WME(RAEEES)ERAET LD complied with the relevant training requirement under the Listing Rules for
RAZ BAIBIFRE - the financial year ended 31 March 2015.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility to ensure that the Group maintains
sound and effective controls to safeguard its assets and the Shareholders'
investments. The Audit Commitiee conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group covering the
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. During the annual review, the Audit Commitiee has considered
the adequacy of resources, sfaff qualifications and experience, fraining
programmes and budgets of the Group's accounting and financial
reporting function. Based on the assessment made by the management
of the Group, the Audit Commitiee considered that the Group's infernal
control systems are effective and adequate for its present requirements.

Inside Information

With respect fo procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

(1) is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Lising Rules and the overriding principle that
inside information should be announced immediately it is the
subject of a decision;

(2)  conducts its affairs with close regard to the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” and “Recent Economic
Developments and the Disclosure Obligations of Listed Issuers”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission in June 2012
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in 2008 respectively;

(3] has included in the "Confidentiality of Information”, a strict
prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information; and

(4] has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group's affairs.
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(M)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board esfablished the “Corporate Governance Policy” on 28
March 2012. The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions sef out in the terms of reference below:-

(1) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(2)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;

(3] fo review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4] to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any| applicable to Directors and
employees of the Group; and

(5] to review the Company's compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code set out in compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Govermnance Report fo be issued by
the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company mainfains a high level of transparency in communicating
with Shareholders. In order to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and institutional investors of the Company, the Company
established a Shareholders” Communication Policy on 28 March 2012
and will review it on a regular basis to ensure effective and timely
dissemination of information to Shareholders and encourage their
participation at general meefings of the Company. The Shareholders'
Communication Policy is set out below:-

(1) Shareholders may refer to information disclosed publicly or
send their enquiries to the Company's registered office or ifs
principal place of business for the time being, for the aftention
of the Company Secrefary. For enquiries on their shareholdings,
Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company's Hong Kong Branch Registrar,
Tricor Tengis Limited.
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2)

(3

(4]

(5

Shareholders may access the Company's information from
its annual reports, interim reports, announcements, circulars
and notices of meetings. This information and documents are
available on the Company's website and published on the Stock
Exchange's website. The annual reports, inferim reports, circulars,
and nofices of general meetings (where appropriate, with proxy
form) of the Company are also despatched fo Shareholders.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meefing and general meetfings of the Company. Shareholders
may also express their views, discuss the progress of the
Company and understand the operations of the Company through
the annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company will review this Policy regularly to ensure its
effectiveness.

Enquiries and questions on the procedures for convening or
putting forward proposals may be put to the Board by contacting
either the Company Secrefary through the Company's general
line at (852) 2882 3632, email at info@fysan.com, directly
by questions af an annual general meeting or special general
meefing of the Company or by post fo the Company's regisfered
office or its principal place of business for the time being.

The Company has ensured that each substantially separate issue will be

dealt with at general meetings by way of a separate resolution.

Shareholders are informed of the procedure and their rights to demand

a poll. The Company will ensure compliance with the requirements

about voting by poll confained in the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws. The

procedures for voting by the poll are set out in the Company's circular

relating to the general meeting and will be explained during the meeting

before voting on the resolutions.
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(N) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Since the Shareholders may convene a special general meefing and

make any proposals such as propose a person other than an existing

Director for election as a Direcfor at such meeting, the defailed

procedures of convening a special general meeting and making any

proposals are sef ouf in a document entifled “Shareholders” rights to put

forward a proposal af a general meeting” which has been published in

the Company's website and set out below:-

(1)

(2)

(3

(4)

According to Byelaw 58 of the Bye-laws, a Shareholder holding
not less than one-fenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting af general meefings of the Company
shall af all times have the right, by written requisition fo the Board
or the Company Secretary, fo require a special general meeting
["SGM") 1o be called by the Board for the transaction or any
business specified in such requisition.

The written request must state the obijects of the meefing, signed
by the Shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of those
requisifionists “Requisitionists”).

The request by the Requisitionists will be verified with the
Company's Share Registrars and upon their confirmation that the
request by the Requisitionists is proper and in order, the Company
Secrefary will request the Board to convene a SGM by serving
sufficient nofice in accordance with the statutory requirements and
in compliance with the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange fo all
the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the request by the
Requisitionists has been verified as not in order, the Requisitionists
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not
be convened as requested.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed fo convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves
may convene the meefing themselves in accordance with Section
74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, as amended
from time fo time.
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(5

(6]

(7)

If o Shareholder wishes to put forward proposals at a SGM
("Proposals”), he can deposit a writien nofice to that effect at the
principal place of business or the office of the Company's branch
share registrar, for the atfention of the Company Secrefary. The
request by the Requisitionists will be verified as stated above.

The notice period to be given fo all the registered Shareholders
for consideration of a proposal raised by the Shareholders
concemed at a SGM varies according fo the nature of the
proposal as follows:-

o the longer of 14 clear days' and 10 business days' notice
in wriing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolufion
of the Company; and

o 21 clear days' nofice in writing if the proposal consfitutes a
special resolution of the Company.

Whether a proposal will be put to a general meeting will be
decided by the Board in ifs discretion, unless the proposal put
forward by a Shareholder is (i) pursuant to a requisition by a
Shareholder to convene a SGM or (i) forms part of ordinary
business to be considered at an annual general meeting as
described in Byedaw 61(1] of the Bye-laws.

Enquiries may be put to the Board by contacting either the
Company Secretary through our general line at (852) 2882
3632, email at info@tysan.com, directly by questions at an
annual general meeting or SGM or by post fo the registered
office of the Company or head office and the principal place of
business of the Company.

(O) INVESTOR RELATIONS

A copy of the constitutional documents of the Company has been

published af the Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

During the year, there was no change to the Company's consfitutional

documents.

4% 201472015
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THE COMPANY

Tysan Holdings Limited has been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong limited since 1991.

Tysan Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”| operate
in Hong Kong, Macau, Shanghai, Tianjin and Shenyang and have
1,500 employees approximately. The Group is principally engaged
in foundation piling in Hong Kong as well as property development,
property invesiment and management in China.

PHILOSOPHY OF RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to fulfilling its corporate social responsibility
through taking info account the needs of ifs stakeholders, the impact of
its operations on the environment and provide development opportunities
for its employees. The Group has incorporated the concept of corporate
social responsibility info ifs business objectives. It considers its employees
are the most valuable resources and will sirive to create a safe and
harmonious working environment and opportunities for development for
them.

METHODOLOGY

The first corporate social responsibility report of the Group is prepared
in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in
2013. The Group has reviewed industry peer's work and conducted a
materiality assessment to identify Key Performance Indices ("KPls") which
are relevant to its operations. KPls are ranked to defermine the most
material impacts according fo ifs corporate strategy and best practice
susfainability guidelines.

The Group has collected data from one of its key subsidiaries, Tysan
Foundation Limited (“Tysan Foundation”] which is principally engaged
in foundation and related works including foundation piling, subsfructure
and basement consruction, site formation, ground investigation, landslip
preventive and slope works, demalifion as well as road and drainage
works for public and/or private sectors during the financial year ended
31 March 2015. The Group intends fo confinue fo report its corporate
social responsibility work progress for the same period on an annual
basis going forward.
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THRIRER 4. WORKPLACE QUALITY
RAMETIRERERETER - = Tysan Foundation places a strong emphasis on workforce development.
T-AF=A=1—R ZEHEIR As at 31 March 2015, over 1,000 employees of Tysan Foundation
A& 1,000 5 EEEEEREHERE in Hong Kong were involved in the foundation and related works, with
IR HPW43%RAHFEIRG about 43% monthly paid staff and about 57% daily paid workers. Their
S7T%BBHIA  FRENGIT : age group disfribution was as follows:-
BE_Z-RF=A=1—HILFEHN Age Group disfribution for the year ended 31 March 2015
FHERE D
Monthly paid staff
FE Age grou
o 18E205% l?8220p
m 21308 Toral 5211030
W 312408 headcount: 311040
o 41E508% 436 H 411050
| 51E605% m 51 to0 60
 615UAL @ 61 or above
RFIA Dally paid workers
FRE Age group
M 182201 H181020
o 21E305% ®21 to30
o1 0% S0 hecTc‘J);gLnt: B3110 40
' B 41E505 . 573 Mo 41 1050
B 51E605% 51060
u 1R 61 or above
—EUE BEELE TSR The labour market for the consfruction industry was highly competitive in
G o ph P L P ) TR AL 2 4 2014. As the business tumover of the Foundation Division increased, its
m- BTESTaR - REESRK - headcount also increased. During the period under review, the number
A RESETHERERE]).78% of monthly paid staff and daily paid workers increased by 19.78% and
%023.49% AHEETRASETHE 23.49% respectively. Its employee tumover rafe was 0.46% for monthly
SRk EARAE0.46% % 0.35% o paid staff and 0.35% for daily paid workers.
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Tysan Foundation has complied with relevant laws and regulations in
the jurisdictions in which it conducts business in all material aspects.
Its Employee Handbook has detailed provisions for compensation and
dismissal, recruitment, working hours, leave policy, conflict of interest,
intellectual property rights, privacy and confidentiality of information,
bribery and corruption, and other benefit and welfare. Tysan
Foundation regards honesty, infegrity and fair play as its core values
that must be upheld by all directors, officers, and employees at all
fimes. The directors of Tysan Foundation are not aware of any breach
of legislations or non-compliance related to equal opportunities, child
labour or forced labour.

During the period under review, the Group has adopted the
Whistleblowing Policy and Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy
which are applicable to all directors, officers, employees, agents,
representatives and other persons acting on behalf of the Group. The
directors of Tysan Foundation did not receive any reports on incidents of
corruption.

The performance and contribution of staff are awarded by a structured
performance appraisal system. Tysan Foundation values the opinions
of its employees and staff are encouraged to make suggestions, ask
questions or report potential offensive incidents to their direct supervisors
through regular appraisal.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Tysan Foundation is committed to providing a healthy and safe
environment for its employees and other people who may be affected
by ifs construction acfivities. Maintaining high standards of health and
safety for all its activities is the prevailing consideration over all other
factors. Adequate and appropriate resources are provided fo implement
health and safety policy o ensure all the prevailing legislation and any
contractual requirement relating fo health and safety are complied with
in all material aspects.

Project managers, safety managers, site supervisors and frontline staff
representatives of Tysan Foundation would discuss safety issues at the
monthly safety meeting. Employees are encouraged to communicate with
the management on sofety issues during the meefing or as necessary. In
addition, subcontractors are required fo comply with health and safety
requirements of Tysan Foundation as safety is an important criterion in
the contractor selection process.
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Occupational health and safety data for the year ended 31
March 2015

Fatalities 0
Lost Days rate 2.8 days per average man day

Reportable Accident rate  0.07 number per average man day

Though accidents are inevitable on some occasions, Tysan Foundation
will continue its efforts to protect employees' health and safety in
different aspects.

During the period under review, the Foundation Division enhanced both
materials and design of the safety uniform for welders. The enhancement
was well recognized by the Hong Kong Construction Association
and Tysan Foundation received a Certificate of Silver Award in the
“Innovation Safety Initiative Award 2014". Tysan Foundation also
modified the identification tag for lifting gears by implementing a double-
deck steel identification tag, which improved the safety management
for lifing gears in the construction sites. The effort was well recognized
by the Hong Kong Consfruction Association and Tysan Foundation had
received a Certificate of Merit Award in the “Innovation Safety Initiative

Award 2014",

Tysan Foundation had also been awarded by the Hong Kong Quality
Assurance Agency with OHSAS18001:2007 certificate and complied
with the requirements of occupational health and safety management
system. Tysan Foundation is also a Green Cross Group member of the
Occupational Safety and Health Council and is defermined to improve
the standard of occupational safety and health.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Tysan Foundation strives fo enhance the fraining and development of its
workforce progressively and promote the safefy and health of those at
work. Furthermore, Tysan Foundation sponsors its employees fo pursue
continuous training fo meet the business needs and to facilitate them 1o
maintain their industry’s qualification. During the period under review, in
additional to training provided by the Foundation Division from fime fo
fime, about 15% of our employee (255 employees attended a total of
about 3,300 hours) of external fraining on quality, environment, health
and safety and management related areas.
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ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

Tysan Foundation is committed to continuous improvement in its Energy
Management System and energy efficiency. In order to comply with the
applicable legal and other requirements related to its operations, Tysan
Foundation provides all necessary resources and information fo meet its
energy fargefs and objectives.

lts energy objective is to enhance the energy performance against the
baseline by reducing the diesel consumption rate by 3% for excavation
cranes in public housing projects.

Energy and material consumption for the year ended 31

March 2015

Electricity consumption of 9.8 kWhs/sq ft
the head office

Diesel consumption for 0.004 litre /Turnover
construction sites

Consumption of paper of  HK$3.0 per sq ft

head office

Both technical and administrative measures have been implemented
fo reduce energy consumption and resources consumption in the
consiruction sites and head office. Energy efficiency level was taken
info consideration when Tysan Foundation considered procurement and
design of new products or services. Document Management System
has been used fo facilitate electronic storage and sharing of documents
resulted in reducing the use of paper.

At the consfruction sites, the Tysan Foundation also seeks to improve ifs
operation on environmental protection and, ulimately, minimize or even
prevent any environmental impacts of its operations, activities, products,
and services. Environmental Management systems has been developed
and implemented for identifying materials, processes, products and
wastes that cause or may cause pollution. Significant environmental
aspects such as excessive materials, construction noise, dust emission,
waste water, construction wastes, chemical waste and use of paper
have been identified.

During the period under review, various measures have been undertaken
fo mitigate the extent of wasfe, noise, dust and water pollution produced
during foundation works:

> Noise enclosure for mitigating noise generated by noisy works

> Water scrubber installed on crawler crane to mitigate exhaust
fume
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>  Wasfe water was reused affer freatment using comprehensive
sedimentation system for piling works

> Steel materials, concrete and rock wastes were reused

Renewable energy such as solar light, solar fan and solar energy
water heater, as well as developing precast concrefe slabs by using
the remaining concrefe for future use were encouraged to be used at
construction sites.

Following the implementation of a series of environmental profection
policies, Tysan Foundation was awarded ISO9001:2008,
1SO14001:2004 and ISO50001:2011

Kong Quality Assurance Agency, confirming that Tysan Foundation has

cerfificates by the Hong

complied with the requirements of quality management, environmental
management and atiained the energy management system standard.

OPERATION PRACTICES

Tysan Foundation has defined criteria for assessing energy use,
consumption and efficiency over the planned or expected operating
lifetime when procuring products, equipment and services that use
energy where such items are likely fo significantly affect its energy
performance. All procurement processes are handled by the Procurement
Department which selects the most suitable suppliers according to the
specified requirements. Regular reviews have been conducted to ensure
the procurement processes are in order.

Geographical location of suppliers

UE

| A SRR O

oADMY AL R

® Number of suppliers
in Hong Kong

H Number of suppliers
outside Hong Kong

ERMERAREENFREETHEHE
BRERRTE ~ 0] ZRRERBTE

POIRER ZAMETERRNER
ISO Q001 EE BB R - NIERMA

BEOREAORENT  BEAMLK
ARG - EEERBRNA RIS
ﬁ%’fﬂﬁ**  MAITEEEEMET
SRLZIHEE M

In order to operate in an efficient and effective manner while complying
with the requirements of all relevant standards, ordinance, sfatutory and
regulatory requirements and codes of conduct, Tysan Foundation follow
ISO 9001 Quality Management System sfricily fo ensure all processes
are executed in accordance with the contract requirements, effective
and reliable services are provided. The effectiveness of the Quality
Management System is being constantly reviewed and monitored while

appropriate training is given to staff who perform quality management.
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Tysan Foundation cares about the community, in particular the long-
term development of the youth. For over a decade, Tysan Foundation
has established a solid partnership with “Youth Outreach”, which is a
non-profit making organization. Tysan Foundation has given continuous
charitable donations, participated in fundraising activities, volunteer
activities and provided skills fraining services to Youth Outreach.

Tysan Foundation's employees may participate in a series of leisure
activities organized by its Recreational Club. Such activities include
barbecue, ball games, annual staff fravel and annual dinner, dragon
boat racing which help building the team and a sense of belonging to
the Tysan Foundation.

Furthermore, Tysan Foundation has developed a rehabilitation scheme,
which provides injured construction workers with immediate and
appropriate specialized medical treatment, so that they may recover
and re-join the work force as soon as possible.
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The directors of the Company ["Directors)’) herein present their report and the

audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2015

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal acfivity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associate are set out in nofes 17 and
o the financial stafements, respectively.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
aclivities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2015 and the sfate of affairs
of the Company and of the Group af that date are set out in the financial

187.

stafements on pages 55 fo

An interim dividend of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share of the Company
("Share”] was paid on 29 December 2014. The Direcfors recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK15.0 cents per Share in respect of the year
fo shareholders on the register of members of the Company on 17 August

2015.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table summarises the consolidated results, assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the five years ended 31 March
2015, as extracted from the published audited financial statements. The
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

-1 —T-pNF —T-=F —T--F —T——F
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
399,394 270,020 348,479 07,953 373,854
5,567,868 5,276,784 5073547 4,130,523 4,131,563
2,635,299 2565507 2,703,578 2,093,376 2,201,044
2,742,074 2481970 2,338,559 2,015,936 1,900,322
190,495 229,307 31,410 21,211 30,197
5,567,868 5,276,784 5073547 4,130,523 4,131,563

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Defails of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in note 14 o the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Defails of movements in the Group's investment properties during the year are
set out in note 15 to the financial statements. Further particulars of the Group's
investment properties af the end of the reporting period are sef out on page
189 of the annual report.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Defails of the Group's properties under development are set out in note 16 to
the financial stafements and on page 189 of the annual report.
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Details of the Group's properies held for sale are sef out in note 21 fo the
financial statements and on page 188 of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Defails of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during
the year are sef out in notes 32 and 33 fo the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws
or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company fo offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold
any of the Company's listed securifies during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in note 34 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, amounted to HK$349,270,000, of which HK$131,200,000 has
been proposed as a final dividend for the year. In addition, the Company's
share premium account, in the amount of HK$563,861,000, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales fo the Group's five largest cusfomers accounted
for 36% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to 14%. Purchases from the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for 40% of the tofal purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital] had any beneficial inferest in the Group's five
largest customers.
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= DIRECTORS

REBEZT-—RAF=A=+—HILFERE The Directors for the year ended 31 March 2015 and up fo the date of this

ERWERE  EFWT report were:

PITES: Executive directors:

Viodii )y ivtas Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor

HREBLE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung

Elli3 Pt Mr. Lau Kin Fai
BHEENAFERZZT—HFLA—BER)  Miss Jennifer Kwok (resigned with effect from 1 July 2014
FHITES ! Non-executive directors:
ZER_T-HFMA-BEN Their appointment became effective on 1 April 2014
FRERE Mr. Wang Tianbing

Stuart Morrison Grant 4& 4 Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant

R E Mr. Yang Han Hsiang

BIEIEEE Mr. Justin Wai

ERREE Mr. Law Yiu Fat Richard

BYFHTES : Independent non-executive directors:

BELE Mr. Fan Chor Ho

I ik Mr. Tse Man Bun

REEFHLLE Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George

T EE M. li Kit Chee

REBARR 2 ERMAATE - BEBELE - In accordance with the Company's Byelaws, Mr. Chiv Chin Hung, Mr. Fan
BOERERETHAESGRE - ¥R Chor Ho and Mr. lung Chee Ming, George will refire and being eligible, wil
AR BREFAS FEESE - offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meefing.

ARNBEWEBEELAE - BIXXWESE - 88 The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr.
FREERFHZFEZFEBIERE - Fan Chor Ho, Mr. Tse Man Bun, Mr. lung Chee Ming, George and Mr. Li Kit
MRAREBE - KRANARBKERE  Chee and as af the date of this report still considers them to be independent.
AT

EEREEEEBAEZERE DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

AEBEERREEEBABZBEHNFR  Biographical defails of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
FORFI138 - are sef out on pages 9 fo 13 of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service confract with the Company requires the Company, in
order fo terminafe such confract, to give a period of notice of more than one
year or to pay compensation or make other payments equivalent fo more than
one year's emolumenfs.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material inferest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Company and its subsidiaries fo which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At the end of the reporting period, the inferests and long positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company (“Chief Executive) in the share
capifal and underlying shares of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFO")), as recorded in the register required fo be kept by the Company
pursuant fo section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise nofified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant fo the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

long positions in shares of associated corporation of the Company:

BEEERRBRERNE EEEL e
Number of ordinary ENERsd

shares held and
nature of inferest

Percentage of
the associated

RAME(BE)BRAT
Tysan Foundation [Hong Kong] Limited -

EA A #5t  corporation’s
Personal Corporate Total  share capital
401 40 40

Note:

1. These shares of Tysan Foundation [Hong Kong] Limited were held by Fortunate
Pool Limited, a company which was wholly owned by Mr. Fung Chiu Chak,
Victor.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the Directors or
Chief Executive had registered an interest or short position in the Shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant fo the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from those disclosed under the heading “Directors” and Chief Executive's
interesfts and Long Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above and
in the section “Share Option Schemes” below, af no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouses
or minor children or Chief Executive or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or any of ifs subsidiaries a party to any arrangement fo
enable the Direcfors fo acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who contribute fo the success
of the Group's operations. On 8 August 2012, the Company adopted a new
share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme’] and the scheme adopted on 28
August 2002 [the “2002 Scheme") was terminated on the same day. Further
defails of the 2002 Scheme and the 2012 Scheme are disclosed in nofe 33
fo the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2015, there was no oufstanding share option under the
2002 Scheme.

From 8 August 2012, the date of adoption of the 2012 Scheme, to 31
March 2015, no share option was granted, exercised, expired or lapsed and
there is no outstanding share option under the 2012 Scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, no rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company were
granted fo any Director o their respective spouse or minor children, or Chief
Executive or were any such rights exercised by them, or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party fo any arrangement fo enable the Direcors fo
acquire such rights in any other body corporate under the 2012 Scheme.
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FERRNIRD RAEBER G < R SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

RBERR  REARBREZS RGBS At the end of the reporting period, the following interests of more than 5%
FIBOHRAFE CBRRERCHEFAEALA

BEITIRASH A 2RI

of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of
interests required fo be kept by the Company pursuant fo section 336 of the

SFO:
R 2R - long positions in Shares:
EARRTE
BITRA
Aotk
AR Percentage of
Number of  the Company’s
Shares issued
=L Name held share capital
Blackstone Group Management LL.C. 1!l Blackstone Group Management LL.C. 11l 655,999 427 75.00
Blackstone Holdings IV GP L.P. 1! Blackstone Holdings IV GP L.P. 1! 655,999 427 75.00
Blackstone Holdings IV GP Blackstone Holdings IV GP
Management [Delaware) LP. ! Management (Delaware) LP. ! 655,999 427 75.00
Blackstone Holdings IV GP Blackstone Holdings IV GP
Management LL.C. 1" Management L.L.C. 11l 655,999,427 75.00
Blacksfone Holdings IV L.P. Blacksfone Holdings IV L.P. 655,999 427 75.00
Blackstone Real Estate Associates Blackstone Real Estate Associates
AsiarNQ L.P. 1 Asia-NQ L.P. 11 655,999 427 75.00
Blackstone Real Estate Partners Blackstone Real Estate Partners
Asia Holding (NQJ L.P. " Asia Holding (NQJ L.P. " 655,999 427 75.00
Blackstone Real Estate Blackstone Real Estate
Partners Asiac-NQ L.P. 1" Partners Asia-NQ L.P. 1" 655,999,427 75.00
BREP Asia Holdings (NQ) Pre. Lid. BREP Asia Holdings (NQ) Pre. Lid. " 655,999 427 75.00
BREP Asio-NQ LL.C. IV BREP Asio-NQ LL.C. IV 655,999 427 75.00
Schwarzman Stephen A. 1! Schwarzman Stephen A. 1! 655,999 427 75.00
The Blackstone Group L.P. 1V The Blackstone Group L.P. 1! 655,999 427 75.00
Tides Holdings I Lid. ! Tides Holdings I Lid. ! 655,999,427 75.00
Tides Holdings II'Ltd. Tides Holdings Il Ltd. 655,999 427 75.00
8007748 Canada Inc. 8007748 Canada Inc. 73,044,520 8.35
Air Canada Pension Master Trust Fund?  Air Canada Pension Master Trust Fund 2 73,044,520 8.35

EE

Notes:

1. ZESHEBEEMNTides Holdings II'ltd. 1.
ZIRERR B 655,099,427 R AR {5
mARED -

These parties were deemed fo have inferests in 655,999,427 Shares by virtue
of their equity interests in Tides Holdings Il lid..

2. Z 7 EBEN 8007748 Canada Inc. 2R 2.
REMR AR A1 73,044,520 R R 10 #E 7 #E

V)
pasy

m °

This party was deemed to have interests in 73,044,520 Shares by virue of its
equity interests in 8007748 Canada Inc..
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2015, no person, other than
the Directors and Chief Executive, whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's interests and long positions in Shares
and underlying Shares” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company that was required fo be
recorded pursuant fo section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a)  Non-exempt continuing connected transactions

On 3 November 2014, Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Limited
("TFHKL"), Tysan Engineering Company Limited (“TECL"), Proficiency
Equipment Limited ("PEL") and Tysan Building Construction Company
Limited (“TBC") entered into a master agreement [the “Master
Agreement”] 1o regulate the business relationship and subcontracting of
works among them (including their subsidiaries) for a term commencing
from 3 November 2014 and ending on 31 March 2017, both days
inclusive.

During the period from 3 November 2014 to 31 March 2015,
the following subcontracting works were enfered into amongst the
companies mentioned above:

[} Tysan Foundation Llimited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
TFHKL, subcontracted engineering and mechanical works of
approximately HK$ 1,800,000 to Tysan Engineering (H.K.)
limited ("TEHK"), a subsidiary of TECL, which was a then
subsidiary of the Company.

(i) Tysan Foundation Limited subcontracted building and construction
works of approximately HK$69 1,000 to TBC.

(i} TBC subcontracted renfal and engineering works relating to
fower cranes of approximately HK$5,612,000 to Proficiency
Engineering limited, a subsidiary of PEL.

4% 201472015
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

fe)

(6]

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions (Cont'd)

Both TFHKL and PEL are subsidiaries of the Company and TECL was
a then subsidiary of the Company when these parties entered info the
Master Agreement. TBC is ultimately wholly owned by Mr. Fung Chiu
Chak, Victor, ["Mr. Fung"), an executive director of the Company.
In addition, TFHKL, being 40%-owned by Fortunate Pool Limited, o
company wholly-owned by Mr. Fung, is also a close associate of Mr.
Fung. Consequently, TFHKL and TBC are connecfed persons of the
Company under Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules. Thus, the transactions
mentioned above constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Disposal of subsidiaries

On 11 December 2014, Tysan Property Development & Investment
Limited (“TPDIL"), o wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, enfered
info a disposal agreement to dispose of all of its equity inferest in and
the rights and benefits in the interestfree shareholder’s loan owing by
Tremend Yield Limited o TPDIL, to Mr. Fung (“Tremend Yield Disposal”).
The Tremend Yield Disposal was completed on 19 December 2014.

On 11 December 2014, Tysan Construction Company Limited (“TCCL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered info a disposal
agreement fo dispose of all of ifs equity inferest in and the rights and
benefits in the interestfree shareholder’s loan owing by TECL to TCCL,
to Mr. Fung (“Tysan Engineering Disposal’). The Tysan Engineering
Disposal was completed on 19 December 2014.

Further details of the fransactions are included in note 41 to the financial
stafements.

Mr. Fung, as an executive director of the Company, is a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules. Thus,
the Tremend Yield Disposal and the Tysan Engineering Disposal
consitute connected transactions for the Company under the Listing
Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

Pursuant fo Rule 14A.40 of the listing Rules, the independent non-executive
directors have reviewed these continuing connected fransactions and
confirmed that these continuing connected fransactions have been entered
info:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3] in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The amounts in respect of the continuing connected transactions mentioned
above during the year under review have not exceeded the annual cap,
where appropriate, for the transactions.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions mentioned above,
the Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the
year under review.

Emst & Young, the Company's auditors, were engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audlits or Review of Historical Financial Information and with reference
fo Practice Note 740 Audiifor’s letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Insfitute of
Certified Public Accountants. Emst & Young have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected fransactions during the year ended 31 March 2015 disclosed
above by the Group [with a copy provided to the Stock Exchangel in
accordance with Rules 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and confirming that nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the continuing
connected fransactions:

(1] have not been approved by the board of directors of the Company;

(2] were not in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group if the fransactions involve provision of goods or services by
the Group;

(3)  were not entered info, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreement governing the fransactions; and

(4] have exceeded the cap disclosed in the circular of the Company dated
28 November 2014

4% 201472015
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules, the following disclosures are included in respect of one of the
Company's loan agreement, which contain covenants requiring performance
obligations of the controlling shareholder of the Company. Pursuant o a facility
agreement enfered info by the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company with a syndicate of banks and financial insfitufions on 8 August
2012 (as supplemented by a lefter agreement dated 17 March 2014,
collectively the “Facility Agreement’) for fiveyear term loan facilities of up fo
HK$500,000,000, an event of default arises if The Blackstone Group L.P.,
the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, ceases fo hold (directly or
indirectly) at least 60% of the beneficial shareholding inferest and voting rights
of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Direcfors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued share
capifal was held by the public as at the date of this report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Defails of the significant event of the Group dffer the reporting period are set
out in note 45 fo the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Emst & Young refire and a resolution for their reappoiniment as auditors of the
Company will be proposed af the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

WANG TIANBING

Chairman

Hong Kong
11 June 2015
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W 5 B ¥ B 3t J INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the shareholders of Tysan Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tysan Holdings
Limited (the “Company”] and ifs subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 55 to 187, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as af 31 March 2015, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated sfatement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors defermine is necessary fo enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these consolidated financial
sfatements based on our audit. Our report is made solely fo you, as a body,
in accordance with secfion 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
fo any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Insfitute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Cont'd)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal confrol relevant fo the entity's preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order fo
design audit procedures that are appropriafe in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecfiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriafe to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2015, and of the Group's financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

11 June 2015
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£ #1 4% & CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

REVENUE
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Other income and gains
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Changes in fair value of

investment properties
Other expenses, nef
Finance costs

Share of profits of associates
Loss on disposal of interests in associates

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:

Ordinary equity holders

of the Company

Non-controlling inferests

EARNINGS PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY

EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

Basic

Diluted

Mz
Notes

Details of dividends are disclosed in note 12

Year ended 31 March 2015 H#E=T

—hAFE=ZA=+-ALFE

—E-RE —PO4E
2015 2014
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$°000
4,836,413 3,504,393
(3,977,313) (2,859,975)
859,100 644,418
42,319 33,161
(42,431) (51,9206)
(46,889) (89,338)
33,121 37,494
(7,303) (23,009)
(14,706) (23,108)

- 3,301

— (11,335)
823,211 519,658
(317,045) (240,694)
506,166 278,964
399,394 270,020
106,772 8,944
506,166 278,964

HK45.66 cents #B4ll  HK30.90 cents 711l

N/A 78R HK30.90 cents &l

fo the financial statements.
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Year ended 31 March 2015 BEZT—RF=A=+—HIFE
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/(EXPENSES)

Other comprehensive income/ expenses)
to be reclassified fo profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
Exchange difference on franslation
of foreign operations
Release of exchange difference
upon disposal of an associate
Release of exchange difference
upon liquidation of a subsidiary

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable fo:
Ordinary equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling inferests

—E-RE —ZT—NF
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
506,166 278,964
851 (3,102)

- 936)
(7,492) -
(6,641) (4,038
499,525 274,926
394,550 265,200
104,975 9,726
499,525 274,926
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B4 B R B # CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
31 March 2015 —ZE—HRE=A=1+—8

fiF  ZE-EF _—T-MmF

Notes 2015 2014
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FRBERE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
M - R NRE Property, plant and equipment 14 391,967 395,006
REMZ Investment properties 15 618,317 532,976
BRAY% Properties under development 16 1,210,048 789,290
FRFIE - A2 REMEWKKIE  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 24 1,918 7,859
—fRlEE A RlER Interests in an associate 18 - =
HitnEE Other assefs 1,350 1,350
A HERE Availablefor-sale investment 19 1,249 1,250
BEBIERE Deferred tax assefs 31 55,829 34,572
BIERBEE Total non-current assets 2,280,678 1,762,303
MEEE CURRENT ASSETS
BRERPYE Properties under development 16 65,506 382,669
FE Inventories 20 14,182 13,609
RAEMBEE 2 ME Properties held for sale 21 646,659 604,640
BEPEHEHNIR RN Amounts due from customers for contract works 2 160,041 107,127
U E 5 R Trade receivables 28 1,016,641 777,797
BN - ] REAMEYFIE  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 24 70,490 74,742
R Tax prepaid 2,175 2,749
el VeS| Time deposits 26 746,432 1,106,219
XBEIRE Restricted cash 26 24,000 3,241
Re RBITERT Cash and bank balances 26 541,064 441,688
BREEE Total current assets 3,287,190 3,514,481
nEaE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FENE SRR KRR Trade payables and accruals 27 923,682 634,075
HipENFIE  EWET & Other payables, deposits received and
NMIEWERIE receipls in advance 28 56,658 37,753
TESMITA Derivative financial instruments 25 - 4,113
REPBBEHNIIEZHIE Amounts due to customers for contract works 22 686,495 739,788
=Y E A Deposits received 29 110,378 200,567
fRRITHEE Interestbearing bank borrowings 30 143,278 252,112
JER TR Tax payable 266,870 107,846
BREaE Total current liabilities 2,187,361 1,976,254
RBEETE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,099,829 1,538,227
BREERRBAE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,380,507 3,300,530

% 2014/2015 57
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548 W% R B # CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 March 2015 —Z—AF=A=+—H
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TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable fo ordinary equity
holders of the Company

Issued capital

Reserves

Non-confrolling inferests

Total equity

gl
LAU KIN FAl
EE

Director

Mz
Notes

30

32
34a)

—E-RE —ZT—NF
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
3,380,507 3,300,530
224,621 333,954
223,317 255,299
447,938 589,253
2,932,569 2,711,277
87,466 87,466
2,654,608 2,394,504
2,742,074 2,481,970
190,495 229,307
2,932,569 2,711,277
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554 B 35 % B #& CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 31 March 2015 BZ-_Z—H&=A=1+—HIEE

Notes

At 1 Apil 2013
Profitforthe year
Oer comprehiense ncoe/fexpenses
for e year:
Bxchonge dference on fnslfon
offoreign aperfons
Release of exchonge diference uoon
disposal of on asocole

Tool comprehensive income/fexpenses|

for fheyear
Parialdsposal of et n subsioris 0
Loon adhonced from g nonconfling nees

o o ubsidiay 17,40
Acapisfon of addifonal inerest n o subsidory 390
Becise of hore opfons 0%
2013 finol dvidend declored ond paid

12

A 31 Morch 2014

R B R AR A

AREERRRREA IR
ibulobe fo odinary equiy holders f the Company

B BRE Ex HER

BET  iRE i L B
i Share Soe  EEEE  Bcloge R Nor  EE&
ksied  pemiom opion  Siooy  fucion  Pelined & conioling Toil
copiel aceourt fesenve resenes 18sene profs Tol inleresls equiy
TEr  TEr  TEr  fEr TEr  TEr  TEr TET Tt
IO SO0 RSO SO0 SO0 HSOD SO RSO SO

(M 3dol)
[nole 34{a)

87260 360322 819 500 24783 140319 233839 31410 2369969
= - - 5 - W0 2000 8944 278964
- - 5 yi (3,884 i (3,884) 78 (3,102
- = > i (934 - 934 - (936]
- - 7 = {820 270020 263,200 976 7492
- - - - - {48087 07 173087 125000
- - - - = = - 200 32000
= - - - - 2989 299 (16916) (49903
20 3,339 19 - = T 290 . 290
- - - - - 803 363 - 868
87466 03,861* =t 5050% 239963F 1585630 2481970 29307 271127
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5% & HE 25 % B) % CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 March 2015 #ZE=F
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Notes

At 1 Aprl 2014
Prof for e year
Otercompighensive income/fexpenses]
for e year:
Bxchonge dfsrence on nshfon
of foreign opeafions
Relecse of exchonge diference
upon iquideion of o subsiciry

Tolol comprehensive income/fexpenses|

for e year
Disposal o subsires 1o
Roapision of addiional ineres n o subsidory 39l
Dividends poid fo non-comrong inferesfs

2014finol dividend declored ond peid

12
2015 irerim dhidend poid 12
Transer fiom refned pmﬁts, et
A 31 March 2015
BUBRRAR L

BE#2,654,6080008 T (=T — M :
2,394,504,000%7T) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

RFRERRRRATIRE

Afributoble fo ordinery equit holders of fre Company

Rt BhE EX R

B3 AER fife e xR
i Shre Soe  EERE  Bchonge  REEA Non  #E&
ksied  premium opfon Sty fuctuafin~~ Refained & confoling Totol
capitl account reserve Teserves reserve prof Totol inferests equily
it Tt T T TE FE Tt TR T
SO0 HKSO0 RSO0 HKSO0D AKSODD RSO HKSODO HKSO0 kSO0

(I 3o
(nole 34a]

87466 963861 = 5000 239963 13585630 2481970 229307 2711277
= = = = - 30394 399394 106772 506,166
. - - - oW I
. . - - v I
- - - - (844 399394 394550 104975 499,525
- - - - - - - Py ey
- - - - - B2 (328 (1754 (15000
- - - - - - - (129250 (129,250
- - - - - [Bden ) - [67487)
- - - - - Ry T - By
- - - 876 - (8784 - - -
87466 563861* -t BeI6t DN 182812t 2742074 190495 2,932,569

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$2,654,608,000 (2014: HK$2,394,504,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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A Bl 4 W B % CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 March 2015 B#E-Z—hAF=A=1+—HI-FE

Wt —FE-HF —T-NF

Notes 2015 2014
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
REKEEB2RERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BRAT R A Profit before tax 823,211 519,658
ERTIIREELRE Adjustments for:
BE AR Finance costs 6 14,706 23,108
s N ARG A Share of profits of associates - (3,301)
HEBE QAR ER Loss on disposal of inferests in associates - 11,335
HEMB AR ZER Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 7 790 =
FEMA Interest income o) (26,211) (23,865)
FREZREKA Dividend income from listed investments 5 - (156)
HERMIEYE - s R RE Loss on disposal and writeoff of items
JBE 2B of property, plant and equipment 7 180 17,332
HE—RRENMR ZEE Loss on disposal of an investment property 1 161 -
e Depreciation 7 78,913 75,858
BRATHESABRZREZ Fair value losses on investments af fair
AVEEE B8 value through profit or loss, net 7 - 427
MESRIEZ A YE Fair value losses/[gains| on derivative
B8,/ (&7 financial instruments / (229) 128
RENMERVELE Changes in fair value of invesiment properties % (33,121) (37,494)
ME - M RREEBRE Impairment of items of property,
plant and equipment 7 2,000 1
HivEERE Impairment of other assets 7 - 20
M E 5 B TR E Impairment of trade receivables 7 387 194
H i EUTORE Impairment of other receivables 7 1,069 Il 217
—HEE AR Z KRR RME Impairment of an amount due
from an associate 7 14 10
861,870 584,471
BRPVERFEHRIFEE Increase in properties under development
ZHRIE - FEE and properties held for sale, nef (168,245) (24,178)
FERLD,/ () Decrease/increase) in inventories (573) 1,555
EFEMAHNTIR Increase in amounts due from customers
2 RRIE NN for contract works (59,771) (7,484)
FEWE Z BRFIE N Increase in trade receivables (243,850) (43,062)
TNFIE - A2 REMEKZKIE  Decrease/|increase) in prepayments,
w4 m) deposits and other receivables 4,848 (28,690)
T E 5 8RN AT 7R Increase/(decrease] in trade payables
i/ (R and accruals 293,128 (3,318)
Hip MR 2RI & R Increase in other payables, deposits received
FAWCRIRLE N and receipfs in advance 19,234 18,145
REFEBEHIRE Increase/(decrease) in amounts due fo
ZFIEEN, CR) customers for contract works (52,545) 211,627
BUETSE M, CRd) Increase/(decrease] in deposits received (90,189) 59,670
RELEEBK RS Cash generated from operations 563,907 768,736
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A B 4 W B F CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 March 2015 #ZE=F
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—hFEZA=+-ALFE

Wit

Notes

Cash generated from operations
Taxes paid in the People’s Republic of
China [the “PRC"):
Hong Kong
Elsewhere
Taxes refunded in the PRC:
Hong Kong
Effect of foreign exchange rafe changes, net

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Dividend income from listed investments
Purchases of items of property,

plant and equipment
Deposits paid for acquisition of items of

property, plant and equipment 24
Additions to investment properties
Additions to other assefs
Additions to an availableforsale investment
Deposit refunded in respect of proposed

partial disposal of a subsidiary
Decrease in investments at fair

value through profit or loss
Proceeds on disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment
Proceeds on disposal of an investment property
Proceeds on acquisition of additional inferest

in a subsidiary, net 39
Partial disposal of a subsidiary 40
Disposal of subsidiaries 4]
Proceeds on disposal of interesfs in associates 18]c)
Decrease/|increase) in amounts due from/

loans to associates
Decrease/increase) in non-pledged time

deposit with original maturity of more than

three months when acquired
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash

Net cash flows from investing activities

—E-RE — PO
2015 2014
FET FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

563,907 768,736
(9,717) (11,860)
(200,803) (323,188
579 11,570
209 4,640
354,175 449,898
26,211 23,865
= 156
(77,875) (60,031
(717) (4,905)
(54,949) (1,780)
— (140)

— (1,250

= (6,000)

= 71,946
4,735 10,173
2,080 -
(15,000 (66,000)
= 125,000
25,856 -
— 13,400

(14) 10,255
137,485 (137,485
(20,759) 56,966
27,053 234,170
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A B 43 B F CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 March 2015 H#E=T

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
Inferest paid on bank borrowings
New bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings

Issue of new shares for share opfions exercised
Dividends paid fo non-controlling shareholders
loan advanced from a non-controlling

shareholder

Increase in loan from an associate

Dividends paid

Net cash flows used in financing acfivities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE)

IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

s
Notes

87

40

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Fffect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances
Non-pledged time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents as stated

in the consolidated statement of
financial position

less: Non-pledged time deposit with
original maturity of more than
three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the consolidated statement of cash flows

26
26

26

—hAFE=ZA=+-ALFE

—E-F1E —F
2015 2014
FHET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
(18,699) (28,077)
284,000 9,248
(502,641) (259,335
— 2,920
(129,250) =
— 32,000
— 7,000
(131,200 (43,633)
(497,790)  (279,877)
(116,562) 404,191
1,410,422 1,018,452
(6,364)  (12,221)
1,287,496 410,422
541,064 441,688
746,432 1,106,219
1,287,496 1,547 907
— (137,485)
1,287,496 1,410,422
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W % R B & STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 March 2015 —Z—AF=A=+—H

FRBEE
NGl S

MEEE

BNFE - 7TE R EA KR

RITER
BRBEE

RBEE
RHBRE 2 5E

e B B IR K IERT R
Hip A FAREKET S

BRBAE
REREFE
BEFE
Rt
BEEITIRA
f

YA
Mg

E\

b )2
FUNG CHIU CHAK VICTOR
EF

Director

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

iFia
Nofes

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries 17
CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 24
Bank balances
Total current assets
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Amounts due fo subsidiaries 17
Trade payables and accruals 27
Other payables and deposits received 28
Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net assets
EQUITY
Issued capital 32
Reserves 34(b)
Total equity

2fErE

LAU KIN FAI

EE

Director

—E-RE —ZT—NF
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
1,040,371 1,011,203
138 3,500
9,340 5,504
9,478 9,004
47,772 144,932
1,355 1,592

125 125
49,252 146,649
(39,774)  (137,645)
1,000,597 873,558
87,466 87,466
913,131 /86,092
1,000,597 873,558
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W% it 7 W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2015 —ZE—HRE=A=1+—8

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tysan Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda.

The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 20th Floor, One Island South,
No. 2 Heung Yip Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal

activities:

e foundation piling

*  property development

O property investment and management

The holding company of the Company is Tides Holdings Il lid., a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands {“BVI") and ultimately
controlled by The Blackstone Group L.P., which is listed on the New
York Stock Exchange.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ["HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Cerfified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, which because the Company has not
early adopted the revised Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“listing Rules"”) issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), are those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32). They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties and derivative financial
instruments which have been measured af fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values
are rounded fo the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and ifs subsidiaries [collectively referred to as the
"Group") for the year ended 31 March 2015. The financial statements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
atiributable to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling inferests having a deficit
balance. All infra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating fo fransactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes fo one or more of
the three elements of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill] and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and |iii] the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment refained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified fo profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assefs or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and new
interprefation for the first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entifies
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments fo HKAS 32 Offsetfing Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting
HK(IFRICHnt 21 levies
Amendment to HKFRS 2 Definition of Vesting Condition’

included in Annual

Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 3 included  Accounting for Contingent

in Annual Improvements Consideration in a Business
20102012 Cycle Combination'
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Cont'd)

Amendment to HKFRS 13 Shortterm Receivables

included in Annual
Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

and Payables

Amendment to HKFRS 1
included in Annual
Improvements 201 1-2013 Cycle

Meaning of Ffective HKFRSs

‘ Effective from 1 July 2014

The adoption of the above revised standards and interpretation has had
no significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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31 March 2015 ZZ—RAF=A=+—H

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS @

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (2011

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Financial Instruments*

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entifies: Applying the
Consolidation Exception®

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in joint Operations?

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®

Disclosure Initiative®

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation®

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions'
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W % W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2015 —E—R&E=A=1+—RH

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED (Cont'd)

Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011)  Equity Method in Separate

Financial Statements*
Annual Improvements Amendments fo a number
20102012 Cycle of HKFRSs!
Annual Improvements Amendments o a number
20112013 Cycle of HKFRSs!
Annual Improvements Amendments fo a number
20122014 Cycle of HKFRSs?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

9 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual financial
statements beginning on or affer 1 January 2016 and therefore is not
applicable to the Group

In oddition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 will
affect the presentation and disclosure of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2016.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these changes.
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2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE

REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED (Cont'd)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected fo be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 15 establishes a new fivestep model that will apply fo revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration fo which an
entity expects fo be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of tofal revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in confract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key judgements and estimates.
The standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements
under HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2017
and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle issued in
January 2014 sets out amendments fo a number of HKFRSs. Except
for those described in note 2.2, the Group expects to adopt the
amendments for the accounting period commencing from 1 April 2015.
None of the amendments are expected fo have a significant financial
impact on the Group. Defails of the amendment most applicable fo the
Group are as follows:

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity must disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation criteria
in HKFRS 8, including a brief description of operating segments that
have been aggregated and the economic characteristics used fo assess
whether the segments are similar. The amendments also clarify that @
reconciliation of segment assets fo fotal assefs is only required fo be
disclosed if the reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision

maker.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application but is nof et in
a position fo state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have
a significant impact on ifs results of operations and financial position.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Confrol is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, fo variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those refumns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a maijority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

[a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

(b)  rights arising from other confractual arrangements; and

[c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's statement
of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company's inferests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Investments in associates

An associafe is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position fo exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group's interests in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position af the Group's share of net assefs under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from fransactions between the Group and ifs associates are eliminated
fo the extent of the Group's investments in the associates, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
fransferred.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at ifs fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

4% 201472015

73



74

TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Ri % i’% l‘ﬁ #I NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 March 2015 —E—AF=A=+—8H

24 EEREFBERMEGE)

A¥EIE

AEENEERNEERRATEE
REME  TESB T ARBIERE -

AHEERFERTS2EE CHANE
FRH%  HEBEMBE BB
ERREMN 2B - SFELFER
BROIEEEIERABEIRINEE
FRBENEIBMSR(ERBEERMS
Wﬁﬂﬂ?ﬁﬂﬁ%tﬁ B384
BNMHARARERESENTS © ]
“m%@ﬁ%ﬁﬁf1%@ﬂmﬂ$

BEXRBENAVEERTS2EER
BEIABEEEMARRIE -

FeMBEL A VEAEGTLTE2
BEREEANRREERRERER
ETEREERARERBELKERE
B —EMI2RE N AIER BN

ak
ge/J °

AEBHETRBERERTRGEES
% RRERABBEATE  AE
ENREBBRREE  RAER LA
BIREUE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Fair valve measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative financial
instruments and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid fo fransfer a liability in an orderly fransaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or fransfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nondinancial asset fakes info account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the assef in ifs highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in ifs highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation fechniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Fair valve measurement [Conta)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
fo the fair value measurement as a whole:

level 1 —based on quoted prices [unadijusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant fo the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

level 3 —based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant fo the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
tesfing for an asset is required [other than properties under development,
properties held for sale, inventories, consfruction contract assefs and
financial assets), the asset's recoverable amount is calculated as the
higher of the assef's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit fo which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds ifs recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted fo their present value using a pre-ax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
fo the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as fo
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an assef other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the esfimates used fo determine the recoverable
amount of an assef, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been defermined [net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)
Related parties

A parly is considered to be related to the Group if:

[a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

il has confrol or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

i the enfity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other

entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third

party;

iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
enfity is an associate of the third entity;

(v]  the entity is a postemployment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group;

(vi)  the enfity is confrolled or joinily controlled by a person

identified in (a); and

(vil o person identified in (a] (i) has significant influence over
the entity or is @ member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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(Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
atiributable costs of bringing the assefs to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after ifems of propery,
plant and equipment have been put info operation, such as repairs and
mainfenance, is normally charged fo the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are safisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capifalised in
the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assefs with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straightline basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment fo its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

leasehold land under Over the lease terms
finance lease

Buildings 5%

10%- 331/%

Equipment and machinery

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Motor yacht 10%

10% - 33V, %

leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least af each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
inifially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or refirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
eam rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially af cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent fo
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions af the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of invesiment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the sfatement of profit or loss in the year of
the refirement or disposal.

Properties under development

Properties under development are sfated at cost less any impairment
losses, which include all development expenditure, borrowing costs and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period.

Properties under development which have either been presold or which
are intended for sale and are expected to be completed within one year
from the end of the reporting period are classified as current assefs.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated in the statement of financial position
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost
of land, inferest capitalised during the period of development and
other direct cosfs attributable to the development of the properties. Net
realisable value is defermined by reference to the prevailing market
prices on an individual property basis, less all costs to completion, if
applicable, and costs of marketing and selling.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

leases

leases that fransfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assefs fo the Group, other than legal fifle, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded fogether with the obligation, excluding the inferest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assefs held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases,
are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance cosfs of such leases
are charged to the sfatement of profit or loss so as fo provide a consfant
periodic rafe of charge over the lease terms.

leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operafing leases are credited fo the sfatement of
profit or loss on the sfraightline basis over the lease terms.

Where the Group s the lessee, renfals payable under operating leases
are charged to the stafement of profit or loss on the straightline basis
over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at inifial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
forsale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
insiruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised inifially, they are measured at fair value plus fransaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asses,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the frade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assefs that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Investments and other financial assets [Cont )

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assefs depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assefs
held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective

hedging insfruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position af fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends on these financial assets, which
are recognised in accordance with the policies sef ouf for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated af the date of inifial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are safisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely relafed fo those of the host contracts and the
host confracts are not held for trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the sfatement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the
fair value through profit or loss category.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont )

Loans and receivables

loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are
an infegral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rafe
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other expenses.

Availablefor-sale financial investments

Availablefor-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial assets
in unlisted equity investments. Equity investments classified as available
for sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Alfter initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the availableforsale
investment revaluafion reserve until the investment is derecognised, af
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in other income, or until the investment is determined
fo be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the availableforsale investment revaluation reserve fo the statement
of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the availablefor-sale financial investments are reported as
inferest income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Investments and other financial assets [Cont )

Availablefor-sale financial investments /Conr @)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value esfimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of
the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and infention to sell its available-
forsale financial assefs in the near term are still appropriate. When, in
rare circumstances, the Group is unable fo frade these financial assefs
due fo inactive markets, the Group may elect fo reclassify these financial
assefs if management has the ability and infention fo hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the availableforsale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised fo profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective inferest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined fo be impaired, then
the amount recorded in equily is reclassified to the statement of profit or
loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assefs
is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the inifial recognition of the asset have an impact on the esfimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enfer bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assefs carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows [excluding future credit losses that have not
yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted af the financial assef's original effective interest rate |i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at inifial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the sfatement of profit
or loss. Inferest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of inferest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are
writien off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been fransferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is lafer recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit

or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont )

Availablefor-sale financial investments

For availablefor-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost [net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below ifs original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that invesiment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value affer
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment is
less than its cost.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised |i.e.,
removed from the Group's consolidated stafement of financial position)
when:

o the rights fo receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has fransferred its rights fo receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has fransferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither fransferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
assef.

When the Group has fransferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
assef or has enfered info a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if and
fo what extent it has refained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
assel. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group confinues fo recognise the fransferred asset fo the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has refained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
iransferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabiliies are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

Al financial liabiliies are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly affributable transaction
cosfs.

The Group's financial liabilities include frade payables, interestbearing
bank borrowings, other payables, derivative financial instruments and a
loan from an associate.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognifion as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by
HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the statement of profit or loss does not include any inferest charged on
these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as af fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are safisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Financial liabilities /[Contd))

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, inferest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured af amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stafed af cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rafe amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any discount or
premium on acquisifion and fees or costs that are an infegral part of the
effective inferest rate. The effective interest rafe amortisation is included
in finance cosfs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment fo be made tfo reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially as a liability af its fair valve, adjusted
for transaction costs that are directly aftributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent fo initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different ferms, or the terms of an exisfing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is freated as a derecognifion of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the stafement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right fo offsef the recognised amounts and there is an
infention fo settle on a net basis, or fo realise the assets and setile the
liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as inferest rafe
swaps, to hedge ifs interest rate risk. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised af fair value on the date on which a derivative
confract is entered info and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assefs when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified o profit or loss when the
hedged item affects profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Derivative financial instruments [Contd/

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective hedging

instruments are classified as current or non-current or separated into

current and non-current porfions based on an assessment

of the facts

and circumstances [i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows|.

Where the Group expects o hold a derivative as an economic
hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting) for a period
beyond 12 months affer the end of the reporting period, the
derivative is classified as non-current (or separated info current
and non-current portions) consistently with the classification of the
underlying ifem.

the host
contract are classified consistently with the cash flows of the host

Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to

confract.

Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are effective
hedging instruments, are classified consistently with the
classification of the underlying hedged item. The derivative
instruments are separated info current portions and non-current
portions only if a reliable allocation can be made.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the firstin, firstout basis,

and net realisable value affer making due allowance for any obsolefe

or slow-moving items. Net realisable value is based on estimated

selling prices less any estimated costs fo be incurred to complefion and

disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract cosfs incurred comprise direct materials, the cosfs of
subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed consfruction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction confracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated fotal cost of the

relevant contract.

Revenue from cost plus construction confracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, by reference to the recoverable costs
incurred during the period plus the related fees earned, measured by
fofal cost of the

the proportion of costs incurred fo date to the esfimated

relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is freated as an

amount due from a contract customer.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due to a confract customer.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposifs, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible info
known amounts of cash, are subject fo an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the sfatements of financial position, cash and bank
balances comprise cash on hand and af banks, including term deposis,
which are not restricted as fo use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to sefile the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected fo be required fo settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of fime is included in finance coss in the statement of profit or
loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred fax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised, either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
fo be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on fax
rates (and fax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking info consideration inferpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences af the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assefs and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Income tax [Contd)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recogpnition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the femporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary

differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused

fax losses. Deferred tax assefs are recognised tfo the extent that it is

probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tox credits

and unused fax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, af the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
faxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred fax assets are
only recognised fo the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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(Cont'd)

Income tax [Contd)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assefs is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced tfo the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
fax assefs are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset fo be recovered.

Deferred fax assefs and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected fo apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is seffled, based on fax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists fo set off current fax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred faxes relate to the same faxable entity and

o RERIAEENRERIBEE LA the same faxation authority.
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Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
n the following bases:

[a)  From foundation piling and electrical and mechanical [“E&M)
engineering contracts

On the percentage of completion basis, as further explained in
the accounting policy for “Construction contracts” above;

(b)  From the sale of properties held for sale

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred fo the buyer;

[c)  From machinery trading

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred fo the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the machines sold;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Contd)
(d)  Renfal income from property and machinery leasing

In the period in which the properties and machines are leased
and on the straightline basis over the lease ferms;

le]  From the rendering of property management services
In the period in which such services are rendered;
[l Interest income

On an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method by
applying the rafe that exactly discounts the esfimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument fo the net
carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(g)  Dividend income

When the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been
established.

Employee benefits

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
o the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-sefiled transactions”).

The cost of equitysetiled fransactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference fo the fair value af the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Employee benefits (Conta)

Share-based payments /Conr )

The cost of equity-setiled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equily, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
fransactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit o the statement of profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except
for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional upon a market
or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesfing condition is safisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or conditions are safisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-sefiled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if
the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the tofal fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-sefiled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not mef. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are freated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Employee benefits (Contc)

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment confracts on a calendar year basis. Under cerfain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made af the
end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave eamed during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operated a defined contribution provident fund (the “Fund”)
for certain of its employees in Hong Kong, the assets of which were
held separately from those of the Group and were managed by an
independent professional fund manager. Contributions under the Fund
were made based on a perceniage of the eligible employees’ basic
salaries and were charged fo the statement of profit or loss as they
became payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The
ongoing contributions fo the Fund were terminated on 1 April 1999,

Following the introduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), the Group has restructured its
refirement scheme arrangements to comply with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Group has secured a Mandatory
Provident Fund exemption status for the Fund and, in addition, has
participated in an approved defined contribution MPF Scheme with
effect from 1 December 2001, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged fo the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assefs of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed info the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries located in Mainland China
are required fo participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
confribute a certain percentage of their covered payroll fo the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly affributable to the acquisition, consiruction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time fo get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capifalised as part of the cost of those assefs. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing cosfs consist of inferest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entfity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency fransactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respecfive functional currency
rafes prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated af the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on sefilement or translation of monefary items
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in ferms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rafes at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are franslated using the exchange rates af the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
franslation of @ non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item [i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Foreign currencies (Contc))

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these enfities are translated into Hong Kong
dollars af the exchange rates prevailing af the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars af the weighted average exchange rafes for the year. The
resulfing exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relafing to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are franslated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the
year are franslated info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management makes various judgements and esfimates based on past
experience, expeciations of the future and other information. The key
sources of esfimation uncertainty that can significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements are disclosed below:

Impairment of frade receivables

The policy for impairment of trade receivables of the Group is based on
the evaluation of collectibility and aging analysis of frade receivables
and on management’s judgement. Significant judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each cusfomer.
If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were fo deferiorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability fo make payments, additional
provisions may be required.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Percentage of completion of construction works

The Group recognises revenue according to the percentage of
completion of the individual contract of construction works. The Group's
management estimates the percenfage of completion of consfruction
works if the value of works has not been certified by the customers at the
end of the reporting period. These estimates are based on actual cost
incurred over the total budgefed cost. Corresponding confract revenue
is also esfimated by management. Because of the nature of the activity
undertaken in construction contracts, the date at which the confract
activity is entered into and the date when the activity is complefed
usually fall info different accounting periods. The Group reviews and
revises the estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs in
the budget prepared for each construction contract as the contract
progresses.

Current and deferred tax

The Group is subject fo income faxes in a number of jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in defermining the amount of the
provision for tax and the timing of payment of the related taxes. There
are fransactions and calculations for which the ulimate tox defermination
is uncerfain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were inifially
recorded, such differences will have an impact on the income tax and
deferred fax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Mainland China land appreciation taxes ("LAT’)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including amortisation of land use
rights, borrowing costs, business faxes and all property development
expenditures. The tax is incurred upon fransfer of property ownership.

Subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to LAT. However, the
implementation of these faxes varies amongst various cities in Mainland
China. The Group has not vet finalised its LAT calculation and payments
for most of its property development projects with various tax authorities.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in defermining the amount
of land appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on management's best estimates. Where the final
fax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the consolidated financial
statements in the period in which such defermination is made.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provided. Operating segments are reported in
a manner consistent with infemal reporting to the Company's key
management personnel as follows:

(a)  the foundation piling segment;
(b)  the property development segment;
[c)  the property investment and management segment; and

(d)  the “corporate and others” segment comprises, principally, the
Group's corporate operation, machinery leasing and trading,
and E&M engineering businesses.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a
measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before fax.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

The adjusted profit/(loss| before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax from continuing operations except that interest
income, finance costs, dividend income, fair value gains/(losses)
from the Group's financial instruments, share of profits of associates
and loss on disposal of interests in associates are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assefs, tax prepaid and time
deposits as these assetfs are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial instruments, inferest-
bearing bank borrowings, tax payable and deferred tax liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Infersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made fo third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the financial results of the
machinery leasing and frading and E&M engineering segments of
the Group, which were reported as separate segments in prior years'
financial stafements, and head office and corporate expenses, which
were reported as unallocated resuls in prior years financial stafements,
are reported in aggregate under the “corporate and others” segment.
Comparative figures of the segment information have been reclassified
fo conform with the current year's presentation.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
Geographical information
(@)  Revenue from external customers
Bk A HEAIHE &e
Hong Kong Macau Elsewhere in the PRC Consolidated
“%-1f -T-PF E-RfF CE-MF -3 CE-ME R CEME
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr Far FEr
HS000 SO0 HKSO00  HEO0 HKSO00 K000 HESO0 AKSO00
3507933 2064944 324695 459479 1003785 979970 4836413 3,504,393
The revenue information above is based on the locations of the
customers.
(b)  Non-current assets
BA il HEAHE &4
Hong Kong Macau Elsewhere in the PRC Consolidated
Z2-nf “EMF Z5-1fF “E-PF -1 CERF CE-nfF CEE
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
FEr AT FEr FEr F&r FEr F&r &
HS000 SO0 HKS000 SO0 HKSO00 K000 KRS0 HKSO00
388,601 414,362 108 310 1,836,140 1313059 2224849 1727731

The non-current assets information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets.

Information about a major customer

Revenue of approximately HK$662,183,000 (2014:
HK$354,277,000) was derived from sales by the foundation piling
segment fo a single customer.
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group's tuover, represents the aggregate

of the value of foundation piling contracts; income derived from property

management; rental income from property leasing; and income from

the sale of properties held for sale, after eliminations of all significant

infragroup transactions.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income and gains is as

follows:

Revenue:

Foundation piling
Property development
Property investment and management

Others

ther income and gains:

Interest income
Insurance claims
Subsidy income*
Foreign exchange gains, net
Fair value gains on derivative
instruments - fransaction
not qualifying as hedge
Management service income

Dividend income from listed investments

Others

*

“E-HF —TNF
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
3,752,214 2,471,234
991,260 Q67,630
13,128 13,181
79,811 52,348
4,836,413 3,504,393
26,211 23,865
3,458 1,484

165 1,295

6,731 319
229 =

676 1,694

— 156

4,849 4,348
42,319 33,161

4% 201472015

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to this income.
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6. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts:
- wholly repayable within five years
- wholly repayable over five years

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

&8

GROUP
—E-RE —T—MmF
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
13,224 21,548
1,482 1,560
14,706 23,108

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/[crediting):

Wizt
Notes
Cost of properties sold
Cost of foundation piling work
Cost of services rendered
Depreciation 14

Minimum lease payments
under operating
leases of land and buildings
Rental of consfruction equipment
Auditors’ remuneration
Employee benefit expense
(including directors’
remuneration - note 8):
Wages and salaries
Pension scheme confributions

—E-HF —TOF
2015 2014
FET FET

HK$000 HK$'000

441,331 504,048
3,433,818 2,272,156
102,164 83,771
78,913 75,858
11,443 13,529
95,523 52,883
2,563 2,978
488,960 439,598
15,095 11,489
504,055 451,087




BREL AT S A (4)

AEE 2 BBADEFEME,GIA)T
NISRRER : (&)

SNEETE R B - R
WE - HEkRERERE

FEE SRR FORE *

H o JE MR IR R *

HERMEYE - #ask
RIEREZBR”

HE—BRENE ZER"

HEMBLARZEE*
ATEER/ (BN) - 38 :
BRAHER ARG ZRE*

THETA-TREREPRS*
REVMZE N FHERS

Hit B ERE"
—fEHE R B2 RFURE

BaRKEHOZHERA

REMEHEIRA
BB RSB HS5,941,00087T
(ZZ—m% : 5,953,00087T)

ERREZRBMA*

o BRHERMEYRE - HELRERE
ZE5185,745 000 8T ABEZT
—MFE=A=t—RIFEZHERE
mRZ[HERAK SN BHEECE
REGABRERZ[HSH - FE]
[ BB AREHN A -
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W% it 7 W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont'd)

31 March 2015 ZZ—RAF=A=+—H

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/[credifing):

(Cont'd)

Kzt
Notes

Foreign exchange gains, net*
Impairment of items of property,

plant and equipment* 14
Impairment of trade receivables* 23
Impairment of other receivables*
Loss on disposal and write-off of items

of property, plant and equipment*
loss on disposal of an investment

property*
loss on disposal of subsidiaries* 41
Fair value losses/(gains), net:

Investments at fair value through

profit or loss*
Derivative instruments - fransaction
not qualifying as hedge*

Changes in fair value of

investment properties 15
Impairment of other assets*
Impairment of an amount due from

an associate*
Rental income from operating

leases of machinery
Rental income on investment

properiies less direct operating

expenses of HK$5,941,000

(2014: HK$5,953,000)
Dividend income from

listed invesiments*

and gains” in the consolidated stafement of profit or loss, except for
loss on disposal and write-off of items of property, plant and equipment
of HK$5,745,000 which was included in “Cost of sales” in the

S
2015
FRT
HK$'000

(6,731)
2,000
387
1,069
180

161
790

(229)

(33,121)

14

(24,389)

(5,041)

—Z—uF

2014
TET
HK$ 000

(319)

128

(37,494)
20

10

(13,785)

(4,9706)

(156)

These amounts are included in “Other expenses, net” or “Other income

consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March

2014.

4% 201472015
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8. EEM=E
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Direcfors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant fo the Listing
Rules on the Stock Exchange and section 161 of the predecessor Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

&5

GROUP
—E-RF Z—T-OF
2015 2014
FET FHETT

HK$000 HK$ 000

Fees:
Executive directors — =
Non-executive directors = -
Independent non-executive directors 1,152 960

Other emoluments of executive directors:
Salaries, allowances and benéfits in kind 42,911 71,761
Equity-settled share option expense - =
Pension scheme contributions 60 104

44,123 72,825
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W% it 7 W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2015 —ZE—HRE=A=1+—8

8. EEME(#E) 8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

ENRENEGUEEMESMT

The remuneration paid or payable to each of the direcfors is as follows:

M - 28
RENAE SAREZfZ Bike
Salaries,  EREZH HES
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
#&  ondbenefits  share option scheme act
Fees in kind expense  contribufions Total
FET FiEr FEr FiEr FéEr
HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
“E-ff 2015
HiTES ! Executive directors:
BRELE Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor - 21,134 - 18 21,152
PHE/ A Miss Jennifer Kwok! - 6,189 - 6 6,195
BEBLE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung - 8,088 - 18 8,106
£y bites Mr. Lau Kin Fai - 7,500 - 18 7,518
- 42911 - 60 42,971
FHTES?: Non-executive directors
ITRERE Mr. Wang Tionbing - - - - -
Stuart Morrison Grant 74 Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant - - - - -
AL Mr. Yang Hon Hsiang - - - - -
LT Mr. Jusfin Wai = = = = =
BREEE Mr. Law Yiu Fat Richard - - - - -
BUFHITES Independent non-executive
directors:
BIELE Mr. Fan Chor Ho 288 - - - 288
A £ Mr. Tse Man Bun 288 - - - 288
ETHARE M. Lung Chee Ming, George 288 - - - 288
Xy e Mr. Li Kit Chee 288 - - - 288
1,152 - - - 1,152
st Tofal 1,152 42911 - 60 44123

4% 201472015
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31 March 2015 —Z—AF=A=+—H

8. EZBME(#E) 8.
—T-mF 2014
YTES: Executive direcors:
REERES Mr. Francis Cheung?
BRELE Mr. Fung Chiy Chak, Victor
Gy Mr. David Chien
PHENE Miss Jennifer Kwok!
BRELE Mr. Chiv Chin Hung
"RLLS Mr. Wong Kay?
fgErs Mr. Lau Kin Fai
REERES Mr. Harvey Jacke! Cheung®
BUFHTES Independent non-execufive

directors:

BEERE Mr. Fan Chor Ho
AR Mr. Tse Man Bun
EfRL Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George
T KE Mr. Li Kit Chee
a5t Total

‘ R MERHEAR R AHITEE(H117
EE|) N_T-WFCH-RER-

? RERFBTESR  R-_T-OFM
A—BREM -

: REFES A RREELEFHERTE
FORZZ-NENA-BER-

g BB AEBRINTES R=T
—mE—A+=B4M -

g HRAEHIRTES N2 —=
FRA—BEM -
RNEEN @ BEEEREKRZENET
Wil E 2 ZHE °
112  ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

B 2
REWHE  ARES BiRe
Salaries, BRES HE

dlowonces  Equitysefiled Pension
#%  ondbenelits  share opfion scheme @t
Fees in kind expense  confribufions Total

TET TiET TET &L THET
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000

- 22,560 = 15 22,575
& 16,745 - 15 16,760
- 724 - 13 737
- 13,537 - 15 13,552
- 6,701 - 15 6,716
a 684 - I 685
i 5,293 - 15 5,308
i 5,517 - 15 5,532
= 71,761 - 104 71,865
240 - - - 240
240 - - - 240
240 - - - 240
240 - - - 240
960 - - - 960
960 71,761 - 104 72,825

Miss Jennifer Kwok resigned as an executive director of the Company
[“Executive Director”) with effect from 1 July 2014.

2 The non-executive directors were appointed with effect from 1 April
2014,

Mr. Francis Cheung and Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung resigned as
Executive Directors with effect from 1 April 2014.

Mr. David Chien resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 13
January 2014.

Mr. Wong Kay resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 1 May
2013.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed fo
waive any remuneration during the year.
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W% 3 % W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2015 —ZE—HRE=A=1+—8

hfuBeEFZES 9.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
AEERINGRFEEARENEES The five highest paid employees during the year included four directors
(ZE—HF: A%ESE)  EMeHE (2014 five directors), defails of whose remuneration are set out in note
N EXPHTES « AFEEHT (=T 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining one
—IF: EFEEREFEIEZHE (2014: Nil) nondirector highest paid employee are as follows:
LN
&=
GROUP
—E-EF —ZEmnmF
2015 2014
FET TET
HK$000 HK$ 000
M - =B REDNR Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4,807 =
BRT IR Pension scheme contributions 18 —
4,825 -
UNEHEERRHEEZHEHE A The above remuneration of the nondirector highest paid employee fell
4,500,0007%LZ 5,000,000 BT ° within the band of HK$4,500,000 to HK$5,000,000.
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31 March 2015 —Z—AF=A=+—H

10. FRfB#H 10. INCOME TAX
BEANGEHRRFANTBELE 2G5 Hong Kong profits fax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2014:
ERBREAN2165%(ZF —MEF: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
16.5%) {E LB o H BILHE fth 3t [= B 2R the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere in the PRC have been
BEM 2 HIAE RARER S G 23R calculated at the applicable tax rates prevailing in the areas in which
TTEBBERGE - the Group operafes.
£
GROUP
—EF-Rf Mm%
2015 2014
FiET FIET
HK$000 HK$000
ENER - Current:
AERRN 2 AR - Provision for fax in respect of profit for the year:
FE - PRC:
BB Hong Kong 18,371 8,913
Hitbi @ Elsewhere 335,623 141,084
353,994 149,997
FEERRRE Overprovision in the prior years:
FE PRC:
BB Hong Kong (39) (4,199)
Hfth b Elsewhere (178) (28)
R17) 4227
EEHIA (2 31) Deferred tax [note 31) (36,732) 04,924
AEE 2 HIAR X B Total fax charge for the year 317,045 240,694
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31 March 2015 —ZE—HRE=A=1+—8

10. FRSHL(E) 10. INCOME TAX (Contd)
ERARARA R R E A B R A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax at the
Rl RE R E 2 BRBRANEN 2 statutory rates for the countries or regions in which the Company and its
HIERXENERHRFE 2 HIARX subsidiaries are domiciled fo the tax charge at the effective tax rate, is
ZEBRIT as follows:
£E
GROUP
“E-IF —_ZmF
2015 2014
FHET TET
HK$000 HK$000
BRAE AT A Profit before tax 823,211 519,658
POREMRETE 2 R Tax at the sfatufory rates 145,467 45,322
TR EBRE Provision for land appreciation fax 196,195 75,159
TIRER 2 RETE Tax effect of land appreciation tax (21,293) 51,705
SLBESFE < BIEHA Adjustments in respect of current
MEL 2 A% fax of prior years (217) (4,227)
/NS eyl Profits aftributable to associates - (545)
BARTBA Income not subject fo fax (4,513) (3,281)
T HRBIE X Expenses not deductible for fax 23,193 30,219
HAEETFEMMHE AR Z Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
AR 2 profits of the Group's subsidiaries
BB FE in Mainland China (22,071) 36,242
DRBEFEZREAER Tax losses utilised from prior years (2,633) (157)
REERBIIEEE Tax losses not recognised 2,917 10,257
BASEEBRTEAE 2BIERS  Tox charge at the Group's effective rate 317,045 240,694
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31 March 2015 —Z—AF=A=+—H

1. RRFEBERRREMEF

ARARABRREE 2 BEZ—F—0
FZA=T—HIFERRALEBRRR
REERRRENEREER 3,906,000
TL(ZF—M4% : 17,005,000 % 7T ) (it

11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2015 includes a loss of
HK$3,906,000 (2014: HK$17,005,000) which has been dealt with

in the financial statements of the Company (note 34(b)).

#34(b)) °
12,05 2. 12. DIVIDENDS
-1 ZTWF
2015 2014
FET THT
HK$'000 HK$000
AEFRMRE Dividends paid during the year:
BE_T-HWF=A=+—BIHMHK Final in respect of the financial year ended
FERPRE —FREBR 31 March 2014 - HK10.0 cents [year ended
10,08 (#HEz=2—=F 31 March 2013: HK5.0 cents)
=A=1T—HILFE : 5.0/44l) per ordinary share 87,467 43,633
FEARR B — SRR 5.0 8L Interim — HK5.0 cents (2014: Nil)
(Z2—Dm%F - |) per ordinary share 43,733 =
131,200 43,633
BRI ARHRER Proposed final dividend:
REARR B — FARE @R 15.0 4L Final = HK15.0 cents (2014: HK10.0 cents)
(ZZ2—m% : 10.081L) per ordinary share 131,200 87,467
AFEERBRN 2 KPR EBEARRF The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of

BERENK B 7 < BORBFAE LHUE -
ZEMHRRLERREN RIS,

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
These financial statements do not reflect the final dividend payable.



. ARFEBERRREGSRET

BRERBHNTDRBAREEBRK
R 15 K F 2 71 399,394,00078
(= & — WM % :270,020,0007%
TL)RRAEENEHTERKRAB
874,665,903 (ZZ—F : T@AR
INKEF1981873,778,232 R )atH -

BE-T-RF=A=t—ALFE
DEREENLI 2 SREARTISHE
et 8% - BRREAARELEE
BEERR -

BE-T-WF=A=f—HIFEZ
SRBARADRBALTEBRER
5 JE {8 4 ) 71 270,020,000 TE &t
o SHERAAZMETYERRR
B AFNEHTERRRE - AHE
SRERBFEHALBY - LARB
SRAE SO [ O 1T (B PR 8 (5 1T
197,300 B B P8 -

13.

R B R AR A

W% it 7 W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2015 —ZE—HRE=A=1+—8

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year atfributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
of HK$399,394,000 (2014: HK$270,020,000), and the number of
ordinary shares of 874,665,903 [2014: weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 873,778,232 in issue during the year.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, no adjustment has been made fo
the basic earnings per share amount presented in respect of a dilution
as the Group had no potentially dilufive ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the calculation of the
diluted eamings per share amount was based on the profit for the
year atfributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company of
HK$270,020,000. The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
that year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued af no consideration on the deemed exercise of share options info
ordinary shares during that year of 197,309.

4% 201472015
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31 March 2015 —E—R&E=A=1+—RH

14. Y5 - #BERRE 14.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
£ GROUP
RER AR
i 58 il
HRET  Equipment  Fumihre AE B 9ERE
Land and and and Moor Mofor  Leasehold &t
buidings  machinery fixtures ~ vehicles yacht  improvements Total

FEL FEn FEL FEn FET FEL FEn
HKS000  HKS000  HKSUOO  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKSDOO

“E-REZA=t-H 31 March 2015

A : Cost:
=) Atbeginning of year 217524 926,100 12,885 20,850 6,098 18,495 1,201,952
HE Addifions - 76,819 168 5,502 - 291 82,780
ERERRIEE Transfer from properties
LE(WEE21) held for scle note 21) 7 = = - - - 7
HHE /Hish Disposals/wrieof - (9517) (22 (63N - - 36,150
HEMBAR(MEE4I(D)  Disposal of subsidiaries
e 411 x - 9 - - - 9
R Exchange relignment 1) (3) - (1) = 2) )
R-E-RE=A=1+-H Ar3] March 2015 217,530 973,399 12,663 20,040 6,098 18,784 1248514
SHERAE: Accumuloted depreciafion
and impairment;
2] At beginning of year 275 739759 10,828 17,228 6,008 10,281 806,946
RERHERR Depreciafion provided
during fhe year 7,983 66,478 723 1479 - 2,250 78913
KRERAERR Impaiment provided
during the year - 242 - - - 1758 2,000
e Diposcs el Coms RY pAe - Ry
HEMBA(MzE4I(D)  Disposal of subsidiaries
[note 41(b)| = = (68) - _ _ 168)
R Exchange realignment 1) (3) - 2 = @) )
R-E-RE=A=1+-H Ar3] March 2015 30,734 780,935 11,271 13,223 6,098 14286 856,947
FEAFE Net carrying amoun';
RZE-RE=A=1+-H Ar3] March 2015 186,796 192,464 1,392 6,817 - 4498 391967
RZB-ME=A=T—H A3 March 2014 194,772 186,341 2,057 3,622 - 8214 395,006
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£E(E)

ZE-PWEZA=+-H 31 March2014

R Cost:
) At beginning of year
AE Addifions
HE /i Disposals/wiiteof
3% Bxchange realignment

RZE-ME=A=1-H A3] March 2014

ZHERAE - Accumulated depreciafion
and impairment:
£ At beginning of year
RERMERR Depreciafion provided
during the year
hE /i Disposals/writeoft
B} BE Bxchange realignment

RZZ-ME=A=1-B A 31 March 2014

REAE Net carying amount:
RZZ-ME=A=1-B A 31 March 2014

RZZ-ZF=A=1-B Ar31 March2013

[ ]
R B R AR A

W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2015 —ZE—HRE=A=1+—8

14.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

GROUP (Cont'd)
Rk iR
& 3 fg
THEEF  Equipment Fumiture i B hERE
lond and and and Motor Motor  leasehold a5
buldings ~ machinery fstures vehicles yocht  mprovemens Totol

TET TET TET TET TET TET TET
HS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HEOD SO0 HKSO00 HKSO00

27528 915630 15,345 23450 6,098 34026 1232072

- 61,750 219 90 . 1,881 63,940
- (51,28) 2679 (2,692 G (37428 (94,084)
I 5 T 2 = 16 2

217,524 926,100 12,885 20,850 6,098 18495 1201952

14768 704716 12,160 17,963 6,008 41995 797,700

7987 61,295 876 1715 - 3,985 75,858
- (26,243 (2,209) (2,446] - (35,680 (66,579
B3 o 13 ) - (14 (33

2752 739759 10,828 17,228 6,098 10,281 806946

194772 186,341 2,057 3,622 - 8,214 395,000

202755 210914 3,185 5487 - 12031 434372
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W % W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2015 —E—R&E=A=1+—RH

14. Y% - WBERBEB(E) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
AEEFAYE  BELRB2 IR The Group's land and buildings included in property, plant and
BFRATHAES  EoMisEm equipment are held under the following lease terms in the following
I & geographical locations:

—E-FF=A=+—-H 31 March 2015
I
PRC
BB Hitrth & st
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total

FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

I EARR AT Medium term leases 182,993 1,967 184,960
REEQ long term leases - 1,836 1,836
182,993 3,803 186,796
—E-mE=A=1+—H 31 March 2014

o

PRC
B H [ st
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total

TET TET TIET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RERFE A Medium term leases 190,451 2,402 192,853
RHEIFEL long term leases = 1,919 1,919
190,451 4,321 194,772
AEFBETFLHEETF  [ERKED Certain of the Group's land and buildings, equipment and machinery
R RITIEAREBERE TRITE were pledged to banks as security for certain banking facilities granted
B2 HA (K 30) » o the Group [nofe 30).
NEBETLERBEIBEEEHEL Certain of the Group's equipment and machinery are leased to third
BYE=F  E—SHEHEHNIB parties under operating leases, further summary defails of which are
HREMIEE35(a) ° included in note 35(a) to the financial statements.
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W% it 7 W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2015 —ZE—HRE=A=1+—8

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

AEEREELHOFAHED 2 RE The gross amounts of the Group's equipment and machinery held for
Rz asE M AR Rt E B AR use under operating leases and the related accumulated depreciation
BT and impairment losses are as follows:

ZZN
e
R RERE

fREFE

. REWE

R R

B
SREHEREEZNEHE)
it
R B AT (H3E 41 o)
AFER

X BE

RER ZREE

&8

GROUP
—E-RF —T-MmF
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Cost T1SESS Q7,764
Accumulated depreciation (76,206) (66,496)
Accumulated impairment losses (182) (182)
Net carrying amount 39,127 31,086

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

£E

GROUP
=3 ks B S
2015 2014
FET TET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
Carrying amount at beginning of year 532,976 487,878
Additions 54,949 1,780
Transfer from properties held for sale (nofe 21) 22,307 6,135
Disposal (2,241) =
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 41(al) (22,530 =
Fair value changes 33,121 37,494
Exchange realignment (265) (317)
Carrying amount at end of year 618,317 532,976
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W % W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2015 —Z—AF=A=+—H

15. REWEE) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)
AEBEZREMFERATHBRE The Group's investment properties are held under the following lease
AEINT terms in the following geographical locations:
“EZ-RF¥=R=+—H 31 March 2015

Y
PRC
i Hitiih @ 5
Hong Kong  Elsewhere Total

FET FHET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

I EARR AT Medium term leases — 140,575 140,575
KAL) long term leases — 477,742 477,742

= 618,317 618,317

“F-NFE=A=1+—H 31 March 2014
H
PRC
5% Hipth[m BET
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
FET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000
FERFR 4 Medium term leases 22,530 147 566 170,096
REIFEA long term leases = 362,880 362,880

22,530 510,446 532,976
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15. REWME(E)

ARBERENFBRUNTEAMLRE
EOENREEME(CT—MF : I
REBZBENE - URFEAMZH
ENEUAREENR) - ARRESR
BEEDMEZHE  BEMEARKER
BMEDRMBEAE  ABEREE-
ARBRENFKEBLEXAERY
XhEMRBHEENEBERARAR
FEER-_F-—AF=-A=t—RHE
HritER618,317,0008 (= —K
F:532,976,00087T) - ARAEF
BEQREZRMIIBEENEELASE
WE 2 EREE - KB ZIZEBREMS
B 22 BUMNERREAIREER
RRE - ARBEEHEFMARBTH
RERMBREETHERRAERR
FfbEAREGEMETAR o

REVMEDNRELEHOEETF =
71 BRBE ZE— S FBHNM R
FKMaE 35(a)

R-Z—ME=A=+—H KEEH—
HERENMECER T —BRITEARE
SERUBTEE 2EAMEI0) -
SR E Y 2 BB E AR Tremend Yield
HE(GEE B4 (o) TS BB (M3
41(a)) °

R B R AR A

W% it 7 W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2015 —ZE—HRE=A=1+—8

. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

The Group's invesiment properties consist of commercial properties and
residential properties in Mainland China (2014: commercial property
in Hong Kong, and commercial properties and residential properties in
Mainland China). The directors of the Company have defermined that
the investment properties consist of two classes of asset, i.e., commercial
and residential, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of each
property. The Group's investment properties were revalued on 31
March 2015 based on valuations performed by Vigers Appraisal and
Consulting Limited, a firm of independent professionally qualified property
valuers at HK$618,317,000 (2014: HK$532,976,000). Each year,
the Company's directors decide fo appoint which exteral valuer to
be responsible for the external valuations of the Group's properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. The Company's
directors have discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is performed for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary defails of which are included in nofe 35(al to
the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2014, one of the Group's invesiment properties was
pledged to a bank as security for a banking facility granted fo the
Group [nofe 30). The charge over this investment property was released
before the Tremend Yield Disposal [as defined in note 41(a) below)
during the year [note 41{al).
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15. REWX(E) 15.

RFEZREE

TERIIFARERENE ATEHE
ZRHE

DTIEE 2 &E M Recurring fair value

NF{ERE measurement for:
[EESZES Commercial properiies
EEME Residential properies

ATIEE 2 &8 Recurring fair value

AHERE measurement for:
[SE2YES Commercial properties
EEmE Residential properties

RAEER F1EEF2EZHLE
ERMAVEESE AFE3ELES
AZEH(ZF—TF : &)
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

Fair valve hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group's investment properiies:

R-Z-RF=A=t—H
ERAUT 8B BATE
Fair value measurement

as at 31 March 2015 using

BRME  BATEE EATUER
H®E BAHE WARE
(F18) (528) (%£38)
Quoted  Significant  Significant
pricesin  observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
T TFET FiET FAET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
- - 103,042 103,042
- - 515,275 515,275
- - 618,317 618,317
R_ZE-MFE=A=+—H
ERATBUEERTE
Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2014 using
EEMS  BAREBR BEATAEHER
WE WA BARE
(B1[E) (F2E) (£3E)
Quoted  Significant  Significant
pricesin  observable  unobservable
acfive markets inputs inputs -
[Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
T AT THT THT
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000
- — 42,522 42,522
= — 490,454 490,454
- — 532,976 532,976

During the year, there were no fransfers of fair value measurements

between level 1 and Llevel 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3

(2014: Nil).



. REWEE)

A FEERFHE(E)

BRREIBATFESARBLATE

ATEZEEK

R-E—=FNA—-BZKEE
NE
BRAFAREEZYEME21)

BE 5 %

RZZE—NFE=A=+—H
R=ZT—NFNA—HZERAE
RE
ERERAHHEE 2 mEFE21)
&
HE—FM B AR (KFE41(a)

BE 5 %

RZZE-—RE=A=+t—BZKAE
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Fair valve hierarchy (Contd)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within level 3 of

the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at 1 April 2013

Additions

Transfer from properties held for sale (nofe 21)
Fair value changes

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 March 2014
and 1 April 2014
Additions
Transfer from properties held for sale (nofe 21)
Disposal
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 41(al)
Fair value changes
Exchange realignment

Carrying amount af 31 March 2015

R B R AR A

. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

mENE  EEUE
Commercial  Residential
properties properties
FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$°000
22,530 465,348
= 1,780

6,135 =
14,058 23,436
(201) (110)
42,522 490,454
= 54,949
22,307 =
= (2,241)
(22,530) =
60,815 (27,694)
(72) (193)
103,042 515,275
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15. REWFEE) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

NP EEZRZE(E) Fair valve hierarchy (Conta))
AT REEMRGEMAGETERE Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs
PRABBIHE to the valuation of investment properties:
EATTEER
BARE
hER % Significant
Valuation unobservable SE (METIE)
fechniques inputs Range (weighted average|
—E-1f —T-mEF
2015 2014
WS PASESYES BRLEEE ARMERARLE TER  20%FE-1%-29%)
Commercial properly Direct comparison Property-specific N/A 20% 10-1%
in Hong Kong approach adjustment rafe [-29%)
I E R BEYR BRIEE ARNZARL X 40% ZE-3% (-5%) 40%ZE-3%(-14%)
Commercial properties Direct comparison Property-specific -40% 1o -3% 40% 10 -3%
in Mainland China approach adjustment rafe (-5%) [14%]
IRRBA FENE BRLEBE ARMRARLE -10% Z 2% (-8%) 5% E 2% (-4%)
Residential properties Direct comparison Property-specific -10% to 2% -5% to 2%
in Mainland China approach adjustment rafe (-8%) [-4%)

AEERENEZ A HEDERERL
V& 2ERAMSRALENEZE
HEBLRAKERENRETIHE
flritmemiE g BENEEE
REMET - AV EAEEFBL XS
RASEHAFEASH T AEREA
YEELABRAE -

The fair value of the Group's investment properties is determined using
the direct comparison approach by reference fo the recent sales price of
comparable properties in the open market, adjusted for size, location,
floor level and quality of the Group's invesiment properties compared fo
the recent sales. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to
the unobservable input that the higher the adjusiment rate will result in a
higher fair value.
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16. BREPYE

FOEF

AEERE
BRERAREEZME(ME21)
B 5 %

FRET
ANEARE

e D)

BB A R

I EMRLD - HARA

HBARZRHK
HiE*

RHBRE 2 FR
—FRIY - DR
mBRE B

# RIZE-—REF=RA=+—-BZHAE

BERETHRINBARRZKAMEZ
FERE L 170,549,0008 (=%
— P04 178,794,000 7T ) » Jhik
ARNBARKE 2 &BAEEET
2ENBREFEZHBEELR
TEEE - FR REBRERSD
8,245,000 (=T —M4E : FE
[&518 17,507,000 7T) -

Current portion
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16. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

&8
GROUP

—E-—RE —ZT—NF

2015 2014

FET FET

HK$000 HK$000

Balance at beginning of year 1,171,959 1,031,826
Additions during the year 517,051 420,351
Transfer fo properties held for sale (note 21) (413,000 (280,614)
Exchange realignment (45¢) 396
Balance at end of year | 2745554 ¥ 0512

(65,506) (382,669

Non-current portion 1,210,048 789,290

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NG

COMPANY
—E-RF —T-MmF
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Unlisted shares, at cost 16,721 16,721
Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,194,199 1,173,276

(170,549)  [178.794)

1,023,650 094,482

Amounts due to subsidiaries 47,772) (144,932
Portion due within one year,
classified as current liabilities 47,772 144,932

1,040,371 1,011,203

The provision for impairment as at 31 March 2015 included
impairment provision of approximately HK$170,549,000 (2014:
HK$178,794,000) for amounts due from subsidiaries and was
defermined on the basis of the amounts recoverable from subsidiaries
with reference to the fair value of the underlying assets held by
the subsidiaries. During the year, the provision for impairment was
decreased by approximately HK$8,245,000 (2014: impairment loss of
HK$17,507,000).
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17. MBARER (&)

MEARZ KA KRB R ZHRIRE
REERRRE - stARBREZHE
ARIBHEARERF LN —FREE
Mt AFERBEE < M B AREFAIH
AREREARES —FAEER - ALK
RARRAEMBAREL 2RE

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

The amounts due from and fo subsidiaries are unsecured and interest

free. The balances with subsidiaries included in the current liabilities are

repayable on demand or within one year whereas the balances with

subsidiaries included in non-current assets are not expected to be repaid

within one year from the end of the reporting period and are considered

as part of the Company's investments in ifs subsidiaries.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ﬁ-j\ o

FEMBARZFEMAT -
By
AR ERn
Place of
incorporation/
£ registration
Name and business

RANWE(BE)BRAR
Tysan Foundation {Hong Kong) Limited

RAMETRERRR(MF2K3)
Tysan Foundation Limited fnofes 2 and 3)

REREORF)ERRA(HZ2)
Tysan Consfruction [Macau) Limited
[note 2)

RAUWBERRAR(MZ2L3)
Tysan Machinery Hire Limited
(notes 2 and 3)

AR TIR(ER)BRARME2)
Tysan Contractors [Hong Kong| Limited
[note 2]
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BB
Hong Kong

BE EBERS1,000,00077T

Hong Kong

RP
Macau

B
Hong Kong

Bt
Hong Kong

ERTRY,/
BREMER
Issued share/
paid up registered
capital

TR 10078 T
Ordinary HK$100

Ordinary
HK$51,000,000
iEER 3,000,000%7C
Deferred
HK$3,000,000

L@ 25,0008 T
Ordinary
MOP25,000

LAk 10,000 87T
Ordinary

HK$10,000

R 200,000 7T
Deferred
HK$200,000

TR 27T
Ordinary HK$2

NGl
ZBERDL
Percentage of equity
attributable to ITEXH
the Company Principal activities
“Z-1fF “T-DF
2015 2014
60 60 RERK
Investment holding
60 60 ESTERRYE

60

60

60

Foundation piling
and sife invesfigation

60 MRS
Foundation piling

60 HHES
Machinery hiring

60 HEEER
FR AR RS

Project management
and provision of
consultancy services
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17. MIEBARRER (&) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

TEMBARZFHEWT : (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

B e
AR EE R ERTRG/ ZNNGI) S
Place of BREMER ZBREBDL
incorporation/ Issued share/  Percentage of equity
% registration paid up registered attributable to TEXK
Name and business capifal the Company Principal activities
“Z-1F —T-IF
2015 2014
RAMBEL NIRERRR(M72) BA LRk 2BT 60 60 WEITER
Tysan Foundation Geotechnical limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 BRHE
(note 2) Foundation piling
and site investigation
FERBIRERARAHZ2) B L@k 24,480,000/8 7T 100 100 BEESKEER
Proficiency Equipment Limited fnofe 2) Hong Kong Ordinary Machinery
HK$24,480,000 hiring and frading
TETREEBRARMZ2) B ERR2AT 100 100 REIRKRBER
Proficiency Engineering Limited (nofe 2/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 BWEE
Provision of
engineering services
and machinery hiring
RRER DR (HiE2) BE ERR2AT 100 100 BERESKER
Lion Bright Limited fnote 2/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Machinery
hiring and frading
ERBRARNT2) B BBk 25,0002 100 100 REIERRBER
Mac Proficiency limited fnote 2 Macau Ordinary WHEE
MOP25,000 Provision of
engineering services
and machinery hiring
RAETRBRAA(MZS) BE LR 10078 100 100 TEER
Tysan Management Limited fnofe 3/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 Corporate
EXRR 2T management
Deferred HK$2
HMERERAR BE ERR2BT 100 100 tXRE
Sun Sparkle Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Corporate financing
SREBLF BE LR 1 BT 100 100 tERE
Great Unison limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$ 1 Corporate financing
RAREERARAFA([RAREER]) BE ERR2AT 100 100 REEKR
Tysan Investment Limited {'TIL') Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment holding

4% 201472015
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TEMBARZFHEWT : (£)

AR,
EAL)NE=E ik
Place of
incorporation/
£ registration
Name and business
RAMEZRREBRAR([RANE]) BE
Tysan Property Development Hong Kong
& Investment Limited (“TPDIL")
RAREERRA([RARE]) B
Tysan Construction Company Hong Kong
limited ("TCCL')
Tremend Yield Limited (#7i26) i
fnote 6] Hong Kong
EEREBRRA(HZ2) B
Sure Faith Investment limited (nofe 2] Hong Kong
BERUERRRA(HZ2) BE
Duncan Propeties Limited (nofe 2 Hong Kong
Dragonhill limited (4772 2) BB
[note 2) Hong Kong
RIRREBRAR(ME2) 353
Great Regent Invesiments Limited fnofe 2/ Hong Kong
RAFWERE (K2 BRAF hE /B,
(B2 R 4) PRC/
Tysan Property Development (Tianjin) Mainland China
Compoany limited (nofes 2 and 4)
Cottontree Pacific Limited RBRLEE
BV
Tysan Foundation Holdings limited (4732 2) BRE
(note 2) Bermuda

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

ERITRS/
BREMER
Issued share/
paid up regisfered
capital

ERR2ET
Ordinary HK$2

BT 27T
Ordinary HK$2

LR 208 T
Ordinary HK$20
BT 28T
Ordinary HK$2
BT 27T
Ordinary HK$2
BT 27T
Ordinary HK$2
LR 2B
Ordinary HK$2

15,500,000 7T
US$15,500,000

BRI BT
Ordinary HK$ 1
EER0.1 BT

Ordinary HK$0. 1

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

NGl
ZBREBDL
Percentage of equity

attributable to

the Company
—E-RE —TF
2015 2014
100 100
100 100
— 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

Principal activities

BEEK

Investment holding

RERK

Invesiment holding

NERRE
Property investment
REME
Property holding
REER
Investment holding
REER
Invesiment holding
REER LA
HE R HRS
Investment holding
and provision of

sales and
markefing services

VES
Property
development

RERK
Investment holding
RERK

Investment holding
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TEMBARZFHEWT : (&)

=t

Name

REBRRAR(MHZ2LK7)
Sparkle Key limited (nofes 2 and /]

FAFWE (RS )BRAR
(Wiat2 -4 7k8)

Tysan Land (Shenyang) Limited
fnotes 2. 4 7 and 8)

R B R AR A
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

B e
kg R
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Bt
Hong Kong

B/
FREIAH

PRC/

Mainland China

FHEHE(LB)BRARMZ2RS) HE,/ TER

Tysan Land (Shanghai] Limited
(notes 2 and 5)

ZAIRBBAERLR(REIERE])

(HaE2 R 6)
Tysan Engineering Company
Limited ("TECL") fnotes 2 and &)

FATR(ER)BRAR(MZ2K6)

Tysan Engineering (H.K.)
Company limited (nofes 2 and &)

EEBRERAR(MZ 1£2)
CG (HY) International Limited
[notes 1 and 2)

Allbright Invesiment Limited (72 2)
[note 2)

lronwood Pacific Limited (4752 2)
[note 2)

Federated Resources Limited (f/7£2)
[note 2)

Beneficial Enterprises Limited (i 2)
[note 2)

PRC/
Mainland China

Bt
Hong Kong

30
Hong Kong

Bt
Hong Kong

RERIES
BVI

RERLRS
BVI

RERZHS
BVI

REEZRS
BVI

ERTRG/
BREMER
Issued share/
paid up registered
capital

E&ER 10,0008
Ordinary HK$10,000

58,300,000 7T
US$58,300,000

20,500,000% 7T
US$20,500,000

L& 10,0007
Ordinary
HK$10,000

Ei@Mk 20,600,000 7T

Ordinary
HK$20,600,000

LR 1008
Ordinary HK$100

L@R100%T
Ordinary US$100
ERR100%T
Ordinary US$100
L@k 100%T
Ordinary US$100
L@k 100%T
Ordinary US$100

ZNNGI) S
ZBREBDL
Percentage of equity
atfributable to
the Company

—E-hE —E-MmF
2015 2014
100 97
100 97
100 100
- /70

- 70
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities

BAEKR

Invesiment holding

E
Property
development

NEER
Property
development

RERK

Invesiment holding

R R
Provision of
electrical and
mechanical services

REEKR

Invesiment holding

REER

Invesiment holding

REER

Invesiment holding

BAEKR

Invesiment holding

BEEKR

Invesiment holding
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17. MIEARRER (&) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

TEMBARZFHEWT : (£)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

132

AL,
Atk e ERTRG/ ENNG) 3
Place of BREMER ZBERDL
incorporation/ Issued share/  Percentage of equity
£ registration paid up registered attributable to TEXH
Name and business capifal the Company Principal activities
“Z-1f —T-MF
2015 2014
ARRERRAR(M22) BE ERR2BT 100 100 REER
Red Shine Invesiment Limited fnofe 2/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment holding
BEREBRRR(HE2) BE ERR2ET 100 100 NERE
Hiat Invesiment Limited /nofe 2 Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Property investment
BB NR(HE2) BE EER 1008 100 00  REERIRM
Great Prosper limited fnofe 2) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$ 100 HE RE R
Investment holding
and provision of
sales and
markefing services
ENBER DR (AL 2) i B2 100 100 KREER
Carriway limited fnofe 2) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Invesiment holding
BRITARAR(HE2) ) EiEk 28T 100 100 KREZER
Fund House limited fnofe 2) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment holding
BANEER(LE)ARAR E/ B 500,000%7 100 100 VESS:
(B2 R 4) PRC/ US$500,000 Property
Duncan Property Management [Shanghai] - Mainland China management
Company limited fnofes 2 and 4)
DEEREREHERBLEERAR  TE/ TEAM 5,000,000% 7T 100 100 NERE
(Hiiz2k4) PRC/ US$5,000,000 Property
Shanghai China Garden Intemational Mainland China invesiment
Real Estate Development & Management
Company limited (nofes 2 and 4)
DEREESEUHERBLEERAT T8/ TEAM 10,000,000 7T 100 100 NEER
(B2 R4) PRC/ US$10,000,000 Property
Shanghai Changning Duncan Property Mainland China development
Development Company Limited
(notes 2 and 4)
HBERRUESARRAT hE/ B, 100,000 7T 100 100 fREDZEHARSE
(Hiz2Rk5) PRC/ US$100,000 Provision of property
Shanghai Duncan Property Consulting Mainland China consuliancy services

Company Limited fnofes 2 and 5)
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17. BBz (E)

Hit

1.

ZARLBHERERARATNER
AERREARAR AT 1E
ZAt+N\BRER -

HRMBLAHEA

EEROEEERRE(NEAR
A RS Z A k/%ﬂ:
ZEMNHBEERSFSEZEERR
B2 ETEFRFTRERIN) - ERE
PREAE LEE - BN EREE
RWEERRE 2 EMWAKRGGER
M2 BERARI  EZ AR 2 LB
BiEFHANERBRRE LR SR
BRED L 10,0008 7T) °

*ETF*I&@&H%?%?I\F‘?

$E'<TFEP BA R AN

—mEF+ZATAR - FEE
ﬁ%??ﬁﬁl&ﬂ&%&ﬁmg Al
K Tremend Yield Limited 2 2 ZBA%HE o
BRANERRE—FFBERITE
BRMTE4T -

R-ZE—aF¥=A+N\R" $’AETZ
2EWBARRAHERELNBR
BEFRATZIHFE Hxﬂxi”ﬁ(ﬁﬁ)fﬂé
HEERNBZEIN%RE  REB
15,000,000 7T - WE=RE B
HERARREZENBARRAR
WE(ER)BRARKATAMEL
2EWBAT - BRAWE 2 E—FF
BER I BT 2 M 5E 39(0) ©

FR EEZRCEEBEEM
& 7K 1£58,300,000% T & m =
108,300,000% 7T A& fir 1 B &
GeERMERETRRHES - B
b - AEECREAHERREHRA
Pfi /&8 2 @) 4F i 49 390,000,000 7% 7T
HHE - BREARATA - REHRIE -
R-ZF—HEMNA - FHEAEMD
BT HERLE -
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Nofes:

1.

Iis name was changed from China Garden Intemational Limited to CG
[HY) International Limited effective on 18 March 2015

Held through subsidiaries.

The deferred shares carry no rights fo dividends [other than a fixed
non-cumulative dividend at the rate of 5% per annum for any financial
year during which the net profit of the relevant company available for
dividends exceeds HK$1 billion], no rights to vote at general meetings,
no rights fo receive any surplus on a refurn of capital on a winding-up
[other than the amount paid up on such shares, provided that the holders
of the ordinary shares of that company have been distributed in such a
winding-up of a sum of HK$1,000 billion in respect of each ordinary
share).

These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enferprises under
the PRC law.

These entities are registered as Sinoforeign joint ventures under the PRC
law.

On 19 December 2014, the Group disposed of ifs entire equity interests
in TECL and its subsidiaries, and Tremend Yield Limited. Further details of
the disposals are sef out in nofe 41 to the financial statements.

On 18 March 2015, TPDIL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
acquired an additional 3% equity interest in ifs subsidiary, Sparkle Key
Limited from the then non-comro”ing shareholder of Spork|e Key Limited,
at a consideration of HK$15,000,000. Sparkle Key Limited and its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Tysan land (Shenyang) Llimited, became
wholly-owned subsidiaries of TPDIL upon complefion of such acquisifion.
Further defails of the acquisifion are set out in nofe 39(a) fo the financial
stafements.

During the year, the board of directors authorised to increase ifs
registered capital from US$58,300,000 to US$108,300,000 for
financing the construction works relating fo properiies under development
in Shenyang, the PRC. Accordingly, the Group had authroised but not
contracted for commitments in respect of capital confributions to the
subsidiary amounting to approximately HK$390,000,000 at the end
of the reporting period. Subsequent fo the end of the reporting period,
in April 2015, the increase of registered capital was approved by the
relevant government authority.
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the

opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or

formed a substantial portion of the net assefs of the Group. To give

details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling

interests are set out below.

The information set out below represents the non-controlling interest in

Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiaries

(collectively, “Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Group”).

Percentage of equity inferest held by
non-confrolling interests

Profit for the year allocated fo
non-controlling interests

Dividend paid fo non-controlling interests

loan advanced from a non-controlling
shareholder (note|

Accumulated balances of non-controlling

interests af the end of the reporting period

—E-EF —ZE—mF
2015 2014

40% 40%
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$000
104,599 3,415
124,000 —
32,000 32,000
189,101 208,502

Nofe: The balance is unsecured, interestfree and not repayable within one year

from the end of the reporting period.
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17. MBARER(E) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
TRIFRRWE(FE)EBZUEE The following tables illusirate the summarised financial information of
HEE - KRB SR ETARREH Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Group. The amounts disclosed are
ATEUE - before any infercompany eliminations:

=T E R P

200115 2014
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$000
Wz Revenue 3,752,214 2,471,234
BHEY R Total expenses, net (3,490,717) (2,342,137)
FEiEA Profit for the year 261,497 129,097
FRAETHEKREE Total comprehensive income for the year 261,497 129,097
MENEE Current assets 1,784,361 1,559,760
FERBEE Non-current assets 157,819 159,653
TEaE Current liabilities (1,457,608) (1,178,074)
FERBEE Non-current liabilifies (91,819) (100,083
RELEEB R MEFHE Net cash flows from operating acfivities 327,733 463,000
KA/ (AR)REER RS MEFE Net cash flows from/(used in] investing activities 46,225 (141,228)
ARBEEG R M2 FHE Net cash flows used in financing acfivities (324,400) [73,297)
Re hERBREIEEEMNFE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 49,558 248,475
—E B E N BES 18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE
rEE
(a) (a) GROUP
“E-RF ZT@mF
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
EIEEESFE Share of net assets - —
)| /NI Amount due from an associate 373 359
373 359
B ORE less: Impairment (373) (359)
—[EBE DR 2 KRR BERR - The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interestfree and has no
SR BEETERYR fixed terms of repayment.
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18. —EHE R AR (E) 18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)
b) HEQBZFBWMT (b)  Particulars of the associate are as follows:
AL, AEBENG
FEE®RT SMRE£NE FEEEREIH
ROFE Place of Percentage
Particulars incorporation/  of ownership interest ITEXK
A of issued registration attributable Principal
Name shares held and business to the Group activity
—E-hE —FT-QmF
2015 2014
NERERRAF Eimik BB 50 50 KREZER
Turbo Dragon Invesiment Limited Ordinary share Hong Kong Investment holding
TRITAEBEERMETBE The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
AZME R EEBBER of the Group's associates that are not individually material:
—EB-RHF —EF
2015 2014
FET TIET
HK$000 HK$'000
FE(EREE DR F R A Share of associates’ profit for the year - 3,301
FE(EREE A R 2 E W B FE Share of associates' fofal comprehensive income - 3,541
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18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

[c)  Disposals of associates

(i

On 16 August 2013 (as amended by a supplemental
agreement dated 22 November 2013, TCCL, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Mr. Fung Chiu
Chak, Victor ("Mr. Fung"), entered info a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant fo which, TCCL disposed of its 49%
equity inferest in Tysan Building Construction Company
Limited (“TBC"), and the interest-free shareholder's
loan of HK$7,350,000 owing by TBC to TCCL, at
a cash consideration of HK$17,150,000 (of which
HK$9,800,000 is for the disposal of the equity interest
and HK$7,350,000 is for sefflement
loan] to Mr. Fung (“Tysan Building Construction Disposal”).

of the shareholder's

The Tysan Building Construction Disposal was completed
on 17 January 2014.

Upon the completion of the Tysan Building Construction
Disposal, the Group did not have any interest in TBC and
its subsidiaries. The loss on the Tysan Building Construction
Disposal of HK$2,184,000, representing the difference
between the equity interest disposal consideration of
HK$9,800,000 and the Group's interests in TBC as af the
date of disposal of approximately HK$ 11,984,000, was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for

the year ended 31 March 2014

Immediately after the completion of the Tysan Building
Construction Disposal, TBC, which is controlled by Mr.
Fung, becomes a related company of the Group.

4% 201472015
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18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

[c]

Disposals of associates (Cont'd)

i)

On 16 August 2013 (as amended by a supplemental
agreement dated 22 November 2013), TIL, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Miss Jennifer
Kwok, entered info a sale and purchase agreement
pursuant fo which, TIL disposed of its 40% equity inferest in
Tysan Trading Company limited (“TTCL") and the interest-
free shareholder's loan of HK$800,000 owing by TTCL to
TIL, ot a cash consideration of HK$4,400,000 (of which
HK$3,600,000 is for the disposal of the equity inferests
and HK$800,000 is for the setlement of the shareholder’s
loan) to Miss Jennifer Kwok (“Tysan Trading Disposal”).
The Tysan Trading Disposal was completed on 17 January
2014,

Upon the completion of the Tysan Trading Disposal,
the Group did not have any interest in TTCL and its
subsidiaries. The loss on the Tysan Trading Disposal of
HK$9,151,000, representing the difference between the
disposal consideration of HK$3,600,000 for the equity
interest and the Group's inferests in TTCL as at the date
of disposal of approximately HK$13,687,000, net of
the release of related exchange fluctuation reserve upon
disposal of approximately HK$936,000, was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year

ended 31 March 2014.

Immediately after the completion of the Tysan Trading
Disposal, TTCL, which was confrolled by Miss Jennifer
Kwok, became a related company of the Group until the
resignation of Miss Jennifer Kwok as an Executive Direcfor
with effect from 1 July 2014.

Further details of the Tysan Building Construction Disposal and

the Tysan Trading Disposal are set out in the Company's circular

dated 25 November 2013.
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

%6
GROUP
“E-RF —T-NF
2015 2014
FET FET

HK$000 HK$'000

Unlisted equity investment, at cost 1,249 1,250

As at 31 March 2015, an unlisted equity investment with a carrying
amount of HK$ 1,249,000 (2014: HK$1,250,000) was stated at cost
less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that ifs fair value
cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of it
in the near future.

20. INVENTORIES

&8

GROUP
—R-REF ST
2015 2014
FET TET
HK$000 HK$ 000
Raw materials 639 1,818
Spare parts and others 13,543 11,791
14,182 13,609
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21. FEHEE X 21. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
]
GROUP
—E-H% ZTWF
2015 2014
FET TIET
HK$000 HK$ 000
F1 At beginning of year 604,640 720,600
HEEYE  BRREHEMFE14)  Tansfer to property, plant and
equipment [nofe 14) (7) —
EREREME(HES) Transfer fo investment properties (note 15) (22,307) (6,135)
BRaERPWE (T 16) Transfer from properties under
development [note 16) 413,000 280,614
FRHEZYZE Properties sold during the year (348,806)  (396,173)
EE 3¢ 38 Exchange realignment 139 5,734
FR At end of year 646,659 604,640
REERFAMREE 2MEMNFE AN The Group's properties held for sale are located in Mainland China
MARBELAEFS - and are held under long ferm leases.
22. BEEY 22. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
£
GROUP
—F-hf —TMmF
2015 2014
FET THTT
HK$'000 HK$ 000
EFEBENIR IR Amounts due from customers for contract works 160,041 107,127
REPEBENIIR A Amounts due to customers for contract works (686,495)  (739,788]

(526,454) (632,661

FIEEZ & BB EARF R Contract costs incurred plus recognised
AHE BREMNREERSE profifs less recognised losses to date 10,865,475 9,641,367
B B EGE E R R less: Progress billings received and receivable  (11,391,929) (10,274,028)

(526,454) (632,661
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TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group has established credit

standards. The average normal credit periods offered fo

policies that follow local industry
frade customers
other than for refention receivables are within 30 days, and are subject
fo periodic review by management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group's frade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements

over its frade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-

Fig e bearing.
&8
GROUP

—T-EHF s

2015 2014

FAT FET

HK$'000 HK$ 000

FEWE 5 RN Trade receivables 1,017,028 777,991
HE Impairment (387) (194)
1,016,641 777,797

FRUREZERTERERE—FHEER

AR IA254,0008 T(Z T — M F :
6,405,000 7T) « HEFKIEE RN E

RTAKBEIREPHGRRESE

Included in the trade receivables is an amount due from a related
company of HK$254,000 (2014: HK$6,405,000], which is
repayable on similar credit terms to those offered fo the major customers
of the Group.
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23. EWEZES(E) 23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
IABE B R RS RESE NS5 An aged analysis of the frade receivables as at the end of the reporting
RS MR Y BRI AT period, based on the invoice date and net of provision, is as follows:
&=
GROUP
—F-hRf —T-MmF
2015 2014
FET TET
HK$000 HK$'000
FEIRE HIR - Trade receivables:
Q0 RN Within 90 days 629,061 463,772
Q1HZE180H 91 to 180 days 117 1,231
181 HE360H 181 1o 360 days 10,388 1,789
360 R £ Over 360 days 2,180 771
641,746 467,563
FEYRE Retention receivables 374,895 310,234
1,016,641 777,797
MEUW S S ER SR E RS 7 B8 T The movements in provision for individual impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:
&=
GROUP
—F-hRf —T-MmF
2015 2014
FET TET
HK$000 HK$'000
F1) At beginning of year 194 8,876
ERERRERBE(ME7) Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 387 194
WisE RN AT B2 FRIE Amount written off as uncollectible - (9,009)
HEME AR Disposal of subsidiaries (194) =
BEE 3 A% Exchange realignment - 133
FE At end of year 387 194
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables of
HK$387,000 (2014: HK$194,000) is a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables with a gross carrying amount before
provision of HK$387,000 (2014: HK$194,000). The individually
impaired frade receivables relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties and the receivables from these customers are not expected fo
be fully recoverable.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

&=

GROUP
—T-1F —FTmF
2015 2014
FET FBT
HK$'000 HK$000
Neither past due nor impaired 940,799 720,388
1 to 90 days past due 634197 53,618
91 to 270 days past due 117 2,853
More than 270 days past due 12,568 938
1,016,641 777,797

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relafe to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good frack record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are sfill considered fully recoverable.
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24. FENFIE - AT REMERFIE 24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

58 NG
GROUP COMPANY
—E-HF —T-NFE ZE-RF —T-NF
2015 2014 2015 2014

FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

WEEE - e Deposits for acquisition of
FRBEE 25 & items of property,
plant and equipment 717 4,905 — -
RNFERA® Prepayments and deposits 51,750 45,854 138 177
H b FEUGRIA Other receivables 24,233 35,068 — 3,323
A less: Impairment (4,292) (3,226) - =
72,408 82,601 138 3,500
IR V] less: Prepayments, deposits
FRBEELZ and other receivables
ANFIE - F]e classified as
K EL e IO RRIB non-current assets (1,918) (7,859 - —
70,490 74,742 138 3,500
Hip W soaRER G #F0T The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables are as
follows:
&8
GROUP
—2-1RF —B@F
2015 2014
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$000
F1 At beginning of year 3,226 2,000
ERERREEE (M) Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 1,069 1,217
i A% Exchange realignment (3) 9
FIR At end of year 4,292 3,226
BREZHREL 42920008 (=T Except for other receivables of HK$4,292,000 (2014:
—PU4E : 3,226,000 7T ) E b fE i 2% HK$3,226,000) which were fully impaired, none of the above assets
BN - bt B EW R RE - mE is either past due or impaired and the financial assefs included in the
ALt s 7 RS E BT R EE L above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent
fosr 2 RN AR - history of default.
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25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

%6
GROUP
“E-RF —T-NF
2015 2014
FET FET

HK$000 HK$'000

Interest rafe swaps — 4,113

The Group entered info various interest rate swaps fo manage
ifs interest rate exposures. Changes in the fair value, nef, of non-
hedging derivatives amounting to a gain of HK$4,113,000 (2014:
HK$4,092,000) were credited to the statement of profit or loss during
the year. As at 31 March 2014, the carrying amounts of those financial
instruments were the same as their fair values. Those interest rafe
swaps were matured during the year. The above fransactions involving
derivative financial instruments were conducted with creditworthy
financial insfitutions with no recent history of default.

26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TIME DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH

58
GROUP
B —E-HE Z—T-NF
Notes 2015 2014
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
EHER - Time deposits:
—H b BET — other time deposits [a) 443,862 551,441
— TR — sfructured deposits (b 302,570 554,778
TEHRGFREE Total ime deposits (c) 746,432 1,106,219
Re RFTETF Cash and bank balances [al 541,064 441,688
XBEHRE Restricted cash (d] 24,000 3,241
BEt Total 1,311,496 1,551,148
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26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TIME DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (Cont'd)

Denominated in:

Renminbi (“RMB'

HK$
Macao patacas
Other currencies

&5

GROUP
—E-EF —E—mnmF
2015 2014
FET FHET
HK$000 HK$ 000
') 753,462 934,708
550,156 608,775
["MOP’) 6,966 6,093
912 1,572
1,311,496 1,551,148

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under

Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and

Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange

Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other

currencies through authorised banks to conduct foreign exchange

business.

Notes:

(a)

(bl

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods within two months
[2014: three months| depending on the immediafe cash requirements
of the Group, and eam interest at the respective fime deposit rates. The
bank balances and deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.

The structured deposits are fime deposits with fixed maturity dates and
are stated at amortised cost. The deposits are made for varying periods
within two months (2014 six months). The interest rates on the structured
deposits fluctuated based on changes in the currency exchange rate
between USD and HK$ or changes in the London Interbank Offered Rate
["LIBOR"). The Group uses structured deposits primarily o enhance the
refurn on investment.
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TIME DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (Cont'd)

Nofes: [Contd]

()] Asat 31 March 2014, included in the balance were time deposits of
HK$ 137,485,000 of which the original maturity was more than three
months when acquired.

(d Asat 31 March 2015, a deposit of HK$24,000,000 (2014: Nil)
was maintained in a bank account for an interestbearing bank loan of
HK$24,000,000 (2014: Nil] pursuant fo the relevant banking facilities
[note 30). As at 31 March 2014, pursuant to relevant regulations in the
PRC, deposits of HK$3,241,000 received from the pre-sale of properies
under development under designated bank accounts can only be used
for the construction of the relevant properties.

27. TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

An aged analysis of the frade payables as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

=8 AT

GROUP COMPANY
—g-5f -FTWF —¥-EF T M5
2015 2014 2015 2014
FET  TET  TET  TAT
HK$000 — HKS000  HK$000  HKS$000
296,839 147,805 8 254
1,849 438 = -
1,560 1,995 = -
300,248 150,238 8 254
184,246 152,494 = -
439,188 331,343 1,347 1,338
923,682 634,075 1,355 1,592

The frade payables are non-interestbearing and are normally seftled on

90-day terms.
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28. HMENFIE - EWFET & RFANK 28. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND RECEIPTS

;I8 IN ADVANCE
HENFIEERRE  THEFHR Other payables are non-interestbearing and have an average term of
—f&@A - one month.
29. BEWETE 29. DEPOSITS RECEIVED
EWETSEREBRRETYETAEANR Deposits received represented the down payments received from
EHHIEEYEHESNZARPINE customers upon signing of the pre-sale contracts of properties under
JE[E c NEERYENERERRE development and sale contracts of properties held for sale of the Group.
EYE - HPRETFIAAL Bk The Group conducted the pre-sale of properties when they were sfill
REBELANE  BEARNAERLH under development. As contracted with customers, deposits were paid
i[% AEBBEZZESTH AR fo the Group upon the signing of the pre-sale contracts. Such amounts
B o held by the Group are non-interest-bearing.
30. MESRITIEE 30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
] GROUP
—Z-1f —T-mE
2015 2014
BRAI=E BB
Effective Effective
interest rate HRR  FAET  inerestrate HR AT
(% Matuity  HK$000 ) Mouity — HKSO00
B Unsecured:
BITER Bank loans 1.7:3.4 20152017 271,774 1434 20142017 481,824
BHEMR: Secured:
RITEH Bank loans 2.7 20152017 9,940 1727 20142017 13,780
PEES Instalment loans 1.7 20152031 86,185 1.7 20142031 90,462
96,125 104,242
RTEERE Total bank borrowings 367,899 586,066
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30.

B EERITEE(E)

RETHEE D

AR TR ANER 2 BITHEE
R—ERNHIR B K
E_F
FoFEERE(RIRERMRE)
BBRF

RERATHE AEEOSARERE
SKEBRIERZHFITER 6,100,000
(ZZ—MM4 : 9,940,000 7T) 25t A
BNEAM B SRITIEE - WATAR—FR
FIREKBIE 2 FEFNIRITER ©

RIRBTER B HEAR - HERT
ERCEEESEA RZT—RF
R—E-NME=ZA=+—B2ZAR—
FAKEEREL R 2137,178,000
BT K 2421720008 L R Z &
—AER-FT-NMEZA=+—HZ
AR EZF X 2108,040,000%
JTR113,191,0008 T R=F—A
ER_T-NE=ZA=Z+—BZER
F-EEENF(RREEEME)XN
2.58,944,000% T &162,381,000
BT RZE—RAER_T—NF=
A=+—BZ2BERAFNU LI Z
63,737,000/ 7T % 68,322,000/ 7T

R B R AR A

W% it 7 W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2015 —ZE—HRE=A=1+—8

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

—E-EF ZE—mNmE
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
Analysed info:
Bank borrowings repayable:
Within one year or on demand 143,278 257 112
In the second year 104,200 109,351
In the third to fifth years, inclusive 56,684 156,281
Beyond five years 63,737 68,322
367,899 586,066
Portion due within one year,
classified as current liabilities (143,278) (252,112)
Long term portion 224,621 333,954

For the purpose of the above analysis, the Group's bank loans in
the amount of HK$6,100,000 (2014: HK$9,940,000) containing
a repayment on demand clause are included within current inferest-
bearing bank borrowings and analysed into bank loans payable within
one year or on demand.

Based on the maturity terms of the bank loans, the amounts
repayable in respect of the bank loans are: HK$137,178,000 and
HK$242,172,000 payable within one year or on demand as at
31 March 2015 and 2014, respectively; HK$108,040,000 and
HK$113,191,000 payable in the second year as at 31 March 2015
and 2014, respectively; HK$58,944,000 and HK$162,381,000
payable in the third fo fifth years, inclusive as at 31 March 2015 and
2014, respectively; HK$63,737,000 and HK$68,322,000 payable
beyond five years as at 31 March 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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30. MERITHEEE)

RZE-—HZF=A=+—-H' F&
Bz EARRTRENAEREER
182,673,000% (= & — @M %
198,076,000 7T ) 2 & 75 L # - 12
FoRERBEMEIL)EER-
RZE-ONF=A=T—8 ' ~5E
ZERBITEE A —BREAER
22,530,000 8 T2 AW F(EE15)
R

R-B-AE=A=1+—0 A&£EZ
EIKIRERITHEE 24,000,000/ T(=F
—OF : ) BREEER TRERET
MAESR1THR P 2 17 5% 24,000,000 % 7T
(ZZ—WF : &) REERETE26()
(ZT—mF:|) -

RZE-—NE=A=+—08 r&EZ
EEMRITHEE 4,549,000 T M E
R RITHRBF R -

IS ARBEREE THBARRG
ZEERERUEFRESY) - BEL
(BBFEERAR([HE KRR LRE]
B THB AR BRItz S B
RRIMFZRITREREEARER -

S EF ARG EEYRIHHRY
RITEEZ BEERLATER

o

D cm B

AR B ZRITRERAETTAHE ©
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30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

As at 31 March 2015, the Group's secured bank borowings were
secured by cerfain of its land and buildings, equipment and machinery
(note 14) with carrying amounts of HK$182,673,000 (2014:
HK$198,976,000). As at 31 March 2014, the Group's secured bank
borrowings were also secured by an investment property (nofe 15) with
carrying amounts of HK$22,530,000.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group's unsecured bank borrowing
amounting to HK$24,000,000 (2014: Nil) was supported by a
deposit of HK$24,000,000 (2014: Nil) maintained in a bank account
pursuant fo the relevant banking facilities (nofe 26(d|) (2014: Nil).

As at 31 March 2014, the Group's unsecured bank borrowing
amounting to HK$4,549,000 was guaranteed by the government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

In addition, the Company has executed guarantees in respect of
borrowing facilities granted fo certain of its subsidiaries (note 37).
Mr. Fung, who is a beneficial shareholder of certain subsidiaries of
the Company through Fortunate Pool limited (“Fortunate Pool”), also
provided personal guarantees in respect of borrowing facilities granted
fo these subsidiaries.

All of the bank borrowings of the Group bear inferest at floating inferest
rates. The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate fo their

fair values.

The Group's bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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3. EELEBIE 31. DEFERRED TAX
RAFEERN  BERBEABEREEZE The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are
BT as follows:
FEEHIEE & Deferred tax liabilities
&8 GROUP
B
H AR

EXrY WERD
REWE Allowance in

Revaluation excess of AN
of investment related  Withholding st
properties  depreciation taxes Total

TIET TIET FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

RZZ—=FMA—H Al Apil 2013 (92,043) (17,1100 (103,535)  (212,688)
FRNBEEIA  Deferred tax credited/(charged)

(#0B% ) 2B fo the statement of profit or loss

HIE (M 10) during the year [note 10) (10,275) 3,298 (36,242 (43,219
BEE 3¢ 8% Exchange realignment 129 = 479 608
RZZE—MmF At 31 March 2014 and

ZA=+-8R 1 April 2014

—E-MFEMA—H (102,189 (13,812)  (139,298) (255,299
FRNBIEKTA  Deferred tax credited/(charged)

(k)2 o the statement of profit or loss

EREFRIE(MIEE10) during the year [note 10} (9,410) 2,778 22,071 15,439
FhAR B R B Withholding tox paid

NEELZ on repatriation of eamings

BFmZ 2 from subsidiaries in

BT Mainland China — - 16,042 16,042
HE—FHE AR Disposal of a subsidiary

(FzE411(a) (note 41(al) 560 — = 560
i 5 Exchange realignment 53 — (112) (59)
WZE—R%F At 31 March 2015

=A=+—8H (110,98¢) (11,034)  (101,297)  (223,317)
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31. ELEHIA(E) 31. DEFERRED TAX (Contd)
RAEEAR  EERBREREEZE The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are
BT : (&) as follows: /Conta))
FREHEEE Deferred tax assefs
58 GROUP
+ B ER
e
Provision
for land
appreciation
tax
TET
HK$'000
RZZ—=FMA—H At 1 April 2013 85,501
FRARBRRR Deferred tax charged to the statement of profit or
ZEERIE(MIFE10) loss during the year (nofe 10) (51,705)
BEE 5, 8B Exchange realignment 776
RZZE-NE=A=1+—H At 31 March 2014 and
E_T-HMFMA—R 1 April 2014 34,572
FANERERTA Deferred tax credited fo the sftatement of profit or loss
ZIRFEBIA(PEE 10) during the year [nofe 10) 21,293
B 5 R Exchange realignment (36)
RZZE-—hF=A=+—H At 31 March 2015 55,829
REEBREBELEZHREEEA The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$281,075,000
281,075,000/ (= & — I % (2014: HK$304,665,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
304,665,000/ 7T) * Al AEERHE against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
EHEEE 2 AT 2 R ERTEF o arose. Deferred fox assets have not been recognised in respect of these
RELEBFECHBRRMEEZZE losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
ERATeRZSEERIBEE B some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
JERBLEF AR BT BB B R ET available against which the fax losses can be utilised.
AJRE °
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IEERIR (&)

BREFBREXAEHATERAEHR
%] R BRI E B E AR
SIMREETIR B ABMI0%EH
Mo ZBERER-_FTTN\F-—A—RiE
ERTERAR —FZLF Tt -A=1T—
AZ&EEL AN - T B EEI
REEMERAZERITATAGE * A
AR EARE 2 BMBEH R - Fit - K
SEARB AN B AL 2 B
REH-_EEN\F-A—BARELZEF
ik < BB B ATRIOM -

DRI T E R 2 ik 8 I B A Py
BHER -
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DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

Pursuant fo the Corporate Income Tax [“CIT) law, a 10% withholding
fax is levied on dividends declared fo foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises esfablished in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies o eamings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding fax rate may be applied if there
is a fax frealy between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The Group s therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by ifs subsidiaries established in Mainland China

in respect of eamings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching fo the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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32. B=R
RBRH
i
2,000,000,000 Iz &A%

3

HEC.10BTZ EBK

EETRAE
874,665,903 &M
HEO0.10B Tz EBK
RBE_Z-—NF=A=+—HILF

g AARRRREBEETEMIAREE
B 1.467%8 7T # 172,000,000 i% & Ik
H{EO. 10T B BRERER
Q,QQ0,000E’é TTNER SR ) » B

819 OOO?%?LZ?JXIEEW%%%Z%W&‘;
B AR R R E R R (ERR

BRE

ARRIBIAER 8 2 HRER A HEK
BEE 33 «

BRETE

RZEZZFNAZTNRB AR
%ZW—IEﬁﬁﬂxTEﬁi'JU—v = —E'E “_
2 MREAEERINEEELERIZ

/\éh/,\%%tﬁi&@&@#& —TF
“EHEAERR LY BN T —FN
HJ\E;E%fTZHxﬁ%EUXE%%tM—
B ER R ([ =T ——F5rE )M
o

BATEFRE-F— _¢E+2UFﬁZﬁ
ATEBRERSHE - AT SHB
AR RHEI 2 B 1TR D 2 10%
FRAVERE-T——FrElRLER
1
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32. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares
—E-h1F —mF
2015 2014
FE FET
HK$000 HK$'000
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid:
874,665,903 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each 87,466 87,466

33.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, 2,000,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each were issued for cash at a subscription price of HK$1.46
per share pursuant fo the exercise of the Company's share options for
a tofal cash consideration, before expenses of HK$2,920,000. An
amount of HK$819,000 was transferred from the share option reserve
o the share premium account upon the exercise of the share options.

Share options

Defails of the Company's share option schemes are included in note 33
o the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 28 August 2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
2002 Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. The 2002 Scheme was terminated and replaced by a
new share option scheme with effect from the conclusion of the specicl

general meeting held on 8 August 2012 (the “2012 Scheme').

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitied fo
be granted under the 2012 Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. No share option has
been granted under the 2012 Scheme during the year.



33. BRETEI(E)

ARRZ —F——FFrEMEWLT :

El:y

Purpose

ABRSEE
Eligible Participants

33.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

A summary of the 2012 Scheme of the Company is as follows:

FZARREER(EERDEUARLBRENRDEEREERR
SHABHARAR,SEMMBLR(EE )R,/ IAEEEMA
KERAFAEARIEG 2 EAER XK BRIEREAH
FERZAERSEE  HBAER2EEBEMENERAEE
2B URAARBRARARRR 2 BB G hEs  AKES
BR2EENFEELENRERMMER I ARREBHR  EX
EESNRFHERENRASERERK LIBERRKREE
BxmEXES -

To enable the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) to grant
opfions fo reward eligible participants who, in the sole and absolute
opinion of the Board, would confribute or benefit or had contributed
or benefited to the business, development and growth (and any other
aspect whatsoever) of the Company and/or any of the subsidiaries
("Group”) and/or any of the entities in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest, and to provide incentives fo eligible
participants to perform their best in achieving the goals of the Group
in the interests and benefits of the Company and the shareholders of
the Company as a whole, while af the same fime allowing the eligible
participants to share the fruits of the Company’s business achieved
through their effort and contribution, as well as to enable the Group to
recruit high quality employees who are valuable to the management
and long ferm business and financial goals and success of the Group.

BERSE_Z-_FHE 2z AL DARRSEAMELD ISR
ERZAEMNEBARBES  THAE RRBEXEF(EEH
T T RBURTER) A EEREERREHREHEARA
R/ SEMHBARL, REMERERB ¥  BRIER(RE
AEMAE)E RS A R AEBEAARRE - FAA  BE - K
BA - fEERARGInER  BE LRSS MHIRE) &
P DR - ERHBEREEHH -

A person who is entitled fo participate in the 2012 Scheme, being any
fulime or parttime employees, executives, officers or directors (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company or any of the subsidiaries or any of the inferested
entiies and any confractors, advisors, consultants, agents, suppliers or
providers (of, for example, goods, plants and machineries, materials or
services), customers, disfributors, business ally or joint venture partners
of the Group who, in the sole and absolute opinion of the Board, will
contribute or benefit or have contributed or benefited fo the business,
development and growth (and any other aspect whatsoever) of the
Company and/or any of the subsidiaries and/or any of the interested
entifies.
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3. BREE(E)

ARBIZ ZF——FEBEQT
(&)

AT BBRAE K
PRERERABEEET

BARZBDL

Total number of ordinary shares available for
issue and the percentage of the issued

share capital that it represents as af the date of
the annual report

BESEEZRSLA
Maximum entiflement of each participant

RIBEIE Y BREES 23R
Period within which the securities must
be taken up under an option

PTEERT B/RFEA RE I < SRR
Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

iSESALS NP
Amount payable on acceptance
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

A summary of the 2012 Scheme of the Company is as follows: (Cont'd)

87,200,590 RE @R REBITRAZ 10% (GFEEERR AR AR
RERAREEH-_T——F\A/N\B 2872665903 RE &7k
7)o

87,266,590 ordinary shares and 10% of the issued share capital,
on the basis of 872,665,903 shares in issue as at the date of the
Company's special general meefing on 8 August 2012.

MMERENMEM 12 8B PEAR B R EITRARZ 1%
Shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company in any
12-month period.

KEmEZRNTEAERNBEE SN I 2ARA - I
Pt AR < 2180 B M BN L A BB E S B ET (10 F R -
To be defermined by the Board on a casefocase basis af its absolute
discretion and nofified to the grantee thereof, provided that the expiry
date of the said period shall not be later than ten (10) years from the
date of grant of the option concemed.

HEREEZRMBEERE -

To be determined at the discretion of the Board.

/@\ﬁ o
Nil.



33. BRETEI(E)

ARBIZ T —FFrEHENT
(&)

BETEEIEE

Basis for determining the exercise price

ATl N

The remaining life of the scheme

BT BB TR A AR SR i
RAG EREZHER -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

A summary of the 2012 Scheme of the Company is as follows: (Contd)

R ERRENS

In respect of any particular option:

RITEBRERENARAIZERKRHER AEZRLER_Z
—ZFi 2 BNRNEEBRER R TEREEEERE LR
E - ETEENMINATSET RS

the price per share payable to the Company on the exercise of the
option as may be decided upon and prescribed by the Board on a
casefocase basis, bearing in mind the purpose of the 2012 Scheme,
in its absolute discrefion upon the grant of the option, provided that such
exercise price shall not be less than the highest of the following:

()  BtyzmEfE :

the nominal value of a share;

b BERERLAH (AREXRA) REBXMLERRERMEL
B E - &
the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant of the option, which
must be a business day; and

() ZEEBRERODBSALG/EZZEINBEIMcEAMER
P B0 P (E © 3
the average closing price of the shares as stafed in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five (5) business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option, or

ﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬂﬁ’giy[o)z(c)?ﬁt)Zﬁ@Efﬁ(ﬁDiﬁﬁ) TEE%?)%*E?EE
- FAAPRR(ET R )R EAEN T FHERE
ZEBAEHERETREZRR TR FE -

where applicable, the exercise price for the option concerned (referred
fo (a] to [c) above) as may be adjusted by the Board from time fo time
pursuant fo the rules of the 2012 Scheme concerning adjustments of,
inter alia, the exercise price upon the occurrence of any relevant event

as defined in the 2012 Scheme.

T FHEA T —F\ANBR O FBEDARRIL
F_giii)\ﬂ‘tﬁzﬁ Al 2 & R R fE T o

The 2012 Scheme remains in force for a period of ten (10) years
commencing from 8 August 2012 and expiring at the close of business
hours of the Company on 7 August 2022.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote
at shareholders” meefings.
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33. BR#EEI(E) 33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)
(o) =ZEZE=F5tZ fa) 2002 Scheme
FARE T _F5EIRHART The following share options were outstanding under the 2002
2 BAEIT Scheme during the year:
—E-EHF ks
2015 2014
¥ g5
1TEE fEIRE 7B BEE
Weighted L {E| Weighted #H
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
=354 i 574 7
BT ‘000 BT 000
HK$ HK$
per share per share
F1 At beginning of year - - 1.46 2,000
FRITHRE Exercised during the year — — 1.46 (2,000)
FE At end of year — — = =
RBERR  YEERTEZE No share option was outstanding as at the end of the reporting
PR HE o period.
FERN EERERERY o No share option expense was recognised during the year.
REBEE-FT—MNFE=A=+—H The 2,000,000 share options exercised during the year ended
IEFE1TE 2,000,000 17 BE A% 4 31 March 2014 resulted in the issue of 2,000,000 ordinary
B3#172,000,000 A2 A7) H shares of the Company and new share capital of HK$200,000
A% 0 LA K 200,000 7 T I AR and share premium of HK$2,720,000 (before issue expenses|,
K. 2,720,000 7T I 10 & B (11 as further detailed in note 32 to the financial statements.
FREITRSAT) - HRHN M BR
KMFFE32
R EMRNEEHEZETE At the end of the reporting period and up to the date of approval
BRREH BE-_ZZT_F5 of these financial statements, the Company did not have any
2 AARYHmM-_Z—ME: share opfions outstanding under the 2002 Scheme (2014: Nil).
&) BIRERARITE
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33. BRERTEI(E) 33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)
(b) =F—=FitZ (b) 2012 Scheme
REBEE_FE-—AF=A=+—H During the year ended 31 March 2015 and up to the date of
Jtif&ﬁ HEZSHEREK approval of these financial statements, no share option under the
=S R ¢uT§UTIﬂﬁ% 2012 Scheme was granted, exercised, expired or lapsed and
BREERL - 176 BIHHK there is no outstanding share option under the 2012 Scheme.

e Dﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁg ;

34. f#f 34. RESERVES
(a) ZFH (a) Group

RAFEERBTFEAEE#E The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
THRNEEPRIBRR 2GS for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
BEREHRIS - statement of changes in equity of the financial stafements.
Righa LR BREDR Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
Bl - ARE B B2 M joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's
REZHDBMEBRERTE M subsidiaries which are registered in the PRC has been transferred
BRI o fo statutory reserves which are resfricted as fo use.
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34. RB(E) 34.

b) A7

R=E-=EmA-A Ar 1 Apil 2013
REREH Prolfitfor the year

FR2ANGER Total comprehensive

income for the year

{TieRRE Exercise of share opfions

“E—=FFERMEN 2013 final dividend
RERE declored and paid

WZE-WE=A=+—H At 31 March 2014 and
R=Z-MFEMA-B 1 Api 2014
EE G Profit for the year

FREEREER Tofal comprehensive
income for the year

ZE-MERERREM 2014 final dividend
ZRHRE declored and paid
“Z-nEPHRE 2015 inferim dividend

RZE-RE=A=1—H Ar3]1 March 2015

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

RESERVES (Cont'd)

(b) Company

RiaEk BRERE

Share  HARE Share  REER
it premium  Contributed option  Retained &t
Notes account surplus reserve profits Total
&L &L TET TET TET
HK$000 — HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
560,322 29,950 819 145426 736,517
= = = 90,488 90,488
- - - 90,488 90,488
B7AKS 3,539 - (819) - 2,720
12 - - - (43,633) (43,633
563,861 29,950 - 192281 786,092
- - - 258,239 258239
- - - 258239 258,239
17 - - — AT (§7.467)
12 - - - w7 4373
563,861 29,950 - 319320 913,131




34. RB(E)

(6]

L8] (&)

RARHABBERNARBRD
LR RER—NAN—F2&
EEHEMEA B AR A
FER L RI|ARDFE EITRN
ZHEZHE RE-NN\—F
BREDRE BEETHERT
AR B A LARBIREL 2 IREA
B e

BE-_T—hRf=A=1+—HLt
£ 7 3% §1258,239,0005% T
(= T — /0 £ : 90,488,000/
TO) BIEHB A RR K 8,245,000
BT ZRHERE(ZT—0F:
HIEER 17,507,000 7T) « kK
BAARETHBARZREK
A 275,380,000 (=T — 1@
F ) AR RN AR AR
HrEE R &AM 21,480,000
BL(ZE—NF: &) BEZ
E-NE=A=+—HIEFEEZ
i M B IE & — B 2 R
o #E 2% 2 Y25 125,000,000 %
=5

R B R AR A

W% it 7 W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2015 ZZ—RAF=A=+—H

34. RESERVES (Coni'd)

(6] Company (Contd)

The confributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of
the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation in 1991 prior to the listing of the
Company's shares, over the nominal value of the Company's
shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, the Company may make distributions
fo its members out of the contributed surplus under certain
circumstances.

The profit of HK$258,239,000 for the year ended 31 March
2015 (2014: HK$90,488,000] included write back of
impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries of HK$8,245,000
(2014: impairment loss of HK$17,507,000), dividend income
of HK$275,380,000 (2014: Nil) received from certain
subsidiaries of the Company and corporate management fee of
HK$21,480,000 (2014: Nil] charged by a subsidiary of the
Company. The profit for the year ended 31 March 2014 also
included a gain on disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary of

HK$125,000,000.
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35.

REMOTHE
(o) EBHEA

REBERBELEHEOZH - UHE
RNEBNT=E=1EA  H
MEETHES (I 14) RARE
WE(MEE15) - BABR—RI
ERBPRFEPHERET 2 R
RERERMRAERFELEEHA

%Eko

RBEHR  AEEREARHE
FREPFILZ A HHELEHE
A AN 8 2 R R A (R PR
THRENT

—FR
F_ERLF(BEERMT)
AR

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor

The Group leases certain of its machinery (note 14) and

its investment properties [note 15) under operating lease

arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from three

fo thirty six months. The terms of the leases generally also require

the tenants and customers fo pay security deposits and provide

for periodic rental adjustments according to the then prevailing

market conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had fotal future

minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating

leases with its tenants and customers falling due as follows:

Within one year

In the second o fifth years, inclusive

Alter five years

EE]

GROUP
“T-RF ZT-MOF
2015 2014
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
36,190 19,943
19,433 12,583
869 —
56,492 32,526
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35. BEHNZH(E) 35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'd)
(b) 1ERFEHEA (b) As lessee
REBBELEMHOLH LA The Group leases certain of ifs office properties, warehouses,
RNEBNT=ZLt+_@RF & staff quarters and certain machinery under operating lease
METHAEYNH® ER BT arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from three
BE RETHes fo seventy two months.
REBEHR - AEBREAIH At the end of the reporting period, the Group had fotal future
HEERORA T FH 2 KRR minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
ERNNTEENT falling due as follows:
£
GROUP
—B-1F —FMF
2015 2014
FET FAT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
—FR Within one year 58,700 10,129
FZERF(BFEEREMTE)  In the second fo fifth years, inclusive 3,267 6,032

61,967 16,161

ARAIRREBARIL BAAMLE The Company did not have any operating lease arrangement af
MAZE(ZE—F - &) - the end of the reporting period (2014: Nil).
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36. EiE 36. COMMITMENTS
B b SCPE 35(b) sl 2 45 2 A0 40 7 E In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 35(b)
oh - RMEK - AEEEA THIER above, the Group had the following capital commitments af the end of
A the reporting period:
&8
GROUP
—E-RF Z—T-OF
2015 2014
FET TIET

HK$000 HK$'000

W% - R RS EARIREYE Property, plant and equipment and
investment properties:
—2RIA) - BRIERE ~ confracted, but not provided for 6,586 58,803
—DERE - BRI — authorised, but not contracted for - 8,907

6,586 67,710

RERPYRZBETE - Construction works relafing fo properties
under development:
—BETA) - BRIERYE — confracted, but not provided for 878,527 1,104,842
—BEEE - BRATH — authorised, but not contracted for 271,758 491,816
1,150,285 1,596,658
RBESRR > ARANEE RAE(Z The Company had no significant commitments at the end of the
TF &) o reporting period [2014: Nil).
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

RI|EER - AR BWMERAELEE At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for
ZHABBEMT in the financial statements were as follows:
] N
GROUP COMPANY
—B-1F —T-MF =—B-IHF _—T-WF
2015 2014 2015 2014

FET FEr FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000

SLE 1A Guarantees given fo financial

(I P 22 AIHE insfitutions in connection with

—REEER general credit facilities

Méa T2 #R granted to subsidiaries - - 748,459 054,323
REARES Guarantees in respect of

rr]fft 8 22 &1 performance bonds in

T 2 R relation to subsidiaries 416,775 533,328 416,775 533,328

416,775 533,328 1,165,234 1,487,651

BEALIRS 38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BHWENZEVEmAEMI T - K Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
SENFREMEALIL FIRS had the following transactions with related parties during the year:
(a) EEEFEA 1+ ZKIBELTF (a)  Outstanding balances with related parties

RBEHR  AEEEAKER
Al —HBAERRRABREL
AEAREN SRR
F23 - REBAEE R AEDI(FH
32E)F10IBIRAEE - F1
RABEZBERRARS RIS
6,405,000 7T °

Defails of the Group's balances with its associate and a related
company as at the end of the reporting period are included in
nofes 18 and 23, respectively, fo the financial stafements. The
maximum amount due from a related company outstanding during
the year was HK$6,405,000 as disclosed pursuant to section
161B of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32).
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38. BEALRF (&)

(b) FEEETEEEASZHH

RHEEEN
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ENTEEERAR

P Lt

AREEWEFBIN T BREK
PHEES
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(6] Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group
58
GROUP
—E-EE —T—NmF
2015 2014
FiET FIET
HK$000 HK$000
Short term employee benefits 57,687 81,024

Equitysefiled share option expense - -
Postemployment benefits 114 149

Total compensation paid to
key management personnel 57,801 81,173

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 8 to
the financial statements.

(c)  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

(1] Subcontracted works with a related company

i} During the period from 1 April 2014 to 19
December 2014, TBC subcontracted E&M works of
approximately HK$2,600,000 (2014: Nil) fo Tysan
Engineering (H.K.] Company Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company disposed of on 19 December 2014.



38. BgE

fc)

BEANETRG (&)
HAEEFER A ZAMK

£ (#)

(1) B-—RBERRZNET
B#E)

i) REEZZT—H%=
A=Z+—HILEE
RABRETREER
REERESNIREE
B495,612,000%87T
(Z2—mF:8)n
BYAEE  EFLH
240,000 B TLERE
NHER B

il REBEE-_ZT—HF=
A=+— Hii&
AEEREEERT
2 #691,000% T
(:ﬁ—mﬁ'ﬂy\

FTRABETR -
2) WEHEEQARCEREHR

fi

ZAREIRAR
SEYHEBRER
490,0003% 7£(=
—m% : 707,0005%
JT) e

i) EBEFHE/MEBE
WITEFR(EZ
—mFELA-RELE
M) RABHTH
%$EIZWL“
7l R B —MFH
A—H i:g s
EXNA=THLH
fl RABSHAERE
EYXNTEEEAR
110,000 7o(= E
— U : 987,0007%
JT) °
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c)  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

(Contd)

(1)

(2)

Subcontracted works with a related company (Contd)

i

(i)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, TBC
subcontracted rental and engineering works relating
fo tower cranes of approximately HK$5,612,000
(2014: Nil) to the Group, of which HK$240,000

was recognised as revenue during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group
subcontracted building and construction works of

approximately HK$691,000 (2014: Nil) to TBC.

Management fees received from related companies

(i

i

During the year ended 31 March 2015, TBC paid
management fee of HK$490,000 to the Group
(2014: HK$707,000.

Subsequent fo the resignation of Miss Jennifer Kwok
as an Executive Director with effect from 1 July
2014, TICL ceased to be a related company of
the Group. During the period from 1 April 2014
to 30 June 2014, TTCL paid management fee of
HK$ 110,000 to the Group (2014: HK$987,000).
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c]  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

(Contd)

(2]  Management fees received from related companies

(Contd)

i)  Upon the completion of the Tysan Engineering
Disposal (note 41(b)] on 19 December 2014, TECL
and its subsidiaries, which are ultimately controlled
by Mr. Fung, became related companies of the
Group. During the period from 20 December 2014
to 31 March 2015, Tysan Engineering (H.K.)
limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of TECL, paid
management fee of HK$39,000 to the Group
(2014: Nil).

(3)  During the year ended 31 March 2015, Mr. Fung
provided personal guarantees to financial institutions in
connection with general credit facilities and performance
bonds granted fo certain subsidiaries of the Company.

These fransactions were entered info by the Group and ifs related
companies in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

The related party fransactions in respect of items (c)(1) and (c)(2) above
and the acquisifions and disposals as detailed in notes 18(c, 39(b),
40 and 41 to the financial statements also constituted connected
fransactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the L|shng Rules. Personal
guarantees provided by Mr. Fung as disclosed in item (c)(3) above
constitutes connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, of which it is exempted from the disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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39. ACQUISITIONS OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 18 March 2015, TPDIL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and the non-controlling shareholder of Sparkle Key
limited, enfered info a sale and purchase agreement pursuant
to which, TPDIL acquired a 3% equity interest in Sparkle Key
Limited from the non-controlling shareholder and the interestfree
shareholder’s loan of HK$10,800,000 owing by Sparkle Key
Llimited fo the non-controlling shareholder at a cash consideration
of HK$15,000,000 (of which HK$4,200,000 is for the
acquisition of the equity interest in Sparkle Key Llimited and
HK$10,800,000 is for the setlement of the shareholder's loan)
("Sparkle Key Acquisition”). The Sparkle Key Acquisition was
completed on 18 March 2015.

Upon the completion of the Sparkle Key Acquisition, Sparkle
Key Limited became an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. The Sparkle Key Acquisition did nof result in any
change in control by the Company over Sparkle Key Limited and
such acquisition was accounted for as an equity transaction.
Accordingly, the debit balance of HK$3,246,000, between
the consideration of HK$15,000,000, and the aggregate of
the carrying amount of non<ontrolling interest of HK$954,000
and the loan from the then non-controlling shareholder of

HK$10,800,000, was recorded in the refained profits in the
equity.

4% 201472015

169



170

TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Ri % i’% l‘ﬁ #I NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 March 2015 =%

—RE=RA=1+-H

39. WIBHEB AR ZMIMER(E)

(o)

RZZE—=FNA+A#A
HR-_T—=%+—H=-+=H
ZHAEBRBEB)  AARZHE
B2EWNBARBEAEHESR
RAIRFARETRZZEWE
NRARARETR(FE)BARA
T([TBCCLJ RERHESR A%

w2 BE AR L EERE
Bt BEEHEESRAAAR
TBCCL Uk Bg BB R~ 8 2 20%
R e A IR 2 8] K A3 TBCCL
Z% SRR E F31,560,000%
T WERE R129,412,000
5% JL(E #07,852,000% T B
RIS BB R QA 2 RE R
31,560,000 T AR B EKRE
) ([ERKEE]) -

TBCCLA G + R FE EA U iE T
% REAZETRELEMHF
18(clli) 75 B A £ 2 % B2 2 U B
ZFﬁ?ﬁE"?)'lIE]ZQA 12,000 T
ARNEEEMAEREERIL BB
ihds H—Jﬁ?%ﬁ 7K T H M —RRR R
ARETE - RABETRRAS
R EWE 2Bk THE
ERZRE BARAEEERE
BERARETRIONEIE - &
AEEERARETREEMBRE
63,412,000 - HR A K E
FERESEHEARARIRER
BRAOWEEZMENRTARE
ETIREERBE D RIHAEEH
ER A A Z80%K9.8%k K -

AEBEREBHBERKER
BEBRRRZ10.2%%% - B
WER-_F—NE—-—A+MmAR
Wo

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

39. ACQUISITIONS OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(bl

On 16 August 2013 (as amended by a supplemental agreement
dated 22 November 2013), Duncan Properties Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Tysan
Building Construction (China) Limited (“TBCCL’), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of TBC which was a then 49% owned associate,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant fo which,
Duncan Propetties limited acquired a 20% equity inferest in Great
Prosper Limited from TBCCL and the interestfree shareholder's
loan of HK$31,560,000 owing by Great Prosper Limited to
TBCCL at a cash consideration of HK$129,412,000 (of which
HK$97,852,000 is for the acquisiion of the equity interest in
Great Prosper Limited and HK$31,560,000 is for the settlement

of the shareholder's loan) ("Great Prosper Acquisition”).

TBCCL has undertaken that, immediately after the completion
of the Great Prosper Acquisition, it applied the proceeds of
HK$129,412,000 received from the Great Prosper Acquisition
in repayment of all its shareholder's loan and distributed the
remaining balance by way of dividend fo its sole shareholder,
TBC, prior fo the consummation of the Tysan Building Construction
18l(c)(i)). TBC then distributed the whole amount
being received as dividend fo its

Disposal (nofe
then shareholders. Since the
Group owned a 49% equity interest in TBC, the Group received
a dividend of HK$63,412,000 from TBC. As the Group
directly held 80% and indirectly held 9.8% equity interests in
Great Prosper Limited through Duncan Properties Limited and
the 49%owned then associate, TBC, respectively, the Group
effectively acquired a 10.2% interest in Great Prosper Limited
through the Great Prosper Acquisition. The Great Prosper
Acquisition was completed on 14 January 2014.
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39. ACQUISITIONS OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(b)

(Cont'd

Upon the completion of the Great Prosper Acquisition, Great
Prosper Limited became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. The Great Prosper Acquisition did not result
in any change in control by the Company over Great Prosper
Limited and such acquisition was accounted for as an equity
fransaction. Accordingly, the debit balance of HK$32,989,000,
between the net cash outflow of HK$66,000,000, being the
consideration of HK$129,412,000 and the dividend received
of HK$63,412,000, and the aggregate amounts of the carrying
amount of non-controlling interest of HK$16,916,000 and 51%
share of the loan from the then associate of HK$3 1,560,000,
of HK$16,095,000, was recorded in the retained profits
in the equity during the year ended 31 March 2014. The
remaining 49% share of the loan from the then associate of
HK$15,465,000 was eliminated with interest in an associate.

Further defails of the Great Prosper Acquisition are sef out in the
Company's circular dated 25 November 2013.
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40. PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

On 16 August 2013 [as amended by supplemental agreements
dated 18 August 2013 and 22 November 2013), the Company and
Fortunate Pool entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant
to which, the Company disposed of its 40% equity interest in Tysan
Foundation (Hong Kong) limited and an interestree shareholder’s loan
owing by Tysan Foundation [Hong Kong) Limited to the Company,
to Fortunate Pool for a cash consideration of HK$ 157,000,000 (of
which HK$125,000,000 is for the acquisition of the equity inferest in
Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong] Limited and HK$32,000,000 is for
the setlement of an inferestfree shareholder’s loan) (“Tysan Foundation
[Hong Kong) Disposal”]. The Tysan Foundation {Hong Kong) Disposal
was completed on 17 January 2014,

Immediately after the completion of the Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong)
Disposal, Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Limited became a 60%owned
subsidiary of the Company. The financial results of Tysan Foundation
[Hong Kong] Group continued fo be consolidated info the Company's
consolidated financial statements and such disposal was accounted for
as an equity fransaction.

The debit difference of HK$48,087,000 between the consideration
for the equity inferest of HK$125,000,000 and the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests of HK$173,087,000 was recorded in the
refained profifs in the equity during the year ended 31 March 2014,

Further defails of the Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Disposal are set out
in the Company'’s circular dated 25 November 2013.



[ ]
R B AR A A

W% it 7 W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2015 —ZE—HRE=A=1+—8

41. HEKMBEAF 41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

o) RZZE-—MmFE+-_A+—HB XK (a)
RAZEENBRRRAMES]
VEEERE  RBSEERE
H R Tremend Yield limited 2 2 &P
H% 4 K2 74 A Tremend Yield Limited
iR R F M E 26,404,000%
TRERRERZER AR
([Tremend Yield B & 1) * BERK
B8/421,8750007% 7T ° Tremend

On 11 December 2014, TPDIL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered info a disposal agreement to dispose of all
of its equity interest in Tremend Yield Limited and the rights and
benefits in the interestfree shareholder’s loan of HK$6,404,000
owing by Tremend Yield Limited to TPDIL, af a cash consideration
of HK$21,875,000, to Mr. Fung (“Tremend Yield Disposal”).
The Tremend Yield Disposal was completed on 19 December
2014. Tremend Yield limited is a property invesiment company
whose main asset is a shop in Tai Kok Tsui, Kowloon for

YieldH ERZ—ZZ—WE+ =
A+ L B 5% &K ° Tremend Yield
limted B— AW EKRERE » &
FTEBERNNNERABER
ERB 2 EE -

commercial use.

i3 FET
Notes HK$ 000

HEZFEE Net assets disposed of:
REME Investment property 15 22,530
Elka Deposits 1
RITEETF Bank balances 279
JEETTIA Accruals (24)
HipENFIENRE WG & Other payables and deposits received (167)
FENTIA Tax payable (93)
BELEHBEAE Deferred tax liability 31 (560)
REAEEZER Loan from the Group (6,404)
15,562
EESEREAEEZER Loan from the Group assigned 6,404
HE—RE QR & Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (91)
21,875
AT AX - Satisfied by:
HelE Cash consideration 21,875
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41.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

[al)

(bl

[Contd)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the Tremend Yield Disposal is as follows:

TET
HK$000
Cash consideration 21,875
Bank balances disposed of (279)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
of the Tremend Yield Disposal

21,596

On 11 December 2014, TCCL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a disposal agreement to dispose of
all of its equity interest in TECL and the rights and benéfits in the
interestfree shareholder's loan of HK$6,433,000 owing by
TECL to TCCL, at a cash consideration of HK$5,794,000, to
Mr. Fung [“Tysan Engineering Disposal’). The Tysan Engineering
Disposal was complefed on 19 December 2014. TECL and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of E&M
engineering services. Immediately after the completion of the
Tysan Engineering Disposal, TECL, which is controlled by Mr.
Fung, became a related company of the Group.
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4. HEMBAR(E) 41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
() (&) b)  /Conta)
VEETh
HK$ 000
BHEFEE Net assets disposed of:
BEFEBEHNTIEIRR Amounts due from customers for contract works 6,857
W E FERFR Trade receivables 4,619
FERHE - s REAMKE  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 90
RITETF Bank balances 1,534
eI E 5 8RN e A TIA Trade payables and accruals (2,514)
Hi IR Other payables (162)
REFPEBEHNTIRE A Amounts due to customers for contract works (748)
P RRITRE Interestbearing bank borrowing (400)
REANEBZER Loan from the Group (6,433)
REFERBR 2 ER Loan from a non-controlling shareholder (2,757)
FEIERR AR R A = Non-controlling inferests (26)
60
BESEREAEEZER Loan from the Group assigned 6,433
HENRBARZEE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (699)
5,794
PAIVES N Satisfied by:
ReRE Cash consideration 5,794
FAIRRBLEZR 2 LER An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
ReBBEFRAZDITIT - respect of the Tysan Engineering Disposal is as follows:
TET
HK$ 000
HAeRE Cash consideration 5,794
BHERITET Bank balances disposed of (1,534)
RATRBRBHEZ Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
BekERRBERFRA the Tysan Engineering Disposal 4,260
BB Tremend Yield HE R RAT Further details of the Tremend Yield Disposal and the Tysan Engineering
BRELEZE—FHE &SN Disposal were disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 11
ARRBHAE-—T—NF+_A December 2014.
T—HZRAE -
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42. BERED 2RI A 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
RBEHR  SHEERITAZREEN The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
& as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
z5 GROUP
TREE Financial assefs
“E-1F —T-|mF
2015 2014
e AfHE
EXR  Available- ERR  Aviloble
JEFE for-sale FEE forsale
loansand ~~financial @ loonsand  financiol &t
receivables assels Tofal  receivables assefs Tolal

FET FEx TEx TET TET TET
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKSO0O  HK$000  HKS000

MEEERE Availableforsale investment - 1,249 1,249 = 1,250 1,250
kS Trade receivables 1,016,641 - 1,016,641 777797 - 777797
LG ENE] Other receivables 19,941 - 19.941 31,842 = 31,842
THER Time deposits 746,432 — 746,432 1,106,219 - 1,106,219
XRERE Resfricted cash 24,000 - 24,000 3,241 = 3,24
Be RFTER Cash and bank balances 541,064 — 541,064 441688 — 441688

2,348,078 1,249 2,349,327 2,360,787 1,250 2,362,037
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GROUP (Conta)

Financial liabilities

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)

—E-T% —T-mEF
2015 2014

BRAYE NI

ftABHEZ AR

TRER ERER

-HFEE ~H{EEE

%E%E  Financil Z®¥H  Finoncial

RASIE 2 liabilities ot KA 2 liabilities ot

¢MEE  fairvalve £BEE  fairvole

Financiol ~ through Financial through

liabilities ot~ profit or liabilfies o profit or
amortised loss - held @it omorfised  loss - held &t
cost for frading Total cost  for frading Total
TE7n TE7n FE7n TET TAT TAT
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
Trade payables 484,494 — 484,494 302732 = + JN7N
Other payables 10,625 - 10,625 11,527 = 11,527
Derivative financial instruments - - - = 4113 4113
Interestbearing bank barrowings 367,899 — 367,899 586,006 — 586,066
863,018 - 863,018 900,325 4113 904,438
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42. RENEs 2T E(E) 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)
2 ) COMPANY
TREE Financial assets
—E-RFE —ZTNF
2015 2014
EXRk = E %
WA FEMRIA
Loans and Lloans and
receivables  receivables
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
H b fEUGRIA Other receivables — 3,323
RITETT Bank balances 9,340 5,504
9,340 8,827
SRas Financial liabilities
“E-RF —ZT—NF
2015 2014
REERA B
i 58k 2
cRaE TRIEE
Financial Financial
liabilities at  liabiliies af
amortised amortised
cost cost
FEr FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
RSB RRZFKBE(MF17) Amounts due to subsidiaries fnofe 1.7) 47,772 144,932
BNESRAR(HE27) Trade payables fnote 27) 8 254
Hib A Other payables 125 125
47,905 145,311
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43. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group entered into derivative financial instruments with various
counterparties, principally financial insfitutions with AAA credit rafings.
Derivative financial instruments, including inferest rate swaps, were
measured using forward price model. The model incorporates various
market observable inputs including the current market price and interest
rate curves.

The following tables illusirate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
Group's financial instruments:
Liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 March 2015 and 2014:
GROUP
“E-1f “E-F
2015 2014
NTEEER AEERR
Fair volue measurement using Fair value measurement uing
i B £ i EX BR
[ (] TER  TUER TAHE gE  TUEE
(£18) BABE  BAME (£1B) ®AIE  8AYB
Quoed  (£2E)  (%3B) Cwed ~ (£2B)  (£38)
pice  Signficant  Significant pice  Signficant  Signficont
inacive  observable unobservable nocive  obsenable  unobservoble

markels inpufs inpufs B mores inpus inputs gt

level 1] flevel2)  (level3) Total leel 1] feel2 (vl Tolal

FAr 743 FAr T TAT TET TET TET

HKS000  HKS000 SO0 SO0 HSO0 HSOD HEOD HKE000
— - — - - 4113 - 4113

The Group did not have any financial assets measured af fair value as

at 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil).

The Company did not have any financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 March 2015 [2014: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between level 1 and level 2 and no fransfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2014: Nil).

4% 201472015
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include cash and bank
balances, time deposits, trade and other receivables, derivative
financial instruments, frade and other payables and bank borrowings.
Defails of these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective nofes
fo these financial statements. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management of the Group manages and monitors these
exposures fo ensure that appropriate measures are implemented in o
fimely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assefs are cash and bank balances,
fime deposits, and trade and other receivables.

The credif risk on bank balances and time deposits is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high creditratings assigned by
international creditrafing agencies.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable fo its trade and other
receivables. The management of the Group monitors each individual
frade debt on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure fo bad debts
is not significant. The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with the exposure spreading over a large number of counterparties
and customers. Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure fo credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are
disclosed in nofes 23 and 24 1o the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure fo changes in interest rates is mainly aftributable
fo ifs interestbearing bank borrowings. Borrowings af variable rates
expose the Group fo inferest rate risk. The Group currently does not
have an inferest rate hedging policy. However, the management of
the Group monitors the Group's interest rate exposure and considers
entering info interest rafe swaps fo reduce its exposure fo inferest rate
fluctuations should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Interest rate risk [Conta))

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity fo a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held consfant,
of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on floating rafe
borrowings| and the Group's equity [before any impact on tax).

ESE]
GROUP
BB AR A
B,/ (HD)
FZ F5 Increase/
Increase  (decrease)  FEFRED *
in interest in profit Decrease
rate  beforetax in equity*
FHET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
—E-HF 2015
RITER Bank loans 100 EE R (3,686) -
100
basis points
—T-F 2014
RITER Bank loans 100 {EZEZ (5,877) =
100
basis points
TEeMIA Derivative financial instruments 100 {EZEEZ, 2,000 =
100
basis points
* TEFER BB * Excluding refained profits
SME E Foreign exchange risk

AEBTZRBFERTEAMSEE
% ERHDZHIUBTRAREE
B AR AREZRABRITEEN
ABTLATE °

EEEREERALEMEY c EHE
B WRNAFREE B LEHINE
& -

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China with
most of ifs transactions seffled in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. In
the current year, all of the Group's bank borrowings are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

Management monitors the Group's currency exposure on an ongoing
basis and considers entering into forward currency contracts when the
need arises.

4% 201472015
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44. BIBEBEEBFERBEK(E)

MEELTERE

AEEZBRREBNARITEERER
BERESRBEIUHRRFTE - K
SEERRTETIBESNN - BRE
AT E R IE T E B T AE o

REBECATORMRERR - A TEIIAE
ERARARBEPR B AEDH

A :

&=

ENESER Trade payables

Eft TR Other payables

fERTRE Interest-bearing bank

borrowings *

SAEOREZAMNEAR  Guorontees in respect of

fEE R performance bonds in

relation to subsidiaries
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is fo maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank borrowings. The
Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has
adequate financial resources in meeting ifs financial obligations.

The maturity profile of the Group's and the Company’s financial
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

GROUP
“E-1f
2015
12f8A A
REREE Less than 1858 SENLE act
On demand 12months  Tto5years  Over 5 years Total

FET FET FET FET FE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

= 484,494 = = 484,494
- 10,625 — — 10,625

33,940 109,823 161,110 63,737 368,610

416,775 = = = 416,775

450,715 604,942 161,110 63,737 1,280,504
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44. BBEREEBFERBEK(E) 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

HEBETEE(E) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
S8 (&) GROUP (Cont'd)
“T-IE
2014
1218 AR
REREE Less than 1255 SENE @t
On demand 12months ~ Tto5years  Over 5 years Total

TET T TET THET TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ENESEN Trade payables » 302,732 = - 302,732
EftENFE Other payables - 11,527 g r 11,527
fTESRTA Derivative financial instruments = 4113 = = 4113
MERTRE* Inferest bearing bank
borrowings * 16,929 236,056 266,343 68,322 587,650
AEORBERHERR Guarantees in respect of
fEi 2 iR performance bonds in
relation fo subsidiaries 533,328 = = = 533,328

350,257 554,428 266,343 08,322 1,439,350

* RZE-—AFER=-Z—NE=H * Included in interest-bearing bank borrowings are bank loans of
=+—H WERFTEERREHE HK$33,940,000 and HK$16,929,000 as at 31 March 2015 and
REEREE FERAE G 2014, respectively, which contain a repayment on demand clause
MpEREREEER 2 RITERS R giving the lender the unconditional right fo call the loan at any time and
#£33,940,0007% 7t }& 16,929,000/%8 therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, these amounts are
o At g BB E - % classified as on demand.

FERONBARBIERREE -
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Notwithstanding the above repayment on demand clause, the directors
do not believe that the bank loans will be called in ifs enfirety within
12 months, and they consider that the bank loans will be repaid
in accordance with the maturity dates as set ouf in the respective
agreements. This evaluation was made considering: the financial
position of the Group af the date of approval of the financial statements;
the Group's compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of events of
default, and the fact that the Group has made all previously scheduled
repayments on time. In accordance with the terms of bank loans, the
maturity terms at 31 March 2015 are HK$137,663,000 (2014:
HK$243,045,000) payable less than 12 months; HK$167,210,000
(2014: HK$276,283,000) payable in one fo five years, inclusive; and
HK$63,737,000 (2014: HK$68,322,000) payable over five years.

276,283,000 7T) : WERRAFIA L
& 63,737,000 T(Z T — M4 -
68,322,000/ 7T) °

N COMPANY
—E-RF
2015
12{6A KR
REXER Less than 125% S5ENRE st
Ondemand 12 months 110 5years  Over 5 years Tofal

T THEr TEr TEr TEr
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

RMBARZHE Amounts due fo subsidiaries 47,772 - - - 47,772
AT Trade payables - 8 - - 8
HitENTUR Other payables - 125 - - 125
AR BEERNBAR Cuarantees given fo financial

Bt—RESER institutions in connection

e T2 &k with general credit focilites

granted fo subsidiaries 748,459 - - - 748,459

FRAREZRMEAR  Cuarantees in respect of

it 2 AR performance bonds in

416,775 = = = 416,775

relation 1o subsidiaries

1,213,006 133 — - 1,213,139
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44. BBEREEBFERBEK(E) 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

HEBETEE(E) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
INGIE=P) COMPANY (Cont'd)
==
2014
12{8 AR
RERER less than 125% SENE @t
Ondemand ~ 12months  Ttio5years  Over 5 years Total
AT TET TET TET TET
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R BARZHE Amounts due fo subsidiaries 144,932 = = = 144,932
EREFHRN Trade payables > 254 - N 254
Hit A Other payables — 125 - x 125
PUBREAMB AL  Guarantees given fo financial
—RIEEERT instifutions in connection
TR with general credit facilifies
granted fo subsidiaries 054,323 = = = 954,323
REORBEANEAT  Guarantees in respect of
{Elt R performance bonds in
relation 1o subsidiaries 533,328 = = = 533,328
1,632,583 379 - = [ed2 87
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management are fo
safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and
fo maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders” value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
fo it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Company may adiust the dividend payment
fo shareholders, refumn capital o shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2015 and 31
March 2014

The Group monifors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total equity of the Group. The Group's policy is to
maintain the gearing ratio not more than 50%. Net debt includes frade
payables, other payables, derivative financial instruments and interest-
bearing bank borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Capital
includes total equity of the Group. The gearing rafios as af the end of
the reporting periods were as follows:

—E-H% —ZOF

2015 2014

FET FET

HK$000 HK$ 000

ERE SRR Trade payables 484,494 302,732
Hib I Other payables 10,625 11,527
TEemT A Derivative financial instruments — 4113
I ERITEE Interestbearing bank borrowings 367,899 586,066
B EHITFR less: Time deposifs (746,432) (1,106,219)
XRERE Restricted cash (24,000) (3,2471)

R MRTHERT Cash and bank balances (541,064)  (441,688)
He 55 Net cash (448,478)  (646,710)
B Total equity 2,932,569 2,711,277
BEAREFELLE Gearing ratio N/ATER N/ATNEA
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 2 February 2015, Dragonhill Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered info a sale and purchase agreement (the
"Agreement”) with an independent third party, L8R HZEEEERE
BMR AT (the “Purchaser”), in relation fo the proposed disposal of the
entire issued capital of CG (HY) International Limited and the inferest-
free shareholder’s loan owed by CG [HY) International Limited fo
Dragonhill Limited, at a cash consideration of RMB340,000,000,
which comprises the consideration for the sale of equity interest and the
shareholder’s loan ("CG Disposal”).

On 27 May 2015, as the Purchaser failed o pay the deposit on the
agreed fime, Dragonhill Limited issued a written nofice to the Purchaser
fo terminate the Agreement with immediate effect.

Further details of the CG Disposal were disclosed in the Company's
announcements dated 2 February 2015, 18 March 2015, 20 April
2015, 18 May 2015 and 27 May 2015.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As defailed in note 4 to the financial statements, certain comparative
amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year's
presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial stafements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 11 June 2015.
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F ¥ Y ¥ — ¥ F# SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

REHEE W
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
BA
RZREERE REE
BRME Approximate Fr¥sREs
b Bh Type of gross floor Group's
Location development area interest
(‘FFHK)
(sq.m)
RE 8T F=x 147,000 100%
EPEE Residential
JIEPEER 133 FF
Rz E
The Waterfront
133 Guangfu Road West,
Putuo District,
Shanghai, PRC
A B KO£ T F= /5,000 100%
A R Residential
& e EIRME R O E A
e EY S

The Riverside

South side of the junction
of Tai Er Zhuang Road and
Qiongzhou Road,

Hexi District,

Tianjin, PRC
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T EY X — B F SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

RS
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

BREME
B Type of
Location development
HEEERESGT FE/BE
B REN AL Residential /
RHIRERE Commercial
The Pinnacle

Huanghe Nan Avenve,
Huanggu District,
Shenyang City,
Liaoning Province, PRC

REMF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
ok

Location

FE T

RERTILHE

REFBI9F 1 - O

EEAE

China Garden,

Nos. 1 -6, Llane 39 Ronghuaxi Road,
Gubei New Area, Changning District,
Shanghai, PRC

PE EET

RERITHEK

2222 F S5 REMRE

BEE 2 [ 25 {EE iz

Whole of Block B and 25 car parks,
Aidu Apariment, No. 55, lane 2222,
Honggiao Road, Changning District,
Shanghai, PRC

1t BE TS
Site area
(FFK)

(sq.m/

41,209

A
HRREEE FEE
Approximate st
gross floor Group's Pt E%
area inferest Stage
(FHK)
(sg.m/
165,000 100% IRERHA
REnkT
Construction
commenced
and partially
completed
BEAZ A
Existing use Type of lease
F=E R H
Residential long ferm
F=E i HA
Residential Medium term
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Executive Directors

Mr. FUNG Chiu Chak, Victor (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. CHIU Chin Hung
Mr. LAU Kin Fai

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Tianbing (Chairman)
Mr. Stuart Morrison GRANT

Mr. YANG Han Hsiang

Mr. Justin WA

Mr. LTAW Yiu Fat Richard

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. FAN Chor Ho

Mr. TSE Man Bun

Mr. lUNG Chee Ming, George
Mr. LI Kit Chee

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. FAN Chor Ho (Chairman)
Mr. TSE Man Bun

Mr. LUNG Chee Ming, George
Mr. LI Kit Chee

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. TSE Man Bun [Chairman)
Mr. WANG Tianbing

Mr. FUNG Chiu Chak, Victor
Mr. FAN Chor Ho

Mr. LI Kit Chee

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. WANG Tianbing (Chairman)
Mr. FAN Chor Ho

M:r. TSE Man Bun

Mr. LUNG Chee Ming, George
Mr. U Kit Chee
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A % % P CORPORATE INFORMATION

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Miss MO Wai ling

COMPANY SECRETARY

Miss WONG Suk Han, Kitty

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

LEGAL ADVISERS

Conyers, Dill & Pearman
Reed Smith Richards Butler
Szefo & Yeung

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong] Limited

BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilion HM11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

20th Floor One Island South
No. 2 Heung Yip Road
Wong Chuk Hang

Hong Kong
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BRANCH REGISTRAR IN HONG KONG

Tricor Tengis Limited
level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East
Hong Kong

HKSE STOCK CODE

687

WEBSITE

www.tysan.com
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